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NOTICE

22nd Annual General Meeting




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LTD.

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting of the members of Seven
Islands Shipping Limited (“Company”) will be held at a shorter notice on Monday, December 23, 2024
at 10:30 AM. (1.S.T.) at the registered office of the Company at Suite 34, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times
Square, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400 059 through hybrid mode (that is either in-
person or through Video Conference {“VC”)/Other Audio Video Means (“OAVM”) at the members’ best
convenience), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 including the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, together
with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 including the audited consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended on that date, together with the report of the Auditors thereon.

3. To declare a final dividend of Rs. 72/- per Equity Share of face value of Rs. 10 each (720%), of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

4. To appointa director in place of Mr. Sumit Maheshwari {DIN: 06920646), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To re-appoint Mr. Anil Laxman Devli (DIN: 00042372) as an Independent Director of the
Company, to hold office for the second term of 5 (five) consecutive years.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, and 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and based on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mr. Anil Laxman Devli (DIN: 00042372), who
has been appointed as the Casual Vacancy Director (Independent) to hold office till September 30, 2024
and who has given his consent and submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as
provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in
writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director
and being eligible, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable

to retire by rotation, to hold office for the second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years commen;l«ug-ﬁ:'ogi .
October 01, 2024 up to September 30, 2029 (both days inclusive); subject to Mr. Devli sa.tisfymg"r:h& '

Suite 3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times Square, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 059.
Tel. : +91-22 4225 4225 Q Fax : +91-22 4225 4226 Q sevenislands@sishipping.com
www.sishipping.com O CIN : U61100MH2002PLC135732



criteria of independence in terms of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anil Laxman Devli shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for
attending meetings of the Board or any committees thereof as detailed in the letter of appointment to be
issued to him as may be determined by the Board from time to ime.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Clayton Lawrence Pinto, Managing Director & CEO and the Company
Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized severally or jointly to do all acts, deeds, matters
and things as deem necessary, proper or desirable and to sign and execute all necessary documents,
applications and returns for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution along with filing of

necessary E-form with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”

By order of the Board of Directors
Seven Islands Shipping Limited,

$ I W asce Ez ( .
Jay Bhavesh Parekh
Company Secretary

Merm. No. A47580

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 19, 2024

Registered Office:

Suite 3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times Square,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East),

Mumbai 400 059, Maharashtra, India.

CIN: U61100MH2002 PLC135732

Tel: +91 22 4225 4225

Fax: +9122 42254226

E-mail: sevenislands@sishipping.com
Website: www.sishipping.com



NOTES:

1. The Annual General Meeting ("AGM”} of the Company will be held in hybrid mode i.e., addition to

holding this meeting at its Registered Office, the AGM shall also be held through Video Conferencing
(“VC™) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) through the Zoom platform, without physical presence
of the shareholders in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules
made thereunder, read with General Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”)
dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08, 2021, December
14, 2021, May 05, 2022, December 28, 2022, September 25, 2023 and September 19, 2024
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”). In accordance with the MCA Circulars and applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. In
addition to this, the shareholders of the Company who wish to attend the meeting in person may do
so as per the instructions provided elsewhere in this Notice.

In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI"”) read with Clarification/Guidance on applicability of Secretarial
Standards-1 and 2 dated April 15, 2020, issued by the 1CSI, the proceedings of this AGM shall be
deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the deemed venue of
this AGM.

The Explanatory Statement under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, in respect of
the special business is annexed herewith and forms part of the notice.

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the due date to hold the 22nd AGM was originally
scheduled for September 30, 2024. However, the Company had sought an extension from the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai by filing Form GNL-1. As per the approval letter dated September
11, 2024, The Registrar of Companies, Mumbai granted an additional three months to hold the AGM
of the Company. Consequently, the AGM is slated for December 23, 2024.

Since the AGM is being held through hybrid mode, accordingly a shareholder can either join the
meeting virtually or physically.

For Shareholders attending in-person: A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THIS MEETING AND WILLING TO JOIN THE AGM PHYSICALLY BUT UNABLE TO DO SO, IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY
NEED NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER OF SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”). A
person can act as proxy on behalf of shareholders not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A shareholder
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint
a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

The instrument of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of
the Annual General Meeting. A proxy form is annexed to this Notice. Proxies submitted on behalf of
limited companies, societies, etc. must be supported by appropriate resolution or authority, as



10.

11.

12.

applicable.

For Shareholders attending through VC/OAVM: Since this AGM is also being held through
VC/OAVM pursuant to the MCA circulars, the facility for the appointment of proxies by the
shareholders who will attend the meeting through these modes will not be available.

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as
per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM.

Corporate Members (i.e., other than individuals, HUF's, NRI's etc) intending to send their authorized
representatives to attend the AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, are
requested to send to the Company, a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) certified copy of relevant
Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc together with the respective specimen
signatures of those representative(s) authorized under the said resolution to attend and vote on
their behalf at the meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent by email at
cs@sishipping.com or by post to the registered office of the Company addressed to the Company
Secretary.

Members, Proxies and Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to the meeting, the
Attendance Slip enclosed herewith, duly completed and signed, mentioning therein details of their
DP ID and Client ID/Folic No. For the convenience of the Members and proper conduct of the
meeting, entry to the meeting venue will be regulated by Attendance Slip, which is enclosed with this
Annual Report. Members are requested to sign at the place provided on the Attendance Slip and
hand it over at the Registration Counter at the venue.

All documents referred to in the notice and in the accompanying explanatory statement shall be
open for inspection without any fee at the registered office of the Company between 11:00 a.m. and
01:00 p.m. on all working days, except Saturdays and holidays, up to the date of the Annual General

Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 20(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 35 of the Companies
{Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended, companies are permitted to send official documents to
their members electronically.

Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders are requested to submit the
consent to hold the Annual General Meeting at shorter notice. Format of consent for shorter notice is
annexed herewith and forms a part of this notice.

Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made
thereunder, companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through electronic
mode to those Members who have registered their e-mail address either with the Company or with
the Depository Participant(s). Physical copy of the Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance
Slip are being sent to those Members who have not registered their e-mail address with the
Company or Depository Participant(s}. Members of the Company who have registered their e-mail
address are also entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon request.




13.

14.

15.

16.

Shareholders attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail
address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations,
power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number,
MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their Depository Participants (DPs).

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, Register of Shareholders
maintained as per the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant documents referred to in the Notice will
be available electronically for inspection by the shareholders during the AGM by writing to the
Company before the commencement of the Meeting at cs@sishipping.com. All documents referred to
in the Notice will also be available electronically for inspection without any fee by the shareholders
from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Shareholders seeking to inspect
such documents can send an email to cs@sishipping.com.

TDS on Dividend

Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income is taxable in the hands of shareholders and the
Company is required to deduct tax at source from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed
rates. For the prescribed rates for various categories, please refer to Income Tax Act, 1961 and the
Finance Act, 2020, of the respective years. The shareholders are requested to update their PAN with
the Depository Participants (DPs) for shares held in dematerialized form.

A resident individual shareholder with PAN and whose income does not exceed maximum amount
not chargeable to tax or who is not liable to pay income tax, as the case may be, can submit a yearly
declaration in Form No. 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source by e-mail to
cs@sishipping.com by 06:30 p.m. (IST) on Saturday, December 21, 2024. Shareholders are requested
to note that if the PAN is not correct/invalid/inoperative or have not filed their income tax returns,
then tax will be deducted at higher rates prescribed under Sections 206AA or 206AB of the Income
Tax Act, as applicable and incase of invalid PAN, they will not be able to get credit of TDS from the
Income Tax Department.

Non-resident shareholders [including Foreign Institutional Investors (“Flls”)/Foreign Portfolio
Investors (“FPIs”}] can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of tax
residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which may be
required to avail the tax treaty benefits. For this purpose, the shareholder may submit the above
documents (PDF/JPG Format) by e-mail to cs@sishipping.com. The aforesaid declarations and
documents need to be submitted by the shareholders by 06:30 p.m. (IST) on Friday, January 10,
2024.




17.

18.

19.

20.

Members desiring any information with regard to the financial statements or any matter to be placed
at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company well in advance through email on

cs@sishipping.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the AGM is annexed and forms part of this
Notice.

The shareholders willing to join the AGM through VC/OAVM can attend the AGM through the zoom
platform. The link to attend the EGM is as below:

https: //us06web.zoom.us /i/82288511439?pwd=dwAobNYr60rBAFuciDHmM7a0FTDQQse.1
Meeting ID: 822 8851 1439

Passcode: 286260

Following is the step by step procedure to be followed in order to connect to the zoom meeting:
Using the Zoom Desktop Client:

1. Open the Zoom desktop client.
2. Join a meeting using one of these methods:
(a) Click Join a Meeting if you want to join without signing in.
(b) Sign in to Zoom then click Join.
3. Enter the Meeting ID number, Password (if prompted) and your Display Name.
(a) If you are signed in, change your name if you don’t want your default name to appear.
(b) If you are notsigned in, enter a display name.
4. Selectif you would like to connect audio and/or video and click Join.

Using the Zoom Mobile App:

1. Open the Zoom Mobile App. If you have not downloaded the Zoom Mobile App yet, you can
download it from the Google Play Store /App Store.
2. Join a meeting using one of these methods:
(a) Tap Join a Meeting if you want to join without signing in.
(b) Sign in to Zoom then tap Join.
3. Enter the Meeting ID number and your display name.
(a) Ifyou are signed in, change your name if you don't want your default name to appear.
(b) If you are not signed in, enter a display name.
4. Select if you would like to connect audio and/or video and tap Join Meeting.

Using the Browser:

1. Open Chrome.

2. Gotojoin.zoom.us.

3. Enter your meeting ID provided by the host/organizer.
4. Click Join.

(a) If this is your first time joining from the browser, you will be asked to open the Zoom client



to join the meeting.

(b} You can check Always open these types of links in the associated app to skip this step in
the future.

(c) Click Open Zoom Meetings {PC) or Open zoom.us (Mac).

D. Using the Link:

1. Click the link as provided above.
2. Depending on your default web browser or mobile app, you may be prompted to open Zoom.
3. Follow appropriate steps as stated in (A), (B) or {C) above.

21. Instructions for shareholders/participants for attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM are as under:

(&) Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be open 30 {thirty) minutes prior to the
scheduled time of the meeting and window for joining shall be kept open during the EGM.

(b) Participants/shareholders are requested to join the meeting at least 15 minutes in advance to
test the link before the start of the AGM and complete all the testing and logistic issues.

(c) Shareholders joining the AGM from their mobile devices or tablets or through laptops connecting
via mobile hotspot may experience audio/video loss due to fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use stable WiFi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind
of aforesaid glitches.

(d) The Company shall keep all the participants on mute by default at the start of the meeting and
the respective participants/shareholders can unmute themselves at the time of speaking.

(e) Shareholders arc cncouraged to cxpress their views/or ask questions after completion of
particular agenda to ensure smooth and orderly flow of the meeting.

(f) Please ensure that no person other than the invited participants have access to this AGM.

(g) We recommend do not use/join through web-version because it may have voice and video
quality issue.

(h) If you need any assistance before or during the AGM you can reach out to Mr. Jay Parekh -
Company Secretary (022-42254225).




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), given
hereunder sets out all the material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned at Item Nos. 5 of the
accompanying Notice dated September 11, 2024.

Item No. 05:
To re-appoint Mr. Anil Laxman Devli (DIN: 00042372) as an Independent Director of the
Company, to hold office for the second term of 5 (five) consecutive years.

The members are being informed that Mr. Anil Devli was appointed as a Casual Vacancy Director
(Independent) on the Board of Directors of the Company by the members in the 19th Annual General
Meeting held on September 30, 2021 on account of resignation of Mr. Madhukar Mulky Kamath and to
hold office till September 30, 2024. Accordingly, his first term of appointment as Independent Director is
due to expire on September 30, 2024. Upon completion of their term, they are eligible for re-
appointment as Independent Directors on the Board of the Company for a second term subject to the
approval of the Members by a Special Resolution.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board after taking into account the performance
evaluation of Mr. Devli for his existing term and considering his knowledge, expertise, rich experience,
and substantial contribution including time commitment, has recommended the Board of Directors to
consider the re-appointment of Mr. Anil Laxman Devli (DIN: 00042372) as the Independent Director of
the Company for the second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years i.e, from October 01, 2024, to September
30, 2029. The Board of Directors on September 11, 2024, recommended to the Members the re-
appointment of Mr. Devli as Independent Director of the Company to hold office for the second term of 5
(Five) years for their approval in this Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received a notice in writing under the provisions of Section 160 of the Act from a
Member proposing the candidature of Mr. Devli for the office of Independent Director, to be re-
appointed under the provisions of Section 149 of the Act. The re-appointment is of an Independent
Director and the same has been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
according to the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, there is no need to deposit ¥ 100,000 under
Section 160 of the Act. Mr. Devli is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a Director. Further, the Company has received
a declaration from Mr. Devli that he is not debarred from being appointed as a Director by the MCA, or
any such authority and that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of
the Act.

He also holds valid registration under the Independent Director’s Database pursuant to the Notification
dated October 22, 2019, issued by the MCA. A draft copy of the letter of appointment of Mr. Devli as an
Independent Director of the Company setting out the terms and conditions of his re-appointment,
including remuneration, is available for inspection by the Members without any fee at the Company’s
Registered Office.




A brief profile of Mr. Anil Devli is as under:

Mr. Anil Devli has an extensive experience in container business, wet bulk, dredging and offshore
supply services. He has experience on working with national and regional governments, quasi-
governmental agencies as well as government owned companies. He is an active member of working
groups and Boards of Govt. of India, the Ministry of Ports, Shipping and Waterways and maritime
think tanks. Presently, Mr. Devli holds the position of Chief Executive Officer of Indian National
Shipowners Association.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Mr. Devli fulfills the conditions for his re-appointment as an
Independent Director as per the statutory requirements. He is independent of management and
possesses appropriate skills, experience, and knowledge.

Except for Mr. Devli, none of the other Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company /their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors of your Company is of the opinion that the re-appointment of Mr. Devli as an
Independent Director of the Company would be beneficial to the Company and hence recommends the
Resolution at Item no. 5 for the approval of the Members as a Special Resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
Seven Islands Shipping Limited

—Jim=i -
Jay Parekh
Company Secretary

Mem. No. A47580

Date: December 19, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office:

Suite 3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, Times Square,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai 400 059.

CIN: U61100MH2002PLC135732

Tel: +91 22 4225 4225

Fax: +9122 4225 4226

E-mail: sevenislands@sishipping.com
Website: www.sishipping.com



ANNEXURE 1

Details of directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting [Pursuant to Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings]

Name of the Director Sumit Maheshwari Anil Laxman Devli
Director Identification 06920646 00042372
Number
Designation/category  of Nominee Director, Director
the Director Non-Executive Director Independent Director
Date of Birth and Age November 27, 1982 October 06, 1963

42 Years 61 Years

Date of first appointment
on the Board

March 29, 2019

August 20, 2021

Qualification Chartered Accountant, ICAI
e Of Com'merce (M.Co.rn) Degree, Bachelor's Degree in Commerce
University of Mumbai and ' ,
. and Bachelor’s Degree in Law
Post Graduate Program in Management,
Indian School of Business
Experience and rti M th: 19 f i ith
xperience and Expertise ore ' an' years of experience wi More than 25 years of experience
expertise in Finance, Accountancy and | L
. in shipping industry
Business Management
Profile of the Director Mr. Sumit Maheshwari is a Nominee Director Please refer Explanatory

of the Company and has been associated with
the Company since March 29, 2019.

Mr. Sumit Maheshwari has been the Managing
Director & CEO of Fairbridge Capital Private
Limited (“Fairbridge”) since May 2018,
playing a pivotal role in sourcing, evaluating,
negotiating, and executing investment
opportunities. Since joining Fairbridge in
2011, he has overseen key investments in
Bangalore International Airport, Sanmar
Group, CSB Bank, Fairchem Organics, and
several others. Sumit also serves on the
boards of various Fairfax portfolio companies.

A seasoned investment professional with
deep experience in both private and public
Indian companies, Sumit manages over $7
billion in Indian investments for Fairfax
Financial Holdings and Fairfax India Holdings.
He excels in conducting due diligence,
managing high governance, and providing

Statement to this Notice




strategic direction to portfolio companies. His
success is driven by his ability to partner with
high-quality business owners, maintain
strong governance, and nurture relationships
with stakeholders. Sumit is deeply connected
within the Indian business community and is
an active member of the Young Presidents’
Organization (Mumbai Chapter).

Before Fairbridge, Mr. Sumit Maheshwari
worked with KPMG in India and the UK,
specializing in audit and advisory services. He
is a Chartered Accountant and holds a Post
Graduate Program in Management from the
Indian School of Business, Hyderabad. Mr.
Maheshwari is a value-investing advocate,
committed to creating long-term sustainable
growth in India.

Number of Meetings of the

Board attended during the 5outof5 4 outof 5
year.
Directorships held in | Listed Companies: Other Companies:

other companies including
equity listed companies
and excluding foreign
companies as of the date of
this Notice.

1) Chemplast Sanmar Limited
2) CSB Bank Limited

3} Thomas Cook (India) Limited
4) Fairchem Organics Limited

Other Companies:

1) National Commodities
Services Limited
Bangalore International Airport Limited
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Anchorage Infrastructure Investments
Holdings Limited

Jaynix Engineering Private Limited
Maxop Engineering Company Private
Limited

Saurashtra Freight Private Limited

8) Fairfreight Lines Private Limited

9) Fairbridge Capital Private Limited

10) Global Aluminium Private Limited

Management

2)
3)
4)

5)
6)

7)

1) WHP Jewellers Ecommerce
Private Limited

List of Membership/
Chairmanship of
Committees of other
Board.

1) Fairchem Organics Limited:

Nomination and Member
Remuneration Committee
Risk Management Committee | Member

Nil




Audit Committee

Member

Corporate Social Member
Responsibility Committee

2) Thomas Cook (India) Limited:
Audit Committee Member
Corporate Social Member
Responsibility (CSR)
Committee

3) Saurashtra Freight Limited:
Remuneration Committee Member
CSR Commiittee Member

4) Bangalore International Airport Limited:

Curpourate Soclal Member
Responsibility (CSR)

Committee

Management Committee Member

5) Fairbridge Capital Private Limited:

Corporate Social
Responsibility {(CSR)
Committee

Chairman

6) Fairfreight Lines Private Limited:

Curpurate Soclal
Responsibility (CSR)
Committee

Member

7) Maxop Engineering Company Private

Limited:

Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)
Committee

Member

8) Jaynix Engineering Private Limited:

'_Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)
Committee

Member

9} Anchorage Infrastructure
Holdings Limited:

Investments

Nomination and

Member




Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

Member

10) Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited:

Responsibility Committee

Corporate Social Member
Responsibility (CSR)
Committee
11) National ~ Commodities  Management
Services Limited:
Nomination and Member
Remuneration Committee
CSR Committee Member
12) CSB Bank Limited:
Nomination & Remuneration | Member
Committee
Corporate Social Member

Shareholding in Seven
Islands Shipping Limited.

Nil

Nil

Relationship with other

Not related to any Director/Key

directors, manager and | Notrelated to any Director/Key Managerial .
] Managerial Personnel of the
other Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
Company

Personnel of the Company.
Terms and conditions of e )
re-appointment along with Sitting Fees for attending

\ . Not Applicable meetings of the Board or
details of remuneration Committees thereof
sought to be paid
Justification for choosing
the appointees for . Please refer Explanatory
appointment as Not Applicable Statement to this Notice

Independent Directors.




Route map to reach the venue (From Marol Naka Metro Station)
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
CIN: U61100MH2002PLC135732
Suite 34, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times Square, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra, India.
Tel : +91-22-4225 4225, Fax : +91-22-4425 4226, Email : sevenislands@sishipping.com
Website : www.sishipping.com

Proxy Form (MGT-11)

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s):

Registered address :

E-mail ID:
Folio No./Client ID No.*: DP ID No.*:
* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
1/We, being the member(s) holding Equity Shares of Seven Islands Shipping Limited,
hereby appoint:
1) Name
Address :
Email ID :
Signature of first proxy holder: , or failing him/her
2) Name
Address :
Email ID :
Signature of second proxy holder: , or failing him/her
3) Name
Address :
Email ID :

Signature of third proxy holder:




as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 22nd Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, December 30, 2024, at 10:30 AM. (IST) at Suite
3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times Square, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400059,
Maharashtra, India and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of such resolutions as are indicated

hereinafter:

Resolution
No.

Description of Resolution

Type of

Resolution

For

Against

To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone
financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024 including the audited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of
Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the
year ended on that date, together with the reports of
the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon,

Ordinary

To receive, consider and adopt the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 iucluding e audited consulldated Bualance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated statement of
Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the
year ended on that date, together with the report of the
Auditors thereon.

Ordinary

To declare a final dividend of Rs. 72 /- per Equity Share
of face value of Rs. 10 each (720%), of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

Ordinary

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sumit Maheshwari
(DIN: 06920646), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Ordinary

m

To re-appoint Mr. Anil Laxman Devli (DIN: 00042372)
as an Independent Director of the Company, to hold
office for the second term of 5 (five) consecutive years.

Special

Signed this

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of first proxy holder

Signature of second proxy holder

Signature of third proxy holder

day of , 2024

Affix
Revenue
Stamp




Notes:

iy

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

A Member may vote ‘for’ or ‘against’ each resolution. Please put a ‘v in the Box in the appropriate
column either ‘for’ or ‘against’ the respective resolutions. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column
blank in respect of any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as
he/she thinks appropriate.

A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the
Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as proxy on behalf of not more than fifty Members and holding
in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company. Members holding
more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company may appoint a single person as
proxy, who shall not act as proxy for any other Member.

This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company at Suite 3A,3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times Square, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai-400059, Maharashtra, India not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

Those Members who have multiple folios with different joint holders may use copies of this Proxy
Form.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a Member from attending the meeting in person if he/she so
wishes,

In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint
holders should be stated.



SEVEN ISLANDS SI:IIPPING LIMITED
CIN: U61100MH2002PLC135732
Suite 3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times Square, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra, India
Tel : +91-22-4225 4225, Fax : +91-22-4425 4226 Email : sevenislands@sishipping.com
Website : www.sishipping.com
Attendance Slip

I certify that | am a member/proxy/authorized representative for the member of the Company.
I hereby record my presence at the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Company at Suite 3A, 3B & 4,
Level 8, B Wing, Times Square, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400059, Maharashtra,
India on Monday, December 23, 2024 at 10:30 A.M.
Folio No.
No. of shares held
DPID No.*
Client ID No.*

*Applicable for member holding shares in electronic form

Name of the Member : Signature :
Name of the Proxyholder: Signature :
Notes:

1) Members attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance
slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.

2) Only Member/Proxyholder can attend the Meeting.

3) Member/Proxyholder should bring his/her copy of the Notice for reference at the Meeting.

4) Those Members who have multiple folios with different joint holders may use copies of this
Attendance Slip.



THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Consent of shareholder for shorter notice

[Pursuant to section 101(1)]

To,

The Board of Directors

Seven Islands Shipping Limited

Suite 3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times Square,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai-400059.

I son/daughter of
resident of
holding equity shares of Rs. 10/- each in the company in my

nwn/jnint name herehy give ransent, pursnant to section 101(1) of the Companies Act. 2013, to

hold the Annual General Meeting on Monday, December 23, 2024 at a shorter notice.

Signature :

Name .

(In Block Letters)

Date:




DIRECTORS’ REPORT




To,
The Shareholders,
Seven Islands Shipping Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LTD.

The Directors present this Directors Report of Seven Islands Shipping Limited (the “Company” or “SISL")
along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has been referred to wherever

required.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial highlights of your company for the financial year 2023-24 along with the corresponding
performance in financial year 2022-23 are mentioned below (rounded to nearest rupees/crore):

Particulars Standalone Consulldated
Financial Year | Financial Year | Financial Year |Financial Year
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue from operations 1,438.69 1,152.48 1,450.99 1152.48
Other Operating Income 2.44 - 2.58 0.07
Other income 354.93 75.53 347.68 72.71
Total Income 1,796.06 1,228.21 1,801.25 1,225.26
Expenses
Operating expenditure 459.56 380.63 463.37 380.63
Depreciation and amortisation expense 415.44 321.79 420.81 322.01
Total Operating Expenses 951.18 829.80 1,063.98 921.77
Profit before finance costs, exceptional 844.89 398.41 834.63 393.72
item and tax
Finance costs 96.73 90.17 97.35 90.23
Profit before exceptional item and tax 748.16 308.24 737.27 303.49
(PBT)
Tax expense (incl. Tonnage Tax) 11.82 5.53 11.82 5.53
Profit for the year 736.34 302.72 725.45 297.97
Other Comprehensive Income 0.36 0.06 0.36 0.06
Total Comprehensive Income 727.83 302.78 725.79 298.04
Opening Balance of Retained Earnings 938.38 679.67 932.68 678.72
Closing Balance of Retained Earnings 1,483.73 938.38 1,467.15 932.68
Earnings per share:
Basic 128.62 52.90 125.23 52.07
Diluted 128.62 52.90 125.23 52.07
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Previous year figures have been regrouped where necessary and have been re-stated as per IndAS.

This discussion on the financial condition and results of operations of your Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024, which are summarised above, should be read in conjunction with its audited
standalone and the consolidated financial statements containing financials and notes thereto of SISL and
its subsidiary, namely Seven Islands Maritime Training Foundation.

The financial statements (standalone and consolidated) have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the financial year 2023-2024, your Company added 4 (four) vessels to its fleet and sold 3 (three)
vessels. Your company continued on its path of growth despite higher asset prices, after assessing
opportunities that presented themselves at different times of the year. Your company also used the high
market values of vessels to sell some of its vessels and book significant profits.

Your Company’s performance saw another significant jump, despite an already high base achieved in the
previous year. The global tanker shortage continued to result in incrcased freight rates. The vessels
performing voyage charters saw very high freight earnings throughout the year. Similarly, vessels being
placed on fresh time charter contract during the period, saw significantly higher charter rates being
locked in. Your Company’s agility in balancing the deployment of it vessels between time and voyage
charters allowed it to substantially capitalize on the very good charter market.

Your Company recorded operating turnover of Rs. 1,441.13 crores compared to Rs. 1,152.48 crores in
the previous year. This represents a rise of 25.0% over the previous year. The total revenue of your
Company for the financial ycar 2023-24 was Rs. 1,796.06 crores as compared to Rs. 1,228.21 crores lust
year, a rise of 46.2%. The revenue from other sources has increased to Rs. 354.93 crores during the
financial year 2023-24 as compared to Rs 75.73 crores during the financial year 2022-23.
Simultaneously, the expenditure incurred on operation of shipping activities has increased from Rs.
380.63 crores in the financial year 2022-23 to Rs. 459.56 crores in financial year 2023-24.

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortization (“EBITDA”) increased from Rs. 696.05
crores in financial year 2022-23 to Rs. 1,204.65 crores in financial year 2023-24. There is an increase of
73.1% in EBITDA as compared to previous year. This rise was caused by a significant increase in global
spot and time charter rates for oil and gas tankers along with a large profit on sale of assets. Your
company’s net worth rose to Rs. 1,933.69 crores at the end of financial year 2023-24 as against Rs.
1300.01 crores at the end of the previous year, an increase of 48.7%. Accordingly, the Book Value per
Share was Rs. 337.89 for the financial year 2023-24, as against Rs. 227.17 the previous year, an increase
of 48.7% contributed to primarily by addition of net income during the year under review.

The Profit after Tax in the financial year 2023-24 was Rs. 736.34 crores as against Rs. 302.72 crores in
the previous financial year 2022-23 - a rise of 143.2%. Accordingly, the Basic Earnings per Share were
Rs.128.67 in financial year 2023-24 as against Rs. 52.90 in the previous year 2022-23 - a rise of 143.2.
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A glimpse of the financial position of your Company for financial year 2023-24 as compared to the
financial year 2022-23 is reproduced hereunder:

(Rs. in Crores, except No. of Equity Shares)

Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

Financial Year

Financial Year

Financial Year

Financial Year

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Cash and cash equivalents 1,58.25 177.86 159.76 179.65
Current investments 426.58 25.04 426.58 25.04
Net current assets 686.01 110.74 676.53 108.24
Property, plant and equipment 1,957.66 1,806.21 2,072.21 1,883.83
(including capital work-in-progress)
Right-of-use assets 5.75 10.48 12.61 18.46
Other intangible assets 0.98 0.93 1.24 0.93
Other non-current assets 190.24 162.10 68.77 81.00
Total Assets 3,388.21 2,565.87 3,391.46 2,574.19
Non-current lease liahilities 1.80 4.88 8.69 12.58 |
| Other non-current liabilities 905.15 785.58 905.58 785.58
Retained earnings 1,483.73 938.38 1,467.15 932.68
Equity share capital 57.23 57.23 57.23 57.23
Other reserves and surplus 392.74 304.40 392.74 304.40
(excluding retained earnings)
Total equity 1,933.69 1,300.01 1,917.11 1,294.30
No. of equity shares 5,72,27,550 5,72,27,550 57,227,550 5,72,27,550

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

1) Fleet Acquisitions/Sales

During the financial year 2023-24, your company acquired 4 (four) tankers - all of them medium range
tankers - M.T. Pioneer, M.T. Majesty, M.T. Capital and M.T. Willows. Your Company also sold 3 (three)
tankers - one medium-sized tanker named M.T. Gallant, one handy tanker named M.T. Falcons and one

suezmax tanker named M.T. Classic.

At the end of the financial year 2023-24, your Company owned 25 (twenty-five) ships in total - 21
(twenty-one) product tankers, 2 (two) LPG carriers and 2 (two) crude oil tankers, as against 24 (twenty-
four) ships at the end of the financial year 2023-23. The deadweight capacity of the fleet fell slightly to
1,286,673 MT at the end of financial year 2023-24 as compared to 1,322,228 MT at the end of financial

year 2022-23.

2) Clientele

Our client base for our vessels includes, but is not limited to, Indian Oil Corporation Ltd (I0CL),




Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd (HPCL), Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd (BPCL), Oil and
Natural Gas Corporation (ONGC), Reliance Industries Limited (RIL) and Nayara Energy Limited (NEL).
The other large corporations that your company transports liquid cargoes for are Bharat Oman
Refineries Ltd (BORL), ONGC Petro Additions Limited (OPAL) and Chennai Petroleum Corporation
Limited (CPCL). Your company has also transported liquid products for large foreign companies like Bin
Hilal (An ANOC company]), Kuwait Petroleum Corporation, Vitol and Emirates National Qil Corporation

(ENOC).

IOCL accounted for 23.1% of your company’s revenue, lower than the 27.4% in financial year 2022-23.
Its net revenue contribution, however, increased from Rs. 315.66 crores to Rs. 332.68 crores. BPCL
accounted for 15.3% of revenues, as against 15.5% last year. Its net revenue contribution in financial
year 2023-24 was Rs. 220.13 crores as against Rs. 178.37 crores in financial year 2022-23. HPCL
accounted for 13.0% of revenues, an increase from 9.3% last year. Its net revenue contribution rose
sharply to Rs. 187.74 crores in financial year 2023-24 from Rs. 107.38 crores in financial year 2022-23.
Three of the four newly acquired tankers had been placed on time charter contracts, while M.T. Pioneer

has been placed on a pool contract.

The charter deployment mix saw the company refocusing on time charter deployment of its vessels this
past year. Time chartcrs accounted for about Rs. 1,278.88 crores or 88.7% of operating revenue. Voyage
charters accounted for Rs. 159.81 crores or 11.1% of operating revenue.

3) Liquidity

Your Company'’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, investments and the cash
flow that it generates from its operations. Your Company continues to maintain sufficient cash to meet
its strategic and operational requirements. SISL understands that liquidity in the Balance Sheet must
display a balance between earning adequate returns and the need to cover financial and business

requirements.

Liquidity enables your Company to be agile and ready for meeting unforeseen strategic and business

needs.

As on March 31, 2024, cash and investments stand at Rs. 1,081.27 Crores on a standalone basis and Rs.
1,082.94 Crores on a consolidated basis, as against Rs. 452.59 Crores on a standalone basis and Rs.
454.39 Crores on a consolidated basis as on March 31, 2023.

Consolidated cash and investments, on both standalone and consolidated basis, include deposits with
banks. As a result, liquidity risk of cash and cash equivalents is limited.

The details of these investments are disclosed under the ‘non-current and current investments’ section
in the Standalone and Consolidated financial statements.

4) Capital expenditure on tangible assets - standalone

This year, on a standalone basis, additions to tangible assets was Rs. 808.32 Crores. This comprises Rs.

Py
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807.93 Crores in vessels, Rs. 0.18 Crore in infrastructure, Rs. 0.20 Crores for investment in computer

equipment and software.

In the previous year, your Company’s additions to tangible assets was Rs. 405.84 crores. This comprised
Rs. 401.89 Crores in vessels, Rs. 0.13 Crore in infrastructure, Rs. 0.15 Crores for investment in computer
equipment and software and Rs. 3.67 Crores in vehicles.

5) Capital expenditure on tangible assets - consolidated

This year, on a consolidated basis, additions to tangible assets was Rs. 918.96 Crores. This comprises Rs.
807.93 Crores in vessels, Rs. 4.21 Crores in infrastructure, Rs. 4.52 Crores in Furniture & Fixtures, Rs.
14.37 Crores in Plant, Machinery & Electrical Installations, Rs. 86.37 Crores in Land & Buildings, Rs. 1.33
Crores for investment in computer equipment and software and Rs. 0.23 Crores in vehicles.

In the previous year, we had additions to tangible assets was Rs. 405.88 crores. This comprised Rs.
401.89 Crores in vessels, Rs. 0.13 Crore in infrastructure, Re. 0.15 Crores for investment in computer
equipment and software and Rs. 3.72 Crores in vehicles.

MARKET ANALYSIS

Crude Tanker Market

Crude tanker earnings had surged in financial year 2022-23 to levels last seen in financial year 2008-09,
mainly propelled by sanctions on Russian crude exports. Earnings softened slightly year-over-year (y/y)
in financial year 2023-24 but still sustained strong levels from a historical perspective.

Global crude oil domand witnogcoed a growth of 1% y/y n financial yoar 2022 21. A large part ot the
demand growth was contributed by pent-up Chinese demand post reopening from lockdowns in 2023,

Crude production grew slowly at 1% y/y in financial year 2023-24 and was mainly driven by the
Atlantic basin supply as OPEC+ resorted to voluntary production cuts to defend crude prices.

The Atlantic basin saw sharp growth in crude oil supply (+6% y/y in financial year 2023-24) driven by
US, Brazil and Guyana. US production surprised the markets with nearly a 0.8 million barrels per day
growth y/y, facilitating a record surge in US crude exports. Easing US sanctions also facilitated growth in
Venezuelan crude exports.

The structural dislocation caused by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine in February 2022 continues to benefit
the Aframax and Suezmax tanker segments. US and EU’s efforts to tighten sanctions on the dark fleet, the
lower discount of Urals (vs Brent), and payment issues with India have all made it challenging for
Russian crude exports. Yet Russian seaborne exports increased by approximately 2% in financial year

2023-24.

From early 2024, tanker markets were further buoyed by disruptions as Houthi attacks on ships in the
Red Sea prompted a number of vessels to take the longer route around the Cape of Good Hope.




Overall, the global seaborne crude trade grew by approximately 1.9% y/y during financial year 2023-24,
with trade surpassing the levels last seen pre-pandemic. On the other hand, the crude tanker global fleet
grew by 2.6% in nominal terms during the year. Additionally, due to the earnings differential between
Aframax and Long-range 2 tankers, 40 Long-range 2 tankers switched to dirty trading in financial year
2023-24, adding to the fleet supply. Scrapping activity was negligible.

Product Tanker Market

The product tanker market has been witnessing a prolonged period of firm earnings since early 2022,
following the onset of the Russia-Ukraine war. Like crude tankers, product tanker earnings softened y/y
in financial year 2023-24 but continue to be strong from a historical perspective.

Product tanker markets have been aided by strong refinery throughput, shifts in product trade patterns
due to impacts from the Russia-Ukraine conflict, and the latest trade disruptions from the conflict in the
Red Sea. Seaborne product trade volumes increased by an estimated 3.4% y/y in FY24.

New Middle East refineries in Kuwait, Oman and Iraq have ramped up production, and despite higher
y/y maintenance in Saudi Arabia, Middle East product exports grew by 4% in financial year 2023-24.
Chinese product exports declined by 6% in the absence of any significant increase in export quotas.

Markets in the West fared well as North American exports jumped 4% y/y thanks to sustained demand
from EU and lower unplanned refinery outages in US. Furthermore, the Panama Canal disruption in the
second half of the calendar year 2023 also aided West of Suez product tanker earnings.

In early 2024, product tanker markets saw further upside from vessels rerouting away from the Red Sea
onto longer voyages (via the Cape of Good Hope), which has added additional impetus to an alrcady
tight supply-demand balance. Average product tanker transits through the Suez Canal have dropped by
44% in quarter 4 of the financial year 2023-24.

Product tanker fleet supply grew by 2.3% in nominal terms. As highlighted above, the switching of Long-
range 2 vessels from clean trade to dirty trade has curtailed product fleet growth. Scrapping activity was
also minimal.

LPG Carrier Market

The Very Large Gas Carriers (VLGC) markets continued to sustain the momentum built over the last year
and recorded robust earnings at levels last seen during financial year 2014-15.

Chinese VLGC LPG imports increased by 18% y/y in financial year 2023-24, led by the commissioning of
new propane dehydrogenation (PDH) capacities. India and Southeast Asia also recorded healthy import

growth of 4-6% in financial year 2023-24.

While Middle East LPG exports were muted, the US delivered robust LPG export growth of 10% y/y in
financial year 2023-24, led by strong growth in production and weak domestic consumption. Higher US




propane inventories and strong China demand meant the US-Far East propane price differential jumped
to US$ 234/T in financial year 2023-24 (vs US$ 181/T in financial year 2022-23), thereby aiding firm
VLGC demand for US to Far East (FE) trade.

Moreover, Panama Canal water levels dropped to record low due to severe drought, resulting in
curtailment of daily transits through the canal. Consequently, many vessels plying on the US to Far East
route avoided the Panama Canal and were diverted to a longer route in both laden and ballast legs,

boosting ton-miles growth.

On the supply side, the heavy schedule of new building VLGC deliveries meant that the nominal fleet
supply grew by approx.11% for financial year 2023-24. However, market was able to absorb the new
fleet supply due to rising US LPG exports and Panama Canal disruptions.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Oil demand growth is expected to slow down in financial year 2024-25 as pent-up demand from the
COVID recovery is largely behind us.

Oil balances are expected to tighten significantly in second half of 2024; this may prompt OPEC+ to
reverse some of the voluntary cuts in crude production, resulting in higher exports. Meanwhile, crude
supply from Atlantic basin continues to grow at a strong pace which will aid ton-mile growth as these
barrels have to travel longer to Asia - the key demand centre. OECD crude inventories remains below
historic average levels but high inventory in China remains a key overhang.

Russia continues to remain a wild card due to mounting challenges in sustaining oil exports - threats
include a tightening of sanctions and attacks on its energy infrastructure by Ukraine.

Tanker ton-miles will remain supported as long as the vessels continue to divert trade via Cape of Good
Hope due to Red sea conflict.

Although the orderbook has built up recently, deliveries will remain under check at least in the coming
year. Crude tanker deliveries would be approx. 1% of the fleet over calendar year 2024 while Product
tanker deliveries would be about 2%. At the same time the current tanker fleet is ageing and this,
coupled with new regulations (EEXI/CII), could lead to accelerated scrapping going forward.

The growth of US LPG production is expected to slow down in 2024 due to lower natural gas prices
curtailing natural gas liquids (NGL) output. Utilization at US LPG export terminals remains high, thereby
limiting any significant growth in US LPG exports in the near term. While LPG production growth from
the Middle East is expected to be subdued in the first half of calendar year 2024, any reversal of
production cuts by OPEC could contribute to increased volumes from the second half of calendar year

2024 onwards.

LPG demand is likely to sustain, mainly driven by an increase in feedstock demand in the petrochemical
sector. LPG continues to remain price competitive compared to naphtha. Additionally, the scheduled
commissioning of new PDH plants in China would support an increase in import demand into Asia.




Increased allocation of subsidies in India is also expected to maintain firm demand for Indian LPG
imports. However, poor global petrochemical margins remain a key risk to petrochemical capacity
utilization.

The Panama Canal has gained importance due to the increasing trade between the United States and the
Far East. However, water levels at the canal remain uncertain. The Canal Authority anticipates gradually
restoring the normal capacity of 36 transits per day by 2025, based on expectations of normal rainfall in
2024. If the water level in the Panama Canal normalizes, it could negatively impact ton-miles.

On the positive side, VLGC fleet supply growth will moderate, with only 21 and 13 deliveries expected in
calendar year 2024 and calendar year 2025 respectively, compared to 40 in calendar year 2023.

RESERVES

During the year, Rs. 61.65 crores were transferred from Tonnage Tax Reserve under Section 115VT of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 to General Reserve. The reserves and surplus of your company increased from
Rs. 1,242.78 Crores to Rs. 1,876.46 Crores in the financial year 2023-24.

For complete details on movement in Reserves and Surplus during the financial year ended March 31,
2024, please refer to the ‘Statement of Changes in Equity’ included in the Standalone and Consolidated
financial statements.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors, considering the good performance and a strong cash flow, decided to recommend a
Dividend of Rs. 72 (720%) per Equity Share of the face value of Rs. 10 each out of the Profits for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

The Equity Dividend Outgo for the Financial Year 2023-24 would absorb a sum of Rs. 412 crores. as
against Rs. 103 crores comprising the dividend of Rs. 18 per Equity Share of the face value of Rs. 10 each.
Dividend will be payable subject to approval of Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
deduction of tax at source to those Shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Shareholders.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Conventional return ratios are not appropriate to assess the performance or condition of your Company,

for the following reasons:

1) Avery significant part of the return in shipping comes from the appreciation in the value of the asset
itself. This does not enter the Profit and Loss account except at the time of sale.

2) In recent years, due to the change in accounting standards, your Company’s profits have been
affected very significantly by the movement in exchange rates. This has generally had the effect of
increasing your Company’s profits when the rupee appreciates against the US Dollar, and of
reducing its profits when the rupee depreciates against the US Dollar. In reality, the depreciation of

the rupee against the US Dollar improves the profitability of your Company.
a1




Considering the cyclical and highly volatile nature of the shipping industry, the ability to survive weak
markets, and if possible, even take advantage of them, is critical to success. Your Company has therefore
reflected the key financial ratios applicable to its business under Note 44 of the Financial Statements.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to Section 125 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), all the
unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund established by the Central Government (“IEPF Authority”), upon completion of 7 (seven) years.
Further, according to the IEPF Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or
claimed by the shareholders for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more are also required to be transferred
to the demat account created by the IEPF Authority.

Your Company does not have any unpaid or unclaimed dividend or shares relating thereto which is
required to be transferred to the IEPF Authority till the date of this Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2024, the authorized share capital of your Company stood at Rs. 75,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Seventy Five Crores) consisting of 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crore Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of Rs.
10/- (Rupees Ten) each and paid-up share capital of your Company was Rs. 57,22,75,500/- (Rupees
Fifty Seven Crores Twenty Two Lakhs Seventy Five Thousand Five Hundred Only) consisting of
5,72,27,550 (Five Crores Seventy Two Lakhs Twenty Seven Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty) equity
shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM

Your Company’s total paid up equity shares are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2024. Under the
Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to your Company’s
shares is INE824501017.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Your Company has not provided any Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP); therefore, disclosure
requirement in relation to ESOP under Rule 12(9) and Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not applicable

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, if any are given in the notes to the financial statements.
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DEPOSITS

The Company does not accept and/or renew Fixed Deposits from the general public and shareholders.
There were no over dues on account of principal or interest on public deposits including the unclaimed
deposits at the end of financial year 2023-24 (Previous year Rs. Nil).

SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As on March 31, 2024, your Company has two (2) wholly owned subsidiaries (together referred to as
‘Subsidiaries’). There has been no change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries:

a) Seven Islands Maritime Training Foundation, India

b) Seven Islands Shipping International FZE, United Arab Emirates

A statement pursuant to section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, containing the salient features of the financial statements of your Company’s
Subsidiaries (except Seven Islands Shipping International FZE) has been attached along with this report

as “Annexure-2”.
The summary of performance of the Subsidiaries of your Company 1s as follows:
a) Seven Islands Maritime Training Foundation, India (SIMTF)

SIMTF - a Section 8 company and a wholly owned subsidiary of SISL, was incorporated with a view to
establish Seven Islands Maritime Training Institute (SIMTI) to build under its aegis a trained cadre of
maritime professionals with focus on the requirements of a diverse fleet of vessels. SIMTF has earned a
net loss of Rs. 10.86 crores for the current financial year 2023-24 as against the net loss of Rs. 4.77

crores in the previous ywar.
b) Seven Islands Shipping International FZE, United Arab Emirates (SISI-FZE)

SISI-FZE was incorporated on March 28, 2024 in Dubai, United Arab Emirates to expand the shipping
operations internationally with an aim to position ‘Seven Islands’ group strategically to capture and
cater to the growing market demand for tankers. Since the subsidiary was incorporated in the later days
of the financial year 2023-24, the subsidiary was not operational by March 31, 2024. Accordingly, no
financials for the subsidiary were prepared.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
EXPENDITURE

Conservation of Energy

The Company uses electric energy for its equipment such as air conditioners, computer terminals,
lighting and utilities in the work premises. All possible measures have been taken to conserve energy

whether in offices or on vessels.




o
1. | The steps taken or impact on conservation | Company's operation does not consume
of energy significant amount of energy.
2. | The steps taken by the company for | Not applicable, in view of comments in clause
utilizing alternate sources of energy (i)
3. | The capital investment conservation | Not applicable, in view of comments in clause
| equipment's (1)

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

In financial year 2023-24, the Information Technology (I.T.) department spearheaded several pivotal
initiatives that fortified your Company's technological infrastructure and bolstered its operational
resilience against cyber threats. These endeavors not only facilitated seamless business operations but
also ensured adherence to industry standards, process enhancements and regulatory compliance.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

mSAILOR : The mobile application version of SAILOR has been introduced last year but its has been
enhanced extensively in the financial year 2023-24. This Application helps the business people
quickly refer to any crew either on-board or off-board regarding his details relation to his basic
information, sea experience and appraisal which is very handy for the business people.

Crew Payroll System: One of the major software projects that your Company developed and
implemented is Crew Payroll system. As per Indian regulations, the crew payroll functions are
considerably complicated and its extremely dynamic by nature. Now the crew payroll system is
centralised, moved out of excel operation and all financial transactions along with payslip and Tax
Deducted at Source are derived from the system.

Defect Tracker: To monitor the defect and close them in shortest period, there was a need of
centralised tracking mechanism of each defect. This system developed in-house to capture all types
of defects from all vessels e.g. engineering defect, navigation defect and closure history thereafter, in
one centralized place. This software is used as health monitoring system of the vessels.

Officers’ Load Matrix: This system instantly displays the experience matrix of top 4 crew for the
selected vessel, present on board at any given point of time. The experience matrix is designed as
per SIRE requirement. The system instantly reflects the non-compliance/compliance of actual sea
experience as per the requirement of SIRE regulation.

Integrating Microsoft Dynamics NAVISION with the bank’s payment system: This integration
project is a strategic move to enhance financial operations, reduce manual processing errors, and
ensure secure transactions. SISL is dealing majorly with 4 Banks for payment purpose, both
domestic and international payments. There are multiple stake holders, as there are 4 banks
involved and multiple 1.T. service providers from different banks and the project will go sequentially
with one-by-one bank to complete. This project aims to deliver a robust and efficient solution that
meets the business’s financial management needs while adhering to industry standards and best

practices.




6) Migration from G-suit to Microsoft Office 365: The migration project from Gmail set up to
Microsoft (MS) Office 365 has been initiated by end of financial year 2023-24. The project leads to a
huge change management activity across the Company. As Gmail has been a public email platform,
being a responsible organization it was necessary to migrate to Enterprise platform like Office 365.
This will help the organization to protect the data leakage also will help monitoring data flow
between Company and its business stakeholders.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 of the Act and Rule
8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are mentioned below:

Particulars Amount (Rs. In crores)
F.Y.2023-24 | F.Y.2022-23

(1) Foreign Exchange earned on account of freight, charter hire
earnings, sale proceeds of ships, etc.

(2) Foreign Exchange used including operating expenses, capital
repayment, down payments for acquisition of ships (net of loan), 1,216.93 593.63
interest payment, etc.

993.47 361.63

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has instituted internal financial control systems which are adequate for the nature of its
business and the size of its operations. The policies and procedures adopted by your Company ensure
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information.

Your Company recognizes that the Internal Financial Controls cannot provide absolute assurance of
achieving financial, operational and compliance reporting objectives because of its inherent limitations.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls to future periods are subject to the
risk that the Internal Financial Controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Accordingly, regular
audits and review processes ensure that such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis. Significant
audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee.

The internal audit covering the key business processes of your Company is carried out by a firm of
external Chartered Accountants. The scope of the internal audit exercise including the key business
processes and selected risk areas to be audited is finalized in consultation with the Audit Committee.
The audit reports with significant observations, if any and follow up actions thereon are reported to the
Audit Committee. Shah Shroff & Associates were appointed as the internal auditors of the Company for
the financial year 2023-24.

No reportable material weakness or significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
financial controls were observed during the year.




The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Uday Manohar Gore, Ms. Sanjeevlata Samdani, both are
Independent Directors and Mr. Sujit Govindrao Parsatwar, who is the Non-Executive Director on the

Board of your Company.
RISKS AND CONCERNS

Your Company has carried out a detailed exercise to identify the various risks faced by your Company
and has put in place mitigation, control and monitoring plans for each of the risks. Risk owners have
been identified for each risk, and these risk owners are responsible for controlling the respective risks.
The efficacy of these processes is monitored on a regular basis for the different areas in order to make

continuous improvement.
The material risks and challenges faced by your Company are as follows:

1) Economic Risk

Shipping is a global business whose performance is closely linked to the state of the global economy.
Therefore, if global economic growth is adversely impacted, it could have an unfavourable effect on the

state of the shipping market.
2) Geo-Political Risk

OPEC nations control more than one third of the world oil supply. Therefore, their decision on whether
to comply with (or extend) crude production targets can have a material impact on the crude, product
and LPG freight markets. Many of the countries producing and exporting crude oil are politically volatile.
Any change in the political situation in these countries may alter the supply-demand scenario. This
would have a consequential impact on the tanker market.

Issues such as sanctions and wars may also affect shipping markets.

3) Chinese Economy

China has been a major driver of global growth especially for commodities. If the economy falters or
changes its policy towards import of various goods, the consequential damage to shipping will be

significant.
4) Trade Barriers

Trade disputes between countries can turn into trade wars with erection of tariff and non-tariff barriers.
The manner in which such barriers are implemented could have significant impact on trade volumes and

routes.




CHALLENGES FACED BY THE SHIPPING BUSINESS

1)} Earnings Volatility

The shipping industry is a truly global business with a host of issues potentially impacting the supply
demand balance of the industry. This results in tremendous volatility in freight earnings and asset

values.
Your Company attempts to manage that risk in various ways.

If your Company believes that the freight market could weaken, it may enter into time charter contracts
ranging from 6 months to 3 years. Another method of managing risk is by adjusting the mix of assets in
the fleet through sale or purchase of ships.

Your Company alsn ensures thar assets are honght at cheap prices as capital cost ie a major cost
component. Your Company hopes to weather the depressed markets better than most players in the
business by having among the lowest fleet break-evens.

2) Liquidity Risk

The sale and purchase market and time charter markets are not always liquid. Therefore, there could be
times when your Company is not able to position the portfolio in the ideal manner.

3) Finance Risk

Your Company’s business is predominantly USD denominated as freight rates are determined in USD
and so ate ship values. Your Company has its liabilities alsv denominated 1n USD. Any signiticant
movement in currency or interest rates could meaningfully impact the financials ot your Company.

4) Shipboard Personnel

Indian officers continue to be in great demand all over the world. Given the unfavourable taxes on a
seafarer sailing on an Indian flagged vessel, it is becoming increasingly difficult to source officers
capable of meeting the modern day challcnges of worldwide trading. Since the onset of the COVID-19
pandemic it has been very difficult to carry out crew changes due to the travel restrictions across the

world.
5) Cybersecurity Risk

A new and worrying threat to your Company’s business is cyber risk. Your Company is taking steps to
secure its assets and systems from this threat, including by having suitable protection in place and by
constant training to employees on how to avoid such issues.




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by your Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015. The audited Consolidated Financial Statements together with Auditors’ Report thereon are
being submitted to the shareholders along with this Director’s Report.

The group recorded a consolidated net profit of Rs. 725.79 crores for the financial year under review as
compared to net profit of Rs. 298.04 crores for the previous financial year. The net worth of the group as
on March 31, 2024 was Rs. 1917.09 crores as compared to Rs. 1294.31 crores for the previous financial

year.

The summarized Consolidated Financial Statement is provided above in ‘Financial Results’ point of this

Report.
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors has formed and approved a Risk Management Policy to manage and monitor the
risks affecting the operations of your Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the risk management policy and
ensuring its effectiveness. The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks
and controls. The major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed
through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

The Risk Management Policy as approved by the Board can be found on the website of your Company at

https://www.sishipping.com/ .

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has established a vigil mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) for Directors and employees
to report genuine concerns. The Whistle Blower Policy provides for adequate safeguards against
victimisation of persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the

Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.

A copy of the Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of your Company:

https://www.sishipping.com/.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Your Company’s philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other
employees is based on the commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. Your Company
has adopted Nomination & Remuneration Policy which is aligned to this philosophy. The key factors
considered in formulating the Policy are as under:

1) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and




motivate Directors to run your Company successfully;

2) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

3) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of your Company and its goals and also taking into consideration, the performance of
your Company during the year and for the Managing and Executive Directors on certain parameters,
such as condition of the industry, achievement of budgeted targets, growth & diversification,
remuneration in other companies of comparable size and complexity, performance of the directors
at meetings of the Board and of the Board Committees etc.

The nomination & remuneration policy as approved by the Board of Directors of your Company is placed
on your Company’s website littps: / /www.sishipping.com/.

DETAILS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Directors

At SISL the Board of Directors are at the helm of the Company’s strategic supervision and the custodians
of corporate governance. The Board sets out the overall corporate objectives and provides direction and
Independence to the Management to achieve these objectives for value creation through sustainable
profitable growth. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and
sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
We are fortunate to have a Board that is diverse, active, independent and collegial and provides valuable
insights fulfilling its oversight role objectively Size and Composition of the Board.

SISL’s Board represents an optimal mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors (including
Independent Directors), which is compliant with the Act.

()  As on March 31, 2024, the Company has 7 (seven) directors, consisting of 1 (one) Executive
Director, 3 (three} Independent Directors [including 1 (one) Independent Women Director], 1
(one) Non-Executive Nominee Director, 2 (two) Non-Executive, Non-Independent directors. The
Chairman of your Company is an Executive Director. The profiles of Directors can be found on
https://www.sishipping.com/. The composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions
of the Act.

(i) Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined under Section 149(6) of the Act
along with Rules framed thereunder. Based on the declarations received from the Independent
Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as
mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Act and that they are independent of the management.
Further, the Independent Directors have included their names in the data bank of Independent
Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the
Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
as amended.

(iii) The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge,
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skills, experience, diversity and independence. The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance,
objective and an independent view to the Company’s management while discharging its fiduciary
responsibilities, thereby ensuring that the management adheres to high standards of ethics,
transparency and disclosure.

(v) During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, and reimbursement of

expenses, if any.

At the 21st Annual General Meeting held on October 20, 2023, Capt. Thomas Wilfred Pinto (DIN:
00053721) was re-appointed as a Director (Executive Category) of your Company, liable to retire by
rotation, in accordance with the provisions of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capt. Thomas Wilfred Pinto resigned from the post of Chairman and Managing Director of your
Company and took a non-executive position on the Board. Mr. Clayton Lawrence Pinto was appointed as
the Managing Director of the Company for a period of three (3) consecutive years in addition to his role
as Chief Executive Officer effective May 01, 2024. These changes on the Board of your Company have
been approved by the shareholders at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on May 24, 2024.

In accordance with the provisions of section 152(6) of the Act, Mr. Sumit Maheshwari, Nominee Director
shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of your Company and being eligible, has
offered himself for re-appointment.

The first term of affice of Mr. Anil Laxuan Devli as Independent Director of the Company will expire nn
September 30, 2024. The proposal to re-appoint him as Independent Director of the Company for a
second term of five (5) years willi effect from October 01, 2024 by passing a speclal resolution 1s being
placed in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

All the directors of your Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as
director pursuant to Section 164 of the Act.

Key Managerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2024, your Company had four (4) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in terms of Section
2(51) and Section 203 of the Act as mentioned below:

1)} Capt. Thomas Wilfred Pinto - Managing Director

2) Mr. Clayton Lawrence Pinto - Chief Executive Officer

3) Mr. Warren Pinto - Chief Financial Officer and

4) Mr. Jay Parekh - Company Secretary.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149
(6) OF THE ACT

Pursuant to rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, every
Independent Director is required to make an online application to Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs
for inclusion of his name in the data bank for Independent Directors. Your Company has received the




confirmation in this regard from all Independent Directors of your Company along with the declaration
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of section

149 of the Act.

In view of the above provisions, your Company has following Independent Directors on the date of this

report:
Sr. No. Name of the Independent Director Date of Appointment
1. Mr. Uday Manohar Gore August 17,2017
. Ms. Sanjeevlata Samdani February 06, 2021
3. Mr. Anil Laxman Devli August 20, 2021

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD’S PERFORMANCE

The annual performance evaluation of Board, its Committees (namely, Audit, Nomination &
Remuneration and Corporate Social Responsibility) and all the Directors individually, including the
Chairman of the Board 1s done 1n accordance with the Pertormance Evaluation Framework adopted by
the Board on recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The Performance
Evaluation Framework lays down the performance paramcters and the process of performance

evaluation to be followed.

In accordance with the Performance Evaluation Framework, Performance Evaluation Forms were
circulated to all the Directors to record their evaluation of the Board, its Committees and the Non-
Executive Directors including the Chairman for the financial year 2023-24.

At a separate meeting, Independent Directors reviewed the performance of the Company, the Board and
its Committees and Non-Independent Directors (including Chairman) of thc Company. The Nomination
& Remunerativu Cotmillee reviewed e pecfonmance of the Company and every Director. The Board of
Directors reviewed the performance of the Company, the Board and its Committees and every Director
individually, after considering the recommendations of the Independent Direclors and Nomination &
Remuneration Committee.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & ITS COMMITTEES

Five (5) Board meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed
one hundred and twenty days, as prescribed in Companies Act, 2013. The Board meetings were held on
June 06, 2023, September 26, 2023, December 05, 2023, January 25, 2024 and March 19, 2024. The
necessary quorum was present for all the Board meetings.

The Board meetings are governed by a structured agenda. The agenda for the Board meeting is
circulated to the Board of Directors, in advance, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Secretarial Standards prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. All items of agenda
are backed by comprehensive background for enabling the Board to take informed decisions.

The details of the meetings of the board of directors and its committees along with the attendance of
Directors at such meetings is as follows:




Capt.
Date Meeting Thomas | Mr. Sujit Mr. Sumit Uday | Sanjeevlata | Anil
Wilfred | Parsatwar | Maheshwari | Gore Samdani Devli
Pinto
Nomination &
Remuneration N.A. v N.A. v v N.A.
Committee Meeting
Audit Committee NA. v NA. v v NA.
06.06.2023 Meeting
Corporate Social
Responsibility v v N.A. v N.A. NA.
Committee Meeting
Board Meeting v v v v v v
Nomination &
Remuneration N.A. v N.A. v v N.A.
Committee Meeting
Audit Committee
) N.A. v N.A. v v N.A.
26.09.2023 Meeting
Corporate Social
Responsibility v v N.A. v N.A. N.A.
Committee Meeting
Board Meeting v v v 4 4 v
Nomination &
Remuneration N.A. v N.A. v v N.A.
Committee Meeting
05.12.2023 Audit Committee NA. v NA. v v NA.
Meeting
Corporate Social
Responsibility v v N.A. v N.A. N.A.
Committee Meeting
Board Meeting v v v v v x
25.01.2024 Board Meeting v v v v v v
Nomination &
Remuneration N.A. v N.A. v v N.A.
Committee Meeting
Audit Con_1m1ttee NA v NA v v NA
19.03.2024 Meeting
Corporate Social
Responsibility 4 v N.A. v N.A. N.A.
Committee Meeting
Board Meeting v v v v v v

* N.A. denotes that a particular director was/is not a member of the particular committee.




SEPARATE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

During the year, separate meeting of Independent Directors of your Company without the presence of
the Non-Independent Directors and members of management was held on March 22, 2024, as required
under schedule 1V to the Act (Code for Independent Directors). At the said meeting, the Independent

Directors:
1)} reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole including

Committees of the Board;

2) reviewed the performance of the Chairman of your Company, taking into account the views of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors;

3) assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between your Company
management and the Board of Directors that is necessary for the Board of Directors to effectively
and reasonably perform their duties.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARDOF DIRECTORS

To focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters, the Board of
Directors have constituted few committees with specific terms of reference/scope. The committees
operate as empowered agents of the Board as per their terms of reference. The inputs and details
required for their decisions are provided by the executives/management. The minutes of the meetings
of all committees of the Board are circulated to the Directors or placed before the Board for

discussions/noting.

As per the provisions of the Act, as on date of this report, the Board has the following Committees:

A. Audit Committee
B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

The terms of reference and the role of Committees of the Board are as under:

A. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of members who possess financial and accounting expertise/exposure.
The Audit Committee presently comprises of Mr. Uday Manohar Gore (Chairman of the Committee), Mr.
Sujit Govindrao Parsatwar and Ms. Sanjeevlata Samdani. The Company Secretary of your Company
serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee

were accepted by the Board.

The details of the meetings of the Audit Committee along with the attendance of the committee
members are provided in ‘Meetings of the Board & its Committees’ section of this Report.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise your Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process and, inter-alia, performs the

following functions:




1)

2)

3)
4)
5)
6)

7)
8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

B.

The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of your

company.

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit

process.
Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of your company with related parties.
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of your company, wherever it is necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.
Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Oversee ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ and complaints registered under this policy.

Call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit, including
the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the
Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the

management of your company.

To investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in (1) to (8) above or referred to it
by the Board and for this purpose shall have power to obtain professional advice from external
sources and have full access to information contained in the records of your company.

Any other related matters as required by law or as recommended by the Board.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently comprises of Mr. Uday Manohar Gore
(Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Sujit Govindrao Parsatwar and Ms. Sanjeevlata Samdani. The
Company Secretary of your Company serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee. All the
recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were accepted by the Board.

The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, includes:

1)

Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal. Further it has been attached with a wider responsibility of carrying out evaluation of
every director’s performance. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employee
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2) Recommend to Board the appointment and removal of directors and key managerial personnel.

3} Specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual
directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or
by an independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance.

4) Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees.

C.  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee presently comprises of Mr. Clayton Lawrence Pinto
(Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Sujit Govindrao Parsatwar and Mr. Uday Manohar Gore. The Company
Secretary of your Company serves as the secretary of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. All
the recommendations made by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were accepted by the
Board.

The scope and functions of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in accordance with Section 135
of the Act. Its terms of reference include the following:

1) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which will
indicate the activities to be undertaken by your Company in accordance with Schedule VII of the Act;

2) To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on activities to be undertaken

by your Company;
3) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of your Company from time to time; and

4) Any other matter as the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee may deem appropriate after
approval of the Board of Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

Messrs S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration Number 324982E/E300003)
were re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a second term of five (5)
years from the conclusion of the 18th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 30, 2020 until
the conclusion of the 23rd AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2025.

The Auditors’ Report for FY 2023-24 is unmodified i.e. it does not contain any qualification, reservation,
adverse remark or disclaimer.




Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Messrs Jaiprakash
R. Singh & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice Number: 4412) to undertake

the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Company has annexed to this Board’s Report as “Annexure-5”, a Secretarial Audit Report for the
Financial Year 2023-24 given by the Secretarial Auditor.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or

disclaimer.
Internal Auditors

In terms of section 138 of the Act read with rule 13 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 on the
recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has re-appointed Messrs. Shah Shroff &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 0128920W) as the Internal Auditor of
your Company for the financial year 2023-24.

COST RECORDS & COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section
148(1) of the Act are not applicable for the business activities carried out by your Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In line with the requirements of the Act, as amended, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related
Party Transactions for identifying, reviewing, approving and monitoring of Related Party Transactions
and the same can be accessed on the Company’'s website at https://www.sishipping.com/.

During the year under review, all Related Party Transactions that were entered into were in the
Ordinary Course of Business and at Arms’ Length Basis. All transactions entered into with related
parties were approved by the Audit Committee.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties in Form AOC 2 is annexed herewith as

“Annexure-3",

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has complied with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Council of the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.




HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT & TRAINING

Your Company continues to be assured by competence and commitment of the people. The working
climate of your Company continues to remain harmonious with focus on improving Productivity, Quality
and Safety. Health and Safety of the employees and its associates we work with remains as our
paramount importance. Your Company ensures that operations are carried out as per the safety
guidelines and procedures in place which are regularly updated. The Company had 126 employees as on
March 31, 2024. Efforts are continuously made to strengthen organizational culture in order to attract
and retain best talent in the industry. The Board appreciates the commitment and support of the
employees and look forward to their continued support.

SISL employees are its most important assets. Your Company is committed to hiring and retaining the
best talent and being among the industry’s leading employers. For this, your Company focuses on
promoting a collaborative, transparent and participative organization culture, and rewarding merit and
sustained high performance. SISL’s human resources management focuses on allowing its employees to
develop their skills, grow in their career and navigate their next.

During the financial year 2023-24, as the pandemic effect waned, the offshore sector has been on a path
to recovery and is expected to continue its momentum and improve further. This has resulted in a
crunch in availability of competent and qualified offshore personnel. Your company has ensured that
there is no disruption in operations due to unavailability of personnel while maintaining competitive
wage levels. To ensure that there is no capability gap due to higher than usual attrition and change in
personnel on board, focussed efforts have been taken for training personnel on Company’s operations
and safety procedures.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

With a view to create safe workplace, your Company has formulated and implemented Sexual
Harassment (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Policy in accordance with the requirement of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH
Act). For the purpose of handling and addressing complaints regarding sexual harassment, your
Company has constituted Internal Complaint Committee with an external lady representative as a
member of the Committee. To build awareness in this area, your Company also conducts awareness
programmes within the orgamsatlon The policy framed by the Company under the POSH Act is available
on the Company’s website at https: //www.sishipping.com/.

During the year, no complaints with allegations of sexual harassment were received by your Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act,
read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and other particulars of employees drawing
remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules forms part of this report as “Annexure-1".




ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of Annual Return in Form MGT-7 as required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, is
available on the Company’s website: hitps://www.sishipping.coni/.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

Your Company has always been conscious of its role as a good corporate citizen and strives to fulfil this
role by running its business with utmost care for the environment and all the stakeholders. Your
Company looks at Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities as a significant tool to contribute to

the society.

The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted a Committee of Directors, known as the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, currently comprising of Mr. Clayton Lawrence Pinto
(Chairperson), Mr. Sujit Govindrao Parsatwar and Mr. Uday Manohar Gore to steer its CSR activities.

The CSR Policy is also available on the website of your Company: hitps://www.sishipping.con/.

During the financial year 2023-24, Rs. 2.95 crores were contributed by your Company for undertaking
various CSR activities as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is enclosed herewith as “Annexure-4".
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements of clause (c) of sub-section 3 and sub-section 5 of section 134 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), the Board of Directors hereby state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) they have selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

c¢) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e} they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and are operating effectively.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THIS REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statement relates and date of this Report.




SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

During the year under review, no significant material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations. However, Shareholders’
attention is drawn to the Statement on Contingent Liabilities and Commitments in the Notes forming

part of the financial statements.
REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor have not reported any
instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee
under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

PROCEEDINGS UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year under review, there were no proceedings that were filed by the Company or against the
Company, which are pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. 2016. as amended. hefore

National Company Law Tribunal or other Courts.

VAILTIATION

During the year under review, there were no instances of onetime settlement with any Banks or
Financial Institutions.

GENERAL

Your Divectors state that no disclosure ur reporting ie required 1n rospect of the tollowing items as there
were no transactions/events on these items during the year under review:

1) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

2) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares & Employees’ Stock Options Scheme) to employees of

your Company under aiy schiemne.
3) The Managing Director of your Company has not received any remuneration or commission from

your Company’s subsidiary.
4) There has been no change in the nature of business of your Company.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The additional information required to be given under the Act and the Rules made thereunder, has been
laid out in the Notes attached to and forming part of the Financial Statements. The Notes to the Financial
Statements referred to the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further explanation.

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors express their sincere thanks to all customers, charterers, vendors, shipping agents,




bankers, insurance companies, protection and indemnity clubs, consultants and advisors for their

continued support throughout the year.

The Directors also thank the Government of India, Governments of various states in India and concerned
Government departments and agencies for their co-operation.

The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by all our employees and their families, and
the contribution made by every other member of the SISL family, for making the Company what it is.

r jthe/Board of Directors
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Ma aging Director and CEO
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Dale: Seplember 11, 2024
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Registered Office:

Suite 3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, Times Square,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai 400 059.

CIN: U61100MH2002PLC13b6Y 334

Tel: +91 22 4225 4225
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ANNEXURE-1

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Information as per Rule 5 (2) and Rule 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

el

Below is a list of employees who have served their services to the Company for the full financial year and
remuneration of not less than Rupees One Crore & Two Lakh or have served the Company for less than a year and
received remuneration of not less than Rupees Eight Lakhs & Fifty Thousand per month:

Remuneration .
received Experience Details of last Date of
Sl Name/Designation/Age of the . . . P employment
during the Qualifications of the e . commencement
No employee . . before joining to
Financial Year employee of employment
the Company
(InRs.)
# Thomas Wilfred Pinto
Designation: Chai & M i Mast
1, | estenation: Lhairman & Managing 6,00,00,000 raster 40+Years | Mercator LinesLtd. | 02/05/2002
Director * Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 64 Years
# Clayton Lawrence Pinto M.Sc
2 Designahinn: Chict Exeentive Nificar A 1,50,00,000 | International 10+ Years N.A. 01/04/2012
Age. 31 Years Shippimg
# Pradeep Correa Master The Great Lastein
3. Designation: Chief Operating Officer 1,42,10,194 Mariner (F.G.) 40+ Years Shipping Company 01/07/2020
Age: 63 Years h Limited
# Suboth K
Desl; r(:;tio:-mar Vice President Class I~ MTM Ship
1 Techgnica] ) 1,10,35,416 Marine 40+ Years Management India 07/12/2020
Engi Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 64 Years ngineer ve.L
# Nilkanth
DcN ?yant' lxlxkinn iot General M BE Electronics, Arya Tank
= signation. oenul Leneral Mandget 1.0A.A% 107 PEIM In M1 Yourn _rya at-] (-EI‘S 30,/10,/2017
- Lommercial . Private Limited
) Maikeling
Age: 43 Years
* Anil Kumar Sharma Master Synergy Occanic
). Designation: Master 1,01,37,433 . 22 Years Services India 15/07/2023
Mariner (F.G.} ] o
Age: 54 Years Private Limited
* Kuldeep Singh Sangwan
Mast Fleet M t
.| Designation: Master 98,83,333 Caster 27 Years eet Managemen 20/10/2021
Mariner (F.G.) India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 38 Years
* Virendra K Sh ClassI-
frendra umar sharma as8 MMS Maritime India
Designation: Chief Engineer 95,33,333 Marine 5 Years . .. 20/08/2018
. Private Limited
Age: 33 Years Engineer
* Gautam Prasad Master Executive Ship
Designation: Master 95,20,833 . 35 Years Management Pvt. 24/02/2023
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 61 Years Ltd.
* Devendra Kumar Master Shipping
). | Designation: Master 90,78,534 . 20 Years Corporation of India 01/04/2022
Mariner (F.G.) .
Age: 47 Years Limited




* Gyanendra B. Singh

World Tankers

Mast
11. | Designation: Master 87,71,667 o 32 Years Management 01/04/2023
Mariner (F.G.) . o
Age: 52 Years Private Limited
* Deepak Eliazer Michael Master Aurum Marine
12. | Designation: Master 87,17,000 Mariner (F.G.) 28 Years Management 23/03/2022
Age: 49 Years o Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Santosh Keshav Phadtare ClassI - Shipping
13. | Designation: Chief Engineer 84,96,666 Marine 21 Years Corporation of India 23/03/2022
Age: 47 Years Engineer Limited
* Sujit Kumar Verma
Mast Azimuth
14. | Designation: Master 83,66,000 Caster 24 Years “mt 02/12/2022
Mariner (F.G.) Management
Age: 48 Years
* Pranab Chakraborti
Mast V Ships India Pvt.
15. | Designation: Master 78,56,666 i 25 Years SSRGS 02/02/2023
Mariner (F.G.) Ltd.
Age: 52 Years
* Devendra Kumar Master Shipping
16. | Designation: Master 78,46,667 . 21 Years Corporation of India 17/11/2021
Mariner (F.G.) .
Age: 47 Years Limited
* Chapal Kumar Sinha Roy ClassI-
17. | Designation: Chief Engineer 78,37,500 Marine 33 Years MMSI India 15/05/2023
Age: 65 Years Engineer
* Abhishek Anand Class 1 - Anglo Eastern Ship
18. | Designation: Second Engineer 78,20,000 Marine 11 Years Management 19/03/2022
Age: 31 Years Engineer Private Limited
* Jitendra Kumar Prasad Master
19. | Designation: Master 75,62,500 . 22 Years Dynacom Tankers 03/03/2021
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 44 Years
* Swapnil Dilip Mahaplarkar Master MSI Shipping
20. | Designation: Master 74,68,000 . 16 Years Services India Pvt. 20/05/2022
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 36 Years Ltd.
* Tyt .
D1¥1p Pr.atap S}}ahl Chief Officer The G.reat Eastern
21. | Designation: Chief Officer 74,62,333 Master 25 Years Shipping Company 13/06/2019
Age: 35 Years Limited
* Ratan Kumar Ghosh Class - Shipping
22. | Designation: Chief Engineer 73,70,000 Marine 25 Years Corporation of India 10/11/2021
Age: 49 Years Engineer Limited
B d Sch
* Biswajit Roy ClassI - Sl?:n:ljl;a Zmuel:’et
23. | Designation: Chief Engineer 72,23,333 Marine 18 Years Iri)dia Pvi Ltd 13/04/2022
Age: 44 Years Engineer )
* Niraj Kumar Singh Master Marshal Ship
24. | Designation: Master 71,24,833 . 31 Years Management Pvt. 22/07/2023
Mariner (F.G.) Ltd

Age: 52 Years




* Virendra Vishwakarma

Mast
25. | Designation: Master 70,23,333 . = 23 Years MMS! India 19/11/2022
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 43 Years
* (zajjala Manohar Babu Master MTM Ship
26. | Designation: Master 68,68,670 . 34 Years Management Pte. 24/10/2018
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 52 Years Ltd.
* Anindya Ghose Class1- Shipping
27. | Designation: Chief Engineer 68,20,000 Marine 18 Years Corporation of India 21/07/2021
Age: 45 Years Engineer Limited
* Chalapati Rao Bagadi Class - Aurum Marine
28. | Designation: Chief Engineer 66,78,333 Marine 15 Years Management 06/08/2018
Age: 39 Years Engineer Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Gavin Dennis ClassII - The Great Eastern
29. | Designation: Second Engineer 66,54,000 Marine 15 Years Shipping Company 11/03/2022
Age: 39 Years Engineer Limited
* 1 I .
Vn.'endt?r Kum?lr Shar.ma Class_ MMS Maritime
30. | Designation: Chief Engineer 65,66,666 Marine 10 Years (India) Pvt. Ltd 24/08/2018
Age: 33 Years Engineer B
* Jagdish Kumar Nandavarapu Class1 - Andromeda
31. | Designation: Chief Engineer 64,66,667 Marine 19 Years Shipping (India) Pvt. 07/07/2017
Age; 40 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Ratan Kumar Ghosh ClassI- Shipping
32. | Designation: Chief Engineer 63,61,600 Marine 25 Years Corporation of India 10/11/2021
Age: 48 Years Engineer Limited
* Dipankar Roy Class I - .
Pent M
33. | Designation: Chief Engineer 61,02,000 Marine 27 Years S e 05/06/2022
. Services Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 55 Years Engineer
* Saurabh Mohan Gujar
Chief Offi D Shipping Pvt.
34. | Designation: Chief Officer 60,88,833 et Utiicer 12 Years arya >hipping 24/02/2023
Master Ltd.
Age: 32 Years
— ; .
Su_rmde_r Pal Sl.ngh _ Class. I VR Maritime
35. | Designation: Chief Engineer 59,36,667 Marine 26 Years . 24/03/2021
. Services Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 66 Years Engineer
* Alakh Kumar Class1-
36. | Designation: Chief Engineer 59,20,000 Marine 19 Years Shan Shipping 01/06/2021
Age: 40 Years Engineer
* Satbir Singh Lohan Master
37. | Designation: Master 57,89,333 Mariner (F.G.) 22 Years Castle Ships Pvt. Ltd. 31/03/2021
Age: 59 Years h
* Rajendra Kumar Khichar .
Chief Offi Fleet M t
40. | Designation: Chief Officer 56,40,000 i = e 11 Years eet Yanagemen 25/06,/2022
Master India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 31 Years
* Sanjay Kumar . o
. . Master Phelix Shipping
; tion: 55,95,833 i 22Y 2 2
41 Designation: Master 58 Mariner (F.G.) ears Ventures Pvt. Ltd. 8/09/2022

Age: 50 Years




* Rajesh Pathazhaparambil

Age: 64 Years

Kamalan ClassI- Anglo Eastern Ship
42. . . . . 55,25,000 Marine 22 Years Management India 19/08/2021
Designation: Chief Engineer Engineer Pt Ltd
Age: 51 Years & T
* Rajender Tiwari
Mast ic Shippi
43. | Designation: Master 55,00,000 raster 18 Years Oceanic Shipping 15/03/2021
Mariner (F.G.) Services
Age: 46 Years
* Rajesh Kumar Master Nyk Ship
44. | Designation: Master 54,83,333 . 25 Years Management Pte. 09/08/2023
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 45 Years Ltd.
* Mukesh Kumar Srivastava Class - Bernhard Schulte
45. | Designation: Chief Engineer 53,33,333 Marine 43 Years Shipmanagement 26/07/2021
Age: 65 Years Engineer India Pvt. Ltd.
* Sushil Kumar Gautam ClassIi - Fleet Management
46. | Designation: 2Nd Engineer 52,50,000 Marine 14 Years . & 09/12/2021
. India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 45 Years Engineer
* Sachchidanand Upadhyay ClassTi~ Shipping
47. | Designation: 2Nd Engineer 51,00,000 Marine 25 Years Corporation of India 07/09/2022
Age: 51 Years Engineer Limited
* Samuel Dorman Class1- Active Marine Pyt
48. | Designation: Chief Engineer 50,33,333 Marine 38 Years Ltd ) 15/04/2023
Age: 62 Years Engineer )
* Amiruddin Ali Bhombal Master
49. | Designation: Master 49,33,333 . 39 Years Castle Ships Pvt. Ltd. 24/06/2023
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 63 Years
*p d ippi
r:’:lsen .Chan r.a Chief Officer Shlppmg '
50. | Designation: Chief Officer 49,01,667 Master 11 Years Corporation of India 27/09/2023
Age: 33 Years Limited
* Praveen Bakshi ClassI- Fleet Manage ‘
L e en
51. | Designation: Chief Engineer 49,00,000 Marine 43 Years SRASEST 20/10/2023
. India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 65 Years Engineer
* Avijit Halder ClassI- Shipping
52. | Designation: Chief Engineer 48,60,000 Marine 34 Years Corporation of India 16/03/2021
Age: 59 Years Engineer Limited
* Arun Kumar Patta Classi- Fleet Management
53. | Designation: Chief Engineer 48,00,000 Marine 26 Years . B 15/07/2021
. India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 52 Years Engineer
* Rajeev Shrivastava ClassI- . .
. . ; . . Selandia Ship
54. | Designation: Chief Engineer 47,84,167 Marine 41 Years 04/06/2023
. Management
Age: 65 Years Engineer
* Shamsher Bahadur Singh ClassI- Torm Shipping India
55. | Designation: Chief Engineer 47,66,667 Marine 37 Years Ptepi’t dg 04/11/2022
Age: 65 Years Engineer B
* Raja Mohammad Akram Class1- Anglo-Eastern Ship
56. | Designation: Chief Engineer 46,66,667 Marine 31 Years Management Pvt. 03/07/2022
Age: 52 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Ajay Kumar
57. | Designation: Master 46,34,000 iaster 43 Years Epic Gas Ltd 21/12/2021
’ gn ) — Mariner (F.G.) )




* Ashoke Sengupta Class - Fleet Management
58. | Designation: Chief Engineer 46,33,333 Marine 32 Years . s 05/04/2023
. India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 58 Years Engineer
* Sanjeev Sharma Master Eastern Pacific
59. | Designation: Master 43,66,667 . 38 Years Shipping India Pvt. 04/06/2023
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 62 Years Ltd.
* Ranajit Kumar Das Class1- Jubilant Ship
60. | Designation: Chief Engineer 43,15,000 Marine 33 Years Management Pvt. 09/05/2022
Age: 57 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Pazhanivel Ananthan Master Suntech Ship
61. | Designation: Master 43,05,000 . 31 Years Management Pvt. 28/11/2023
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 55 Years Ltd.
* Gurteg Singh Gill Class Ii - Eastern Pacific
62. | Designation: 2Nd Engineer 42,90,000 Marine 14 Years Shipping India Pvt. 22/04/2023
Age: 37 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Singlal Kuttappen Suseela Master Shipping
63. | Designation: Master 42,78,333 ) 28 Years Corporation of India 18/09/2022
Mariner (F.G.) .
Age: 50 Years Limited
* Sundeep Dutt
Master V Ships India Pvt.
64. | Designation: Master 42,66,667 raster 38 Years 5 —— 24/11/2023
Mariner (F.G.) Ltd.
Age: 61 Years
" Al Joshl Llagg | Lyncrgy Maritime
65. | Designation: Chief Engineer 42,50,000 Marine 20 Years Recruitment 24/01/2022
Age: 45 Years Engineer Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Singh Nagendra Mohan Class1- Shipping
66. | Designation: Chief Engineer 40,66,666 Marine 41 Years Carporation of India 23/05/2023
Age: 64 Years Engineer Limited
* Cl -
Ar}ln Kl.xmar ]l?a ' assl VR Maritime _ N
a7 Nesignation: Chisf Rngineer 29,90,000 Marine 15 Yoars . 29/09/2020
L Services Pyl Lid,
Age: 38 Years Engineer
* Capt. Tanuj Gera Master Wideshine
68. | Designalion: Master 39,60,000 ) 18 Years Management Pte. 10/05/2023
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 38 Years Ltd.
* Saket Sunil Gothe Master MTM
69. | Designation: Master 38,66,667 Mariner (F.G.) 16 Years Shipmanagement 15/12/2022
Age: 38 Years h Indian Pte. Ltd.
* Sanjeew Kumar Roy Master Uniship
70. | Designation: Master 38,66,667 . 41 Years Management Pvt. 29/11/2022
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 65 Years Lid.
* Asit Kumar Bhattacharya ClassI- Integrity Shins Pyt
71. | Designation: Chief Engineer 37,80,000 Marine 43 Years G t{t . PSEVE 1 28/06/2022
Age: 67 Years Engineer '
b h I-
Uc?aya ].Shanu S ety . Class. Active Marine
72. | Designation: Chief Engineer 37,61,333 Marine 35 Years . .. 22/08/2023
. Private Limited
Age: 59 Years Engineer
* Rajesh Anant Anant Bandekar Class1- The Great Eastern
73. | Designation: Chief Engineer 36,89,000 Marine 33 Years Shipping Company 20/12/2023
Age: 58 Years Engineer Limited
" Dominic Gomes Master Buena Vista
74. | Designation: Mast 36,66,667 , 41Y . 02/10/2023
) it Mariner {F.G.) ears Shipping LLP /10/

Age: 62 Years




* Onkar Chand Verma

Master

Medallion Marine

75. | Desi ion: M ,02,00 . 2 05/202
5 esignation: Master 36,0 0 Mariner (F.G.) 6 Years Pt Ltd. 05/05/2022
Age: 64 Years
* Thomas John Class1- Shipping
76. | Designation: Chief Engineer 35,15,000 Marine 31 Years Corporation of India 13/09/2023
Age: 56 Years Engineer Limited
* Virendra Kumar Master Executive Ship
77. | Designation: Master 35,02,000 . 24 Years Management Pvt. 22/09/2022
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 49 Years Ltd.
*A i Velayud
Ma;:illl(?;;‘\i:eatﬁléhi}zia}?ambaram Class [ - EcifipeiStip
78. . . . . 34,66,667 Marine 38 Years Management Pvt. 18/12/2023
Designation: Chief Engineer Engineer Ltd
Age: 64 Years & )
* Anil Kadam
Mast Active Mari
79. | Designation: Master 34,33,333 e 27 Years crive rarine 26/05/2021
Mariner (F.G.) Private Limited
Age: 49 Years
* Gautam Sanyal Class - Apeeiav Shippin
80. | Designation: Chief Engineer 33,30,000 Marine 34 Years pee) {t d pping 09/06,/2023
Age: 59 Years Engineer '
* Jatinderpal Singh Lamba »
Mast Ind-Aust Marit
81. | Designation: Master 32,36,667 Caster 20 Years nd-AustMaritime | 02 5022
, Mariner (F.G.) Pvt. Ltd.
Age. 41 Years
* Amit Joshi Class1- Synergy Maritime
82. | Designation: Chief Engineer 32,20,000 Marine 20 Years Recruitment 24/01/2022
Age: 45 Years Engineer Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Mohansingh Bhist
M Fleet
83. | Designation: Master 31,90,000 HasE 24 Years eet Management | 002 2023
Mariner (F.G.) India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 44 Years
* Af'rah R'H]llllrlll.'\'}l."lll - L'lam? 1 VR Maritime
84. | Designation: Chief Engineer 31,10,333 Marine 26 Years . 06/10/2023
. Services Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 48 Years Engineer
* Nagendra Shukla Class ) -
85. | Designation: Chief Engineer 31,10,333 Marine 24 Years MMSI India 06/01/2024
Age: 47 Years Engineer
ASM Alliance
* Capt. Noel Dcruz Master Management
: ,43,333 , 40Y . . 05 2
i Designation: Master 50 3 Mariner (F.G.) = Services (India) Pvt. /08/2022
Age: 65 Years Ltd.
* Siddhartha Srivastava
t Ausland Shippi
87. | Designation: Master 30,00,000 Master 20 Years usianc >hipping 04/05/2023
Mariner (F.G.) Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 50 Years
* Anup Parashar Master Synergy Maritime
88. | Designation: Master 29,40,000 Mariner (F.G.) 15 Years Recruitment 03/11/2023
Age: 36 Years h Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Shishir Shukla Class I - Anglo-Eastern Ship
89. | Designation: Chief Engineer 28,50,000 Marine 21 Years Management Pvt. 08/11/2023
Age: 45 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Sunil Saudai ClassI - Bravo
90. | Designation: Chief Engineer 28,21,000 Marine 30 Years Shipmanagement 25/08/2023
Age: 53 Years Engineer Pvt. Ltd.




* Pawanesh Kumar

Class Ii -

B Vist
91. | Designation: 2Nd Engineer 28,05,000 Marine 10 Years uena vista 08/11/2023
. Shipping LLP
Age: 31 Years Engineer
* Anil Sarvaria
Mast Kuwait Oil Tank
92. | Designation: Master 27,66,667 Caster 36 Years pwat TAner | 3071272022
Mariner (F.G.} Co.
Age: 62 Years
* Amitesh Muhuri Class1- Fleet Management
93. | Designation: Chief Engineer 26,95,000 Marine 31 Years . o 31/12/2023
. India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 55 Years Engineer
* Shrimonto Pathak ClassI-
Blackhull Mariti
94. | Designation: Chief Engineer 26,95,000 Marine 26 Years ackull Martime |- 56 /11/2021
. Services Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 56 Years Engineer
* NDehasish Ghosh ClassI- .
. : . . . Buena Vista
95. | Designation: Chief Engineer 26,78,000 Marine 38 Years . 14/01/2024
. Shipping LLP
Age: 62 Years Engineer
* Dehasish Ranerjee Clare T - Exccutive Ship
96. | Designation: Chief Engineer 26,33,333 Marine 36 Years Management Pvt. 17/08/2021
Age: 61 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Dinesh lass I -
1T1es -Kumar. : ¢ ass_ V Ships India Pvt.
97. | Designation: Chief Engineer 26,33,333 Marine 19 Years Ltd 21/08/2023
Age: 54 Years Engineer ’
" Auleban Muklerjes
Mast tar Shippi
98. | Designation: Master 26,09,333 Mari::r ‘E; oy | 18Years Qa é’;m ;I:lplng 22/05/2021
Age: 40 Years o i
* Dulal Das ClassI- Poompuhar
99. | Designation: Chief Engineer 25,80,000 Marine 36 Years Shipping 27/02/2022
Age: 61 Years Engineer Corporation Ltd.
* Amit Anil Chitni h i
rfu Ar_ul Chi rlus o Chief Officer . Marshal Ship
100 | Designation: Chief Nfficer 24.3A,8R7 Master 30 Yoarg Management Dvt. 05,/07,/2023
Age: 50 Years o Ltd.
- - = .
Bh.upen-dra Sn?gh Negl Class. I _ Gond Wond
101. | Desigualivn: Chiel Engineer 24,30,000 Marine 38 Years . 07/06/2022
. Shipmanagement
Age: 60 Years Engineer
* Arun Krishna Phadke
Mast AG Maritime Pvt.
102. | Designation: Master 24,00,000 T 17 Years ehell allid 01/05/2022
Mariner (F.G.) Ltd.
Age: 38 Years
* Nitin Rajaram Kate Class! - Scorpio Marine
103. | Designation: Chief Engineer 23,02,000 Marine 27 Years Management India 13/04/2022
Age: 50 Years Engineer Pvt. Ltd.
* Hemdhar Pathak
Mast V Ships India Pvt.
104. | Designation: Master 22,95,000 vaster 36 Years et 16/04/2023
; Mariner (F.G.) Ltd.
Age: 58 Years
* Shashank Shekhar Master The Great Eastern
105. | Designation: Master 22,66,000 . 15 Years Shipping Company 26/01/2024
Mariner (F.G.) o
Age: 35 Years Limited
* Ra'hul R'angnat.h Shito.le Class. I- Good Wood
106. | Designation: Chief Engineer 22,48,333 Marine 19 Years . 01/02/2023
. Shipmanagement
Age: 43 Years Engineer




* Rakesh Sharma

Mast OCS Services Indi
107. | Designation: Master 22,00,000 Caster 41 Years ervices A 1 20/05/2023
Mariner (F.G.) Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 65 Years
* Rajesh Kumar Jain ClassI- Synergy Maritime
108. | Designation: Chief Engineer 21,63,333 Marine 40 Years Recruitment 23/12/2021
Age: 63 Years Engineer Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Manoj Kumar Elambayil Class i - Executive Ship
109. | Designation: 2Nd Engineer 21,53,333 Marine 23 Years Management Pvt. 09/01/2022
Age: 59 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Sanjeev Kumar Sinha ClassI- The Great Eastern
110. | Designation: Chief Engineer 21,42,000 Marine 24 Years Shipping Company 06/04/2022
Age: 48 Years Engineer Limited
* Kanduri V Srinivasa Kumar Class I - .
. . . . . Thome Ship
111. | Designation: Chief Engineer 21,33,333 Marine 30 Years Management 22/04/2023
Age: 53 Years Engineer 8
* Syed Shah Jawaid Hassan
Chief Offi Marlow Navigati
112. | Designation: Chief Officer 20,96,667 = od 18 Years arlow Navigation | 571172020
Master India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 41 Years
* Dheerajkumar Kunnancheri Master Anglo Eastern Ship
113. | Designation: Master 19,50,000 . 17 Years Management India 26/11/2022
Mariner (F.G.)
Age: 37 Years Pvt. Ltd.
* Chatar Singh
Mast Nautic Fl i
114. | Designation: Master 18,99,167 Caster 31 Years autic Fleet Pvt 07/02/2024
Mariner {F.G.} Ltd.
Age: 54 Years
* Hari Kaul
Mast Maritas Fleet Pvt.
115. | Designation: Master 18,72,000 raster 26 Years aritas Fee 10/09/2021
Mariner (F.G.) Ltd.
Age: 49 Years
* Firoz Nazirali Modak Master Synergy Maritime
116. | Designation: Master 18,33,333 Mariner (F.G.) 30 Years Recruitment 02/10/2023
Age: 49 Years h Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Govind Singh Bhati
Mast D ipping Pvt.
117. | Designation: Master 17,16,000 vaster 24 Years arya Shipping 19/09/2021
Mariner (F.G.) Ltd.
Age: 44 Years
* Satyaki Roy Class1- Anglo Eastern Ship
118. | Designation: Chief Engineer 16,80,000 Marine 36 Years Management India 11/02/2021
Age: 61 Years Engineer Pvt. Ltd.
N
Ab.hljlt .Subhash Yeole Master MTM
119. | Designation: Master 16,50,000 . 15 Years . 29/06/2023
Mariner (F.G.) Shipmanagement
Age: 38 Years
* Ketan Vinchurkar ClassI- Shipping
120. | Designation: Chief Engineer 16,50,000 Marine 14 Years Corporation of India 06/11/2023
Age: 37 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Vinoy Pandharinath Joshi Class I - Bernhard Schulte
121. | Designation: Chief Engineer 16,33,333 Marine 38 Years Shipmanagement 11/02/2024
Age: 62 Years Engineer India Pvt. Ltd.
* Chandra Sekhar Dey Class1- Synergy Maritime
122. | Designation: Chief Engineer 15,24,133 Marine 24 Years Recruitment 08/01/2023
Age: 57 Years Engineer Services Pvt. Ltd.




* Surajit Bose

The Great Eastern

Mast
123. | Designation: Master 14,70,000 raster 22Years | Shipping Company | 22/06/2021
Mariner (F.G.) .
Age: 53 Years Limited
* Indranil Choudhury ClassI- The Great Eastern
124. | Designation: Chief Engineer 13,65,000 Marine 24 Years Shipping Company 11/11/2023
Age: 59 Years Engineer Limited
* Capt. Rustomkhan Tadvi
Mast Navi i
125. | Designation: Master 13,47,500 Caster 41 Years avig8 Ship 03/02/2022
Mariner (F.G.) Management Ltd.
Age: 61 Years
* Mohammad Akram Raja ClassI- Anglo-Eastern Ship
126. | Designation: Chief Engineer 12,66,667 Marine 29 Years Management Pvt. 03/07/2022
Age: 52 Years Engineer Ltd.
* Amit Ch dh lass I -
IT" .attopa_ yay. ¢ assz V Ships India Pvt.
127. | Designation: Chief Engineer 11,82,500 Marine 26 Years Ltd 07/08/2023
Age: 60 Years Engineer '
* Lenju Paul
Mast Good Wi
128. | Designation: Master 10,30,000 raster 18 Years Good Wood 16/01/2023
Mariner (F.G.) Shipmanagement
Age: 37 Years
* Krishan Kumar Mishra Class I - Crowley Accord
129. | Designation: Chief Engineer 9,91,667 Marine 16 Years Marine Management 15/07/2021
Age: 37 Years Engineer Pvt. Ltd.
* Sunil Ganpat Mahajan . IMS Ship
Chief Offi
130. | Designation: Chief Officer 9,91,667 ;aste:er 31 Years Management 07/09/2022
Age: 54 Years Limited
* Braj Kishore Singh ClassI-
Arya Tankers Pvt.
131. | Designation: Chief Engineer 9,90,000 Marine 43 Years rya EI‘E ders 30/06/2021
Age: 67 Years Engineer )
* Pankaj Shukla
Mast Active Mari
132. | Designation: Master 9,04,167 Caster 23 Years cve arine 05/06/2022
Mariner (F.G.) Private Limited
Age: 46 Years
* Amit Chattopadhyay Class - . .
Ships India Pvt.
133. | Designation: Chief Engineer 8,95,833 Marine 35 Years v Ship a 07/08/2023
Age: 60 Years Engineer )
* Joseph Kuriakose Manimala Classli- Anglo-Eastern Ship
134. | Designation: 2Nd Engineer 8,50,000 Marine 11 Years Management (India) 16/01/2023
Age: 35 Years Engineer Private Limited
* Yogesh Kumar Mishra
Mast Arya Iron & Steel C
135. | Designation: Master 8,10,000 raster 14 Years ryatron&Seelto | 05/03/2024
Mariner (E.G.) Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 37 Years
* Gaurav Panwar Master Synergy Maritime
136. | Designation: Master 7,35,000 . 26 Years Recruitment 27/02/2024
Mariner (F.G.) ]
Age: 49 Years Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Vivek Kumar
Mast Fleet M t
137. | Designation: Master 6,80,000 Caster 33 Years eet Managemen 15/03/2024
Mariner (F.G.) India Pvt. Ltd.
Age: 54 Years
* Lariot Assumcao Afonso Master Anglo-Eastern Ship
138. | Designation: Master 6,23,333 Mariner (F.G.) 20 Years Management (India) 10/03/2024

Age: 38 Years

Private Limited




" Christopher Pereira Master Apac Marine Pvt
139. | Designation: Master 5,40,000 . 21 Years P ) 28/03/2022
Mariner (F.G.) Ltd.
Age: 39 Years
* Shikhar Mohindru Master Synergy Maritime
140. | Designation: Master 2,21,667 . 14 Years Recruitment 02/02/2022
Mariner (F.G.} .
Age: 35 Years Services Pvt. Ltd.
* Mehalan Jebamony Class - Synergy Maritime
141. | Designation: Chief Engineer 1,50,000 Marine 19 Years Recruitment 21/11/2021
Age: 42 Years Engineer Services Pvt. Ltd.

* Employed for the part of the year on contractual basis.
# Nature of employment is non-contractual.
” Indicates designation of the employee as on March 31, 2024.

NOTES:

1. Percentage of equity shares held by the employees in the Company within the meaning of Rule 5(2)(iii) of The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: N.A.

2. Remuneration received 'Gross' includes Salary, Allowances, Bonus/Commission, Company's contribution to
Provident Fund, RPFC Pension Fund, Superannuation Fund, National Pension Scheme and taxable value of

perquisites.

3. Inthe case of Shore-Staff, other terms and conditions are as per Company's service rules whereas for Floating
Staff they are as per agreements with Maritime Union of India/National Union of Seafarers of India.

4. In addition to the above remuneration, employees are entitled to gratuity in accordance with the Company's

rules.

5. Capt. Thomas Wilfred Pinto, Chairman and Managing Director & Mr. Clayton Lawrence Pinto, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are related to each other as father and son.

6. None of the other employees is related to any Director of the Company.




FORM NO.AOC-1

ANNEXURE-2

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate

companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Rs.in crores)

1. SIL. No. 1. 2.
2 Name of the subsidiary Seven Islands Maritime Seven Islands Shipping
Training Foundation International FZE
3. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if April 01, 2023 March 28, 2024
different from the holding company’s reporting to to
period March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
4. | Reporting currency and E'xchaflge rate. as on the ' United Arab Emirates Dirham
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case Indian Rupees (INR)
. . (AED)
ul fureipn subsididties.
5. | Share capital 0.15 Nil
A. | Roanrvnn & nurplun 13.11 Nil
7. | Total assets 126.61 Nil
8. | Total Liabilities 126.61 Nil
9. | Investments Nil Nil
10. | Turnover 12.55 Nil
11. | Profit before taxation (10.86) Nil
12. | Provision for taxation Nil Nil
13. | Profit after taxation (10.86) Nil
14. | Proposed Dividend Not Applicable Nil
15. | % of shareholding 100% 100%
Note:

Scven Islands Shipping Intecrnational FZE did not commence opcrations till March 31, 2024.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures : Not Applicable

JIN: 07148532

Date : September 11, 2024
Place: Mumbai




ANNEXURE-3

FORM NO. AQOC-2
(Exrsuaneto clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis : Nil

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:”
(Amounts in Rs in crores)
Name(s) of nature of Nature of Duration of Salient terms of Date(s) of Amount
the relationship contracts/ the contracts/ the contracts or approval by paid as
related arrangement/ arrangements arrangements or the Board/ advances,
Party transactions / transactions transactions Audit if any
including the Committee, if
value, if any any
Seven Islands | Enterprise over | Leave and License | Suite 4, Level 8: | Suite 4, Level 8: Suite 4, Level 8: Nil
Logistics which directors | Agreements for 01.04.2021 to Monthly license fees: 06.02.2021
Private and their | office premises 31.03.2026 0.08 and
Limited relatives have security deposit: 6.50 Suite 3B, Level 8:
significant Suite 3B, Level 8: 30.04.2022
influence. 01.02.2022 to Suite 3B, Level 8:
31.01.2027 Monthly license fees: Suite 3A, Level 8:
0.04 and 10.09.2019
Suite 3A, Level 8: | security deposit: 0.40
01.11.2019 to Suite 3A, Level 7:
31.10.2024 Suite 3A, Level 8: 10.09.2019
Monthly license fees:
Suite 3A, Level 7: | 0.09 and Suite 4, Level 7:
01.10.2019 to security deposit: 4.00 27.01.2022
30.09.2024
Suite 3A, Level 7:
Suite 4, Level 7: | Monthly license fees:
01.02.2022 to 0.09 and
31.01.2025 security deposit: 4.00
Suite 4, Level 7:
Monthly license fees:
0.08 and
security deposit: 0.08
Total amount Paid:
4.47
Parsatwar & | Enterprise over Consultancy Event Based The Company consults 28.03.2015 Nil
Co. which directors Charges Parsatwar & Co. on the
and their various matters of the
relatives have Company and thus
significant pays consultancy fees.
influence.
Total fees paid: 3.70




Capt. Thomas Chairman and Remuneration 01.04.2022 to At an annual 20.08.2021 Nil
Wilfred Pinto Managing 31.03.2027 remuneration of Rs.
Director * 6,00,00,000/- wef
01.09.2021 for 3
years.
Total remuneration
paid: 6.00
Mr. Clayton Chief Executive Salary Until resigned or Appointment Letter 20.08.2021
Lawrence Officer * removed from the
Pinto post Total remuneration
paid: 1.50
Mr. Warren Chief Financial Salary Until resigned or Appointment Letter 17.08.2017 Nil
Gregory Pinto Officer removed from the
post Total salary paid:
0.57
Mr. Jay Parekh Company Salary Until resigned or Appointment Letter 17.08.2017 Nil
Secretary removed from the
post Total salary paid:
0.43
Ms. Aashita Relative of Salary Until resigned or Appointment Letter 29.03.2023 Nil
Vishwakarma Company removed from the
Secretary post Total salary paid:
0.14

* Designation as on March 31, 2024.

/’"'“/-

Ma aging Director & CEO
DIN: 07148532

Date : September 11, 2024
Place : Mumbai




ANNEXURE-4

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities
for the financial year 2023-24

[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) is embedded in the DNA of the Seven Islands Shipping Limited (“SIsL”
or “Company”). Your Company firmly believes that profitably must go hand in hand with a sense of
responsibility towards its stakeholders. Your Company is committed to keeping sustainability at the forefront
and believes that sustainable development can only be achieved by prudently utilizing its resources and being

responsible towards the environment.

The CSR policy scts out the commitment and approach towards corporate social responsibility. It outlines the
purpose, focus areas, annual action plan through guiding principles for selection, implementation, monitoring
of CSR activities and stakeholder communications. The Company’s CSR is based on the principle of extending
support to the underprivileged segments of the Society and rendering service to achieve selected goals for the

common benefit of the entire society.

The Company undertook various activities during the year under review in line with its CSR Policy and as
prescribed in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has supported and implemented
projects under its CSR Policy in the field of healthcare (including Preventive, Promotive & Curative),
Promoting Education, Environment & Rural development amongst others. CSR Policy of the Company is

available on the Company’s website littps: //sishipping.com

In terms of governance and roles and responsibilities, the CSR governance structure at SISL comprises three
levels: Management Sustainable Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee & the Board of

Directors.
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee

As on March 31, 2024, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of the following directors:

Sr. Name of Director Designation/Nature of No. of meetings of | No. of meetings of CSR |
No. Directorship CSR Committee held Committee attended
during the year during the year
1. | Capt. Thomas Wilfred | Chairman of the Committee - 4 4
Pinto Executive Director *
2. | Mr. Sujit Govindrao | Member of the Committee - 4 4
Parsatwar Non-executive Director
3. | Mr. Uday Manohar | Member of the Committee - 4 4
Gore Independent Director

* As on March 31, 2024. Capt. Thomas Wilfred Pinto relinquished the position as Executive Director and
took up the position as a Non-Executive Director effective May 01, 2024.




The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was re-constituted on April 29, 2024 to appoint Mr.
Clayton Lawrence Pinto, Executive Director as the Chairman of the Committee in place of Capt. Thomas

Wilfred Pinto.

3. Provide the web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company: https: //www.sishipping.coni/
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach
the report): Not Applicable
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance to sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set-off or the
financial year, if any : Not Applicable
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (calculated for 3 preceding financial years
ie. F.Y.2020-21,F.Y. 2021-22 & F.Y. 2022-23): Rs. 1,47,19,88,987.48/-
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 2,94,39,780/-
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c): Rs. 2,94,39,780//-
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
spent for the Total amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
financial year Unspent CSR account as per Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
(inRs.) section 135(6) 135(5)
Amount Date of Transfer | Name ofthe fund | Amount | Date of Transfer
2,94,62,793 Nil Not Applicable Not Applicable Nil Not Applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(&3) (2) B | @ (5) (6) (7) (8 ® (10) (11)
Sr. Name Item Local | Location of the | Project Amount Amount | Amount | Mode of Mode of
No. | ofthe | fromthe | Area Project Duration | allocated | spentin | transfer | Impleme | Implementatio
Project list of (Yes/ for the the red to ntation - n through
activities | No) Project current | Unspent Direct implementing
in (inRs.) financial CSR (Yes/ agency
Schedule State | District year Account No) Name CSR
Vil of the (inRs.) | forthe Regist
Act project ration
as per No.
Section
135(6)
(inRs.)

Not Applicable
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent of Impact Assessment, if applicable: Rs. 5,79,380/-

(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 2,94,62,793 /-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs 23,013 /-

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr. | Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount remaining
No. | Financial transferred to spent in the specified under Schedule VII as to be spent in
Year unspent CSR reporting per Section 135(6), if any succeeding
Account under financial Name of | Amount | Date of financial years
Section 135(6) | year (in Rs.) the Fund | (inRs.) | Transfer (inRs.)
(in Rs.)
Not Applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s):
1) (z) 3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sr. Project | Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of
No. ID the yearin Duration amount spent on amount the project
Project which the allocated the spent at the -
project was for the projectin end of the Completed
commenced project the reporting /Ongoing
(in Rs.) reporting Financial
Financial Year
Year {(inRs.)
{in Rs.)
Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset wise details):

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of capital asset): Not Applicable




26 n e ——

; MrSujit Govindrao Parsatwar
~Managing Director & Chairman, CSR Committee  Director & Member, CSR Committee
DIN: 07148532 DIN: 01174288

Date: September 11, 2024
Place: Mumbai



JAIPRAKASH R SINGH & CS Jaiprakash R Singh
ASSOCIATES B.Com., FCS

Company Secretaries

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Seven Islands Shipping Limited,
Suite 3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing,
Times Square, Andheri- Kurla Road,
Andheri (E), Mumbai 400 059

[ have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Seven Islands Shipping Limited CIN:
U61100MH2002PLC135732 (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, it’s officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the company has proper board process and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent in the manner and subject to the reporting made herein after:

[ have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

[.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

II.  The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and rules made thereunder;

I1. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder, -To the
extent applicable

IV.  The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment-and-External
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VL.

The Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in UAE named ‘Seven Islands
Shipping International FZE’ (the “foreign entity”) by making 100% equity investment as per
the Foreign Exchange Management (Overseas Investment) Rules, 2022. In line with the
Regulation 10(2), there has been a delay in filing/submitting the requisite form/documents
with the AD bank which the Company has regularized by payment of Rs. 7,600/- (Rupees
Seven Thousand Six Hundred Only) as the Late Submission Fee (LSF) through the designated
AD bank in accordance with regulation 11 of the Regulations.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

a)
b)
c)

d)

g)

h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; - Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; - Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; - Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; - Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; - Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 - To the extent applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; - Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
- Not applicable

The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement), 2015- Not applicable

Other applicable laws:

a)
b)

c)
d)

e)

f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
1)

The Bombay Shops and Establishments Act, 1948;

Merchant Shipping Act, 1958 and other industry specific laws applicable to the
Company as per the representations made by the management.

The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

Maritime Laws

Merchant Shipping (Carriage of Cargo) Rules, 1995

Admiralty (Jurisdiction and Settlement of Maritime Claims) Act, 2017

Indian Carriage of Goods by Sea Act,1952, as amended

Multimodal Transportation of Goods Act, 1993

Marine Insurance Act, 1963

Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

m) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
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n) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

0) Seamen's Provident Fund Act, 1966

p) Merchant Shipping (Civil Liability for Oil Pollution Damage) Rules,2008 as amended

q) Merchant Shipping (Prevention of Pollution by Oil from Ships) Rules, 2010 as
amended

The above are the other applicable laws of the Company and this audit has not covered
all the above laws.

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s): Not
Applicable.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and heads for systems and
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company.

[ further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made under that Companies Act, 2013 as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard
to:

a) maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary
entries therein;

b) forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of
Companies and the Central Government;

c) service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of
Companies;

d) notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

e) the meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions
by circulation;

f) the 21st Annual General Meeting held on 20t October, 2023 However, Registrar of
Companies, Mumbai has granted extension to conduct Annual General Meeting for the
period of 3 months.

g) Two Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held during the year;

h) Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and the meetings of the Board and its
Committee;

i) Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the
Government authorities, wherever required;
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3. I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent generally at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through during the period under review and none of the members
have expressed their dissent.

4. I further report that:

Based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Note: The qualification, reservation or adverse remarks, if any, are explicitly stated at
the relevant paragraphs above to the audit report.

For Jaiprakash R Singh & Associates
JAI PRAKASH gﬁltca:\\‘ﬁs:)g:;EdR};yOJ’:’;iRAmSH RAMCHARITRA SINGH

1 2act
2.5.4.20=b9104f1263d4584279974074df54fc6dbS5b920

R A M C H A R ITR A 64069567d72e0d6a491e8ed, postalCode=400077,
st=MAHARASHTRA,

SINGH o
CS Jaiprakash Singh

Proprietor

FCS No.:7391

CP No.:4412

Peer Reviewed Unit No. 1216/2021
Place: Mumbai

Date: 09/09/2024
UDIN: FO07391F001178737
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To,

‘ANNEXURE A’

The Members

Seven Islands Shipping Limited,

Suite 3A, 3B & 4, Level 8, B Wing, Times Square,
Andheri- Kurla Road, Andheri (E),

Mumbai - 400 059

Our report of even date is to read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the
Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For Jaiprakash R Singh & Associates

Digitally signed by JAIPRAKASH RAMCHARITRA SINGH

JAIPRAKASH DN: c-IN, 0=PERSONAL,
pseudonym=673a4914af1743198a9c36d21202ac16,

25.4.20=h9f04f1263d45d84279974074df54fc6dbS5b9a0f64

R A M C H A R IT R A 069567d7ae0d6a491e8e4, postalCode=400077,
t=MAHARASHTRA,

SINGH

B
serialNumber=1abde65fcd165aaa27fbc7aca3ead9786119d4
91€393e82de0a0fc35f649260, cn=JAIPRAKASH
RAMCHARITRA SINGH

Date: 2024.09.09 16:36:29 +05'30"

CS Jaiprakash Singh
Proprietor
FCS No.:7391

CP No.

14412

Peer Reviewed Unit No. 1216/2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: 09/09/2024
UDIN: F0O07391F001178737
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Chartered Accountants ' '

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Seven Islands Shipping Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Seven Islands Shipping Limited
(“the Company'), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatary information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including
other comprehensive income and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the "Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor's report therecn,

Cur opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
ccounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
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ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone ind AS financial statements as
a whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our auditor's report., However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.
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QOther Matter

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

¥

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the QOrder.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(3]

(d}

(e)

(f)

(q)

(h)

(i)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except

= As described in Note 48 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, in the absence of required
information for the period from June 28, 2023 to August 10, 2023, relating to the accounting
systems used by the Company to maintain books of account in electrenic form, we are unable to
comment whether for the said period, the Company maintained backup of such books of account
and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode on daily basis on servers physically
located in India.

- For matters stated in paragraph (f) below on reporting under Rule 11{g)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directars, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)b) and paragraph 2 (i) (vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind
AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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vi.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borroawed funds ar share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Caompany to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“"Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe

that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of
dividend.

As stated in note 47 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the Board of Directors of the
Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if any, using
privileged/ administrative access rights. Further, we cannot comment on any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered due to absence of deletion log at application layer as described in
note 48 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

o=
per‘Firoz Pradhan r

Partner

Membership Number: 109360 \ =

-
W2

UDIN: 24109360BKFMEATTT0  SRep 1ot

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024




SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Seven Islands Shipping Limited ("the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:

(i @

()

(c)

(d)

(e)

(i) (a)

(b)

(iiiy (a)

(b)

(c)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Praoperty, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year.
As explained to us the inventories were physically verified by the Masters of vessel at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification. In our opinion the
coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed in respect of such physical verification.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets, however the Company has not availed
the same during the year. Consequently, the Company has not submitted quarterly returns / statements
with such banks or financial institutions and accordingly the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has provided loans to Subsidiary as follows:

| Particulars Loan (Amount in Cr)
Aggregate Amount granted/ provided during the year
-Subsidiary 29.00

Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
above cases
-Subsidiary 111.89

During the year the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions
of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of leans, investments and guarantees to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has granted loans during the year tc companies where the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. The Company has not granted advances in the
nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which had fallen due during the year.
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(iv)

()

(i)

(wii)

(wiil)

()

(a)

(b

(@

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)Xf) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information given to us and audit procedure performed by us, there
are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable.

Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, pravisions of sections 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans have been complied with by the Company. With respect to loan
given to wholly owned subsidiary, interest receivable for the year as per the Memorandum of
Understanding entered is waived off during the year as stated in note 34 to the standalone financial
statements.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to
it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows;

Name Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Remarks, if
of the the Dues (Rs.) which the dispute is any
Statute amount pending
relates
Finance Service Tax *9,34,44,068 | 2010-2011 to | Appeliate The amount is
Act 2016-17 Tribunal axclusive of
interest and
penalty
Finance Service Tax 25,717,154 2011-12 Commissioner The amount is
Act Appeals exclusive of
interest  and
penalty

*The amount is net of Rs. 1.16 crores which has been pre-deposited with the Appellate Tribunal for filing
Appeal

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previcusly unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assassments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.
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(x)

(xi)

(xil}

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xwi)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)

)

(al

(b}

(c)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(e}

(c)

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Campany, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.
Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or opticnally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by cost
auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is naot a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xiiXa), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xviXa) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xviXb) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence the requirement to report on
clause 3(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii)

(xwiii}

(xix)

(xx) (a)

(b)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are reguired o be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), in compliance
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing project, that are required to be transferred to
a special account in compliance of provisions of sub section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

r

per¥iroz Pradhan

Partner

Membership Number: 109360

UDIN: 24109360BKFMEATTT0

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the standalone IND AS financial statements
of Seven Islands Shipping Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements of Seven
Islands Shipping Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controis that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls cperated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial contrals with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

& Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Because aof the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the paolicies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness have been identified as at March 31, 2024:

(a) The Company did not have an appropriate internal financial control system over financial statement close
process in relation to establishing process for evaluation and determination of classification of balances,
appropriate year end provisioning and appropriate review of financial statements which could result in
incorrect classification and recognition or derecognition of assets and liabilities.

A ‘'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with reference
to standalone Ind AS financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of
the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial
contrals with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as of
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl, as specified under Section
143¢10) of the Act, the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Seven Islands Shipping Limited, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the related Statement of Profit and Loss |, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2024 standalone Ind AS financial statements of Seven |slands
Shipping Limited and this report does not affect our report dated September 11, 2024, which expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

penFiroz Pradhan
Partner
Membership Number: 109360

UDIN: 24109360BKFMEATT7T70

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024




SENVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING 1

AMITEDR

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

As at Asat
Mirticulars Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers Rs. in crs
ASSETS
NiR-CHTrent assets
{m) Property, plant and equipment 44 183571 | Bis -
{13k Captal work-m-progress 4B -8 058
(e} Right of use asset 3 573 10 48
(d ) Intangrhle yssets 4C 098 a3
(e} Fimancial assets
{1} Investment i subsidiary 13 2984 1121
() Cithers fimangcial assets 5 138 19 |16 43
() Tax assets (net) G 064 1oy
()} Other non-current assets 12 2157 2438
Taotal non - current assets 2 154.65 1.979.72
Current assets
{a) Inventones 7 2072 2564
(b Contract assets L | 440 130
(o) Fimancial assels
{1) Investments 5 426 38 2504
(n) Trade receivables 9 97 81 K374
{nr) Cash and eash equivalents 10 15825 177 86
{1v) Other bank balances 1 296 52 84 96
(v} Others financial assels 3 208 46 5620
(d) Diher curvént assets 12 19 84 3111
Total current asscts 1,233.58 B
Tuotal assets 338821 1.567.87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&) Equity share capital 14 4723 3723
{b) Other Equity 15 1 876 46 1,242 7
Tutal equity 1,933,649 1,300,010
Nom-current liabilities
{&) Financial Habilities
(1] Long-term horrowings e 805 13 TS5 58
(1a) Lease linbilities 171 1.80 4 B
Total Nen-current labilities 906,95 T4
Current liabilities
(a} Contract liabiliny 179 1783
i(h) Finaneial Liabilines
(1) Short-term borrowings | 34528 2T 10
(1) Lease habilines 171 318 389
(1) Trade payables 19
(A) tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprizes, and 172 241
{B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 73 66 520
small enterprises
(1) Other finuncial labilities 17 98 14
{e] Provisions 18 23
{d) Other current hatlities 20 148
Total carrent linbilities 547.57
Total equity and liabilities 3,388.21
Summary of matenal accounting policies 3

As per our Report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP

Chirtered Accountants

IC AL Firm rewstraiion number 328982 EE300003

per Piroz Pradhan
Partner
Membership Mo 109360

Place Mumbm
Date: September 11, 2024

For and on behalf of Buard of Directors of Seve

goRusd="

—
My, Sujit Parsatwar
Durector s
DIN. 0174288

A

Mr. Warren Finto
Chief Financial Officer

Place Mumbar
Date September 11, 2024

Ir. Clayton Pinto
Managing Director & CEQ
DIN. 071483542

Am{mﬂ.{l-{ .

Mr. Jay Parekh
Company Secretary
Membership No. A4738




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Nuote No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in vy Rs. in crs
INCOME
I Revenue from operations | 1. 438.69 1.152.48
] Oiher pperating income 2a I44 +
m Other income 22 35493 75.73
v Total Ingome (1114101 1, 796106 1,228.21
v EXPENSES
Purchase of tuel ol and ether inventories 23 58.13 BR.78
Operating expenses 24 3496 22 289 51
(Increase) decrease in inventories 25 234
Employee benetit expenses 26 3306
Depreciation and amartization expense b4} 41544 32179
Fimance costs 28 96.73 9017
Cther expenses 29 3091 94 32
Total expenses (V) 104790 919.97
V1 Profit before 1ax (IV-V) T48.16 508.__24=|
Vi1 Tax expensec
(1) Tonnage tax |63 1.60
(27 Current tax 101 4.70
13) Adjustment of tax of carlier years - (0LTR)
VIIT  Profit for the year from operations (VI-V1D) T36.34 302.72
IX  Other comprehensive income
Other Comprehensive Tncome not to be reclassified to profit or loss i
subsequent perods
Re-measurement gains/{loss) on defined benefit plans 136 () 06
[ncome tax relating to above = 4
Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax .36 .06
x Toal Comprehensive Income for the year 736,70 302.78
X1 Earmings per equity share il
Basic and Diluted 138.67 5190
3

Suminary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements
As per our Report of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm registration number ; 324982E/E300003

per¥iroz Pradhan

Partner
Membership Wo 109360

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Seven Isl

s

RT¥ Sujit Parsatwar
Divector
DIN: 01174288

r. Claytin Pinto
Managing Director & CEO
DIN; 07148542

ipping Limited —=

—~ e

i

Mr. Warren Pinto
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Jay Parekh
Company Secretary
Membership No. A47580

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024

Place: Mumbsai
Date: September 11, 2024




{a) Equity Share Capital

SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

As ut
March 31_ 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shaures Amount
Hs. in ors Hs._ in crs
Balance at the begmnmg of year 57,227 550 57.23 57227550 5723
Add; Fssue of share capital - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 57,227,550 57.23 57,227,550 57.23

(b} Other Equity

Reserves & Surplus acl Tutal
Tonnage tax
reserve under SRl Surplus/ (deficit)  Re-mensurement
General reserve section 1ISVT of in the statement of gainsi{loss) on defined
the Income Tax BEEnt i profit and loss benefit plans
Act, 1961
Rs. in crs Hs. in ers Rs. in crs Rs. in ers Rs. in ers Rs. in crs
Balance as at March 31, 2022 134.50 17.63 24319 54518 {0.50) 939,99
Add/Less: Transfer fromito tonnage tax reserve Bl.065 - (6].05) - -
Add/Less: Transter from/o general reserve 17.63 (17.63) - - - -
Net Profic after tux for the year = - - 302,72 0,06 30279
Balance as at March 31, 2023 152.13 fil.65 24319 786,25 (th44) 1,242,786
— — ————
Add/Less: Transfer fromito tonnage tax reserve - 14863 - (14903 = ]
Add/Less; Transfer from/to general reserve 61.63 (61.65) = + = -
Wet Profit afier tax for the year - - - 73034 30 T3 b
Payment of Final proposed dividend = = = (103.01) = (103.01)
Balamee as at March 31, 2024 213.78 149.63 143.1% 1.269.94 - .08 1.876.46
Summary of matenal accountmg pobeies 3
The aceompanying holes are an integral part of Financial Statements -
e

As per our Report of even date

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAl Fir 1

‘iroz Pradhan
Partuer
Membership No. 109360

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024

on number © 32498 2E/E3D0003

Mr.Sujit Parsatwar
Dircetor
DIN: 01174288

N

Mr, Jay Parckh
Company Secretary
Membership No, A47580

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024

rClaytan Pinto
Managing Director & CECQ

DN 07 148542

Mr. Warren Pintu
Chief Financial Cfficer




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ws. in crs Rs, in crs

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before 1ax T48.16 308.24
Adjustment o reconcile profit before tax to net cash Nows
Depreciation 41544 32174
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 1274 59) 149.17)
Exchange ditterence loss/{gain)- net 350 {27.59)
Impairment allowance on receivable 0,04 343
Bad debts 4.85 -
lossiainh on dermvitive contracts (17.58) 4132
Interest expense 9238 8551
Interest en Lease hability 0.61 095
Interest {income) 123.534) (10110
Insurance claim received (2.45) (0.69)
Interest on loan to subsidiary {7.36) (3.05)
Interest income on Lease deposit (121 (1 10y
Income from mvestment (24.11) {9.83)
Operuting profit before working capital changes 91413 659,77
Movements in working capital:
Increase in trade payables 30.25 5452
Increase in provisions 0.79 0.62
Increase/ {decrease) in other corrent liabilitics 343 {0,207
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities (LLin 13.81
{Increase) in trade receivables {16.96) {49.67)
Decrease in inventorics 521 T35
(Increase) in others financial assets (43 46) {74.43)
Decrease in others eurrent assets 8.16 2532
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 3045 583.00
Income tax paid (net of refund) {2.39) 1.37
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (a) 88805 S84.46
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property. plant. equipment including CWIP and capital (812.73) 41888)
advances
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant. cquipment 522.42 T 3n
Purchase of eurrent investments (1,338.35) (614 84)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 960.94 69 To
Insurance claim recerved 245 0.69
Investments in bank deposits (having ariginal matunty of maore than 3 months) (465 40) (184 02)
Bank deposis matured (having oripinal maturity of more than 3 months) 22133 123 64
Interest received on bank deposits 14.87 942
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activitics {b) (894.47) (307.84)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ¢
Proceeds from long term borrowings 33500 16500
Repayments of long term borrowings (349.80) 1211.48)
Payment of final dividend 1103.01) -
Interest paid {900 83) B3 63)
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest) 4351 {4.46])
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (c) {13.15) {136.59)
NET INCREASE / {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (atb+c) {19,56) 140,03
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginmng of the year 177 81 3717
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15835 177.81

(19.56) 140.03




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 139 0.76

With banks
Che curremt accounts 102 56 172.89
U deposit accounts 54.40 421
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 158.25 177.86
l.css. Bank overdratt (Nete 16) - 0.05
158.25 177.81

Summary ol maleral accounting policies
Note 1 | There are no non cash ilems mcluded in mvesting activities

The accompanying notes are an intepral part of Finaneial Statements
As per our Report of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Seven Is|
Chartered Accountants

ICAT Fir, alion number | 324982E/E300003
q’f{ el
firoz Pradhan STt Parsatwar
Partner Director

DIN 01174288

i

Mr. Warren Pinto Mr. Jay Parekh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. A47380

Membership No. 109360

Place: Mumbar Place: Mumbai
Diate: September 11, 2024 Date: September 11, 2024




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to standalone Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1 Curporate information

=

Seven [stands Shipping Limited (“the Company” o “S187) was meorporated on May 2, 2002 a5 a prvate Company and was subsequently canverted into 2 public hmited Company on June &
2003 It 1s rewstered under the Directorate General of Stupping, Government of India The Company s domaciled w India with is registered office at Times Square, Andhert Rula Road,
Anidbert (East) - 400059

The Company 15 i the busmess of ewning and operating of ocean gong ships i the liquid tenker segment both on the Indian eoast as well as in international waters

The Financial stitements of Seven Islands Shipping Limited as at Mareh 31, 2024 were approved and suthonsed for issue by the Board of directors on September 11, 2024

Basis for preparation

In aceordance with the noufication issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company is required to prepare its financial statements dnder the Indian Aceounting Standards ('Ind AS')
prescribed under section 133 of the Companites Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (a5 amended from tme 10 ume) and presentation and
disclosures requirement of Division 11 of revised schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS Complsant Schedule 1) as applicable to financial statement. Accordingly, the Company has
prepared these Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheets as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Sttement of Cuash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the vear ended March 31, 2024, and significant accounting policies and other explanatory information {together hereinafier referred to as "Financial Statements”)

The Financial Statements have been prepated on a historical cost convention and on an acerual busis, except for the dervatve financial instruments and certaim financial assets and habnes
{refer Accounting pohiey for Financial Instument) winch have been measured at far value or revalued amount required by relevant Ind AS at the end of the reporting period {refer note 38)
The financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees ('INR'), except otherwise mdicated

The financial statements are prepared in INR and all the values are rounded off to the nearest crores, except where otherwise stated.

The avcounting policies are applied consistently to all the penods presented m the Ind AS linancial statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Current versus non=current classifieation

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet hased on current non-eurrent classiication. An asset is treated as current when it 1!
1) Expected 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed i normal opevatimg eycle

u) Held primanily for the purpose of trading

i) Expeeted to be realised withun twelve months after the reporting peviod, or

w) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a hability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability 18 current when:

i1 It is expeeted to be settled in normal operating cyele

it} It 15 held primarily for the purpose of tradmy

i} It 15 due te be semled within twelve months after the reporting penod, or

w) There 15 no unconditional night to defer the selement of the Lability for st least twelve months after the reperting period

The Comparry classifies all other liabilities as non-current

The eperatng cvele s the time between the acquisiion of asscts for processing and thew tealisation in cash and cash equivalents The Company has identified twelve months as ns eperating
cvele

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currenecy
The Company’s [nd As Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is also the Company’s functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign cusmencies are translated 1o functional currency using the monthly average exchange rates. Foreygn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the rranslation of monetary assets and habilities denominated moforeign cureneies at the vear end exchange rates are recopmsed i Profit or loss. Non monetary iems.
which are measured n terms of historical cost denominated in foresgn curency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction

Monctary asscts and habilities denominated in foreign curreney, remaining unsettled at the year end are wanslated at closing rates The difference in wanslaton of all other monetary assets and
liabilities and realised gains and losses on other foreign cumency wansactions are recoumsed in the Statement of Profit and Loss




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to standalone Financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

¢ Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciation
All propeny, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accamulated depreciation and accumulated mpatment losses, 1Fany

The cost of Property, Plant and equipment compnses its purchase price net of any wade discounts and rebates, any impmt duties and other trves (other than those subsequenty recoverable
from the tax authoritics), amy directhy attebutable expenditure including brokerage and taking over cost on making the asset teady for its mtended use and other mcidental expenses

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at imervals, company depreciates them separately based on their specific usefal lives. When major mspection 1
performed, 1ts ¢ost 15 recognized n the carrying amount of the plant and equipment s o replacement 1 the recopmition critenia are satisfied All other repairs and mamtcnance costs are
recognized in the statement of profi & loss as mcurred

Cost of as5ets not ready for mended use as on the Balanee Sheet date, 15 shown as capital work-n-progress. Advances given towards
acquisition of frved assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-Current Assets

Dry dockimg 16 considered 45 a separate component & when a major inspection’ averhaul 15 performed. its eost 15 recogmized in the earrving amount of the related property plant and
equipements as a replacement cost o the recognition critenia are sausfied. The dry docking component include major repais conducted up to sre months prior to and one vear after the div
docking Therefore, the costs of such major repairs aslo recognized i the carrving amount of the related PPE The cost of such major inspection/ overhaul is depreciated separately over the
period of thirty menths Upon next major inspection’ overhaul, the costs of new major mspection’ overhaul are added tw the asset’s cost and any amount remaiming from the previous
inspection’ averhaul is derecognized All other repair and mmntenance costs are recognized in the statement of profitor loss as mcwrred

The residual values, usefal lives and methods of depreciation of propesty, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectvely. if appropriate,

Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written Down value {WDV) method

Diepreciation is provided based on useful lifie of the assers as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of Vesacls. where useful lite 15 considered as under based
on techmeal evaluation.

The Comprany has assessed the following useful life to depreciate and amortize on its property, plant and eqguipment and itanwble sssets respectively

Particulars Uscful Lives of the Assets estimated by the manazement {years)
Oil Tankers vessels® Date of built = 23 [Date of acquisition - 10 to 20)

(Gas vessels® Date of built - 23 (Date of acquisition - 10 1o 20)
Fumiture and Fixture 141

Vehicles 8 and 10

Computer &

Office Equipment 3

* Esumated useful life of the vessels is considered from the year of build and the second hand vessels acquired by management are depreciated on the estimation of balanee useful life as at the
date of acquisition

Residual value in cuse of vessels 1s estimated at ten years movang average of scrap rates

Based on internal technical assessment and past experience, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the penod over which the management expeets the nse
of the assets. Hence, the useful lives of only ships 15 different from the uscful lives as preseribed under Part € of Schedule 1] of the Companies Act, 2013

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recogmised 15 derecognised upon disposal or when no future economue benefits are expected from s use or disposal
Any gaim ot loss arising on de-recogmition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) 15 mcluded in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised

i Intangible assets

The amonization period and the amornziion method are reviewed at least at each financial vear end | the expected useful hife of the asser 1s sigmificantly different from previeus estimiates,
the amertization period is changed accordingly 17 there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of econonue benefits from the asset, the amortization method 15 changed to reflect
the changed pattern

The Company has assessed the useful Lives to amortised the Intagible Assets is 10 vears

Intangible assets are stated a1 acquisinon cost less accumulated amortisation and accumitlated impairment losses, if any. An intangble asset is derecognised on dispesal, or when no flure
cconomic henefits are expected from use or disposal Gains or losses on derecognition measued ot difference berween net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset, arc
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

e Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there 15 an indication that an asset may be imparced. W any indication exists, or when annual imparment testing for sn asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and 15 value m use. The
recoverable amount is devermined for an individual asser, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Companys of assets. Where
the carrying amount of an assecor CGU exceeds s recoverable amount, the assct 13 considered impaired and 54 written down 1o its recoverable amount. In assessimg vilue in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to thew present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifie to the asset In
determiming net selling price, recent market transactions are taken inta account, it available. [ no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model 15 used.

The Compary bases s impaiment calculation on detailed buduets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for cach of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the
individual assets are allocated .

Impairment losses of contnumng operations, mchading imparment on inventories, are recogmzed i the statement of profit and loss

Afer impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised camying amount of the asset over its remamng useful hfe

An assessment 15 made =t each reportiny date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estmates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment [oss 18 reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized The reversal is limited 50 that the carryng amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the camrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal i recogmized
in the satement of profit and loss.
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Inventories

Inventaries are carmied at lower of cost and net vealizable valoe Cost s ascemamed on fiest-im-tist oot basis The cost includes all costs of purchase and other eosts mewrred m brngrmge the
inventories 1o then present locaton und condition Met vealizable vilue 15 the estimued selling prices m the ordmary course of business less estmated cost necessany wo muke the sale

Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation e staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents iclodes cash o hand and at bank i current and foreish carrency accounts, deposit beld al call wath
financial institution, other short term, hughly liqud investments with ariginal maturives of thiee months or less that are readily convertble w known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an mnsignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafis Bank Overdrafis are newed of from cash and cash equivalents

Cash Mow stiatement
Cash flows arg reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss) before tax 15 adjusted for the effects of wansactions of non- cash nature and any deferrals or aecruals of past or futire

eash recerpts or pavments The cash flows from operaung, mvesting and finaneiny actvities of the Company are segrepated based on the avmlable information

Borrowing cost

Barrowng casts divectly attributable to the aequisition, construction or production of an asset that necessanly takes a substanual peniod of time to get ready for 1ts intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other bosrowing cosis are expensed in the period in which they occur Borrowing costs consist of mterest and other costs that an eniy incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds Borrowing cost also mchades exchange differences to the extent regarded s an adjustment to the barrowing costs

Leise
The Company assesses at contmct inception whether o conwact is, or contains, a lease That 15, iF the conwact conveys the nght 1o control the use of an identified assel for a penod of ume m

exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recogmiuon and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company recogmises lease lahilioes o
make lease payments and nchi-of-use assets representing the nght to use the underlving assets.

Right-of use assets

The Company recognises night-of-use assets st the commencement date of the lease {1 the diate the underlving asset 15 avalable for use) Right-of-use assets are measued at cost, less any
pecumutated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remessurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease habilities recogmised,
initial direct costs incurred, deferred lease components of secunity deposits and lesse pavments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives recerved  Unless the
Company 15 reasonably certain 1o abtain ownership of the leased asser at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are deprecinted on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
g estimated useful life and the lease erm. Right-of-use assets are subject wo wmpawment

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recogmses lease habilites mewsured at the present value of lease payments 1o be made over the lease term The lease payments mclude
fixed pavments (including in-substance fixed payvments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid undes
residual value guarantees

In calculating the present value of leise pavments, the Company uses the incremental horrowang rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate smphet m the lease 18 not readiby
determinable After the commencement date. the amount of lease labilities 15 increased to reflect the acoretwon of interest and reduced for the lease povments made. In additon, the carmving
amount of lease hahilities 15 remeasured of there 15 2 modification, a change in the lease term,  change m the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change m the assessment to purchase the
underlymg asset

The determination of whether an amangement s {or contamns) @ lease 5 based on the substance of the arrangement at the mception of the lease The amangemend 8, or contang, a lease
fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the amangement conveys a right to-use the asset or assets, even il that right 15 not explicitly specified m
an drrungement

Lease term

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together wath any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it 18 teasonably certam o be exercised,
ot iy penods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it 15 reasonably certain not to be exercized

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recogmzed when the Company has a present obligation {legal or construetive) as a result of a past event, it i3 probable that an outflow of resoirces embodivaing economne
benefits will be required to settle the obligatton and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligaton, If the effect of the tme value of money 15 material, provisions are
discounted using equivalent period government secunties interest rate. Unvanding of the discount 1 recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost Provisions are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and sre adjusted 1o reflect the current best esumate

1f thee effect of the time value of money 15 materal, provisions are diseounted using a current pre-lax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the labiliy When discounting is
wsed, the increase i the provision doe to the passage of trme 15 recogmised as a finance cost

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there 1s a possible obligation ansing from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-occunence of one o
more uncenain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or & present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable thas an outflew of resources will
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made Information on contmgent habibity 18 dosclosed in the Notes to the Ind As Fimancal statements. Contimgent assets ae
not recognised However, when the realisation of income 1s virtually eettain, then the related asset 1s no longer a contingent asset, but it 15 recognised as an asset
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Earnings per share
Basic earmings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the penod attiibutable to equity sharcholders by the wenghted averase number of equity shares outstanding during

the period The werghted averaue number of equity shares outstanding during the persod 15 adjusted for events such as ESOPs and bonus ssue that have changed the number of equity shares
outstandm without a comresponding change i resources

For the puipase of ealeulating diluted earmings per shase, the net profit or loss for the period atiibutable to equity sharcholders and the wesghted average number of shares outstanding during
the perod are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per shiare from contimuing ordinary operations, Potential diutive equity
shiares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a bater date. The dilutvve potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable
had the shares been actually issued at fai value (1 e average market value of the oustanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are devermened independently for each pened presented
The number of equity shares and petentially dilubive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropnate

m Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fan value st each balance sheet date

Farr value 15 the price that would he recerved 1o sell an asset or pad 10 wransfer ¢ hability in an orderly uansaction between market patscipants at the measuwement date. The fan value
measurement 15 based on the presumption that the wansacton to sell the asset or transfer the habality takes place either

In thie principal market for the asset or habiny, or

Ins the absence of a principal market, m the most advantageons market that can be accessed by the company for the asset or habiliy

The fair value of an asset or a liabiliny is measured using the assumptions that market partcipants would use when pricing the asset on [abality, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

All assets and Labilities for which fair value i3 measired or disclosed in the Ind As Financial statements are categonsed within the fawe value heerarchy, descnibed as follows, based on the
lowest level input that 1s significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whaole

Level | Quoted {unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or habilivgs

Level 2 Valuauon techmques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 15 direetly or indirectly ohservable

Level 3 Valuation techmques for which the lowest level mput that s significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Tnd As Financial statements on a recurmning basis, the Company determimes whether transfers have ocourred between levels in the higrarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (hased on the lowest level mput that 1s significant to the far value measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting penod

instruments
A financial instrument 15 amy contract that grves rise to a financial assct of one entity and a finaneial liability or equity instrement of another entity

1 Financial assets

Instial recoumtion and measurement

All finanewl assets are recognised initally at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profic or |oss, wansaction costs that are aitnbutable to the
acquisition of the financial asset Purchases or sales of financial assets that reguire delivery of assets within a ime frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
wav trades) are recogmised on the trade date, e | the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of sibsequent measurement, financial assets are elassified in four categories:

i Debt insuuments at amortssed cost
i Debw insuuments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
i Debt instruments, derivatives and equity mstruments at fau value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

iv Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

i Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument” 15 measuned at the amortiscd cost if both the follewing eonditions are met

A The asset 15 held within a business model whose ohjective 15 to hold assets for collecting contractual eash flows, and

B} Contractual terms of the asser wive rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and imterest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding

This categnry is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such finaneial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective nterest rate (EIR) method
Amortised eost 15 caleulated by taking imo account any discount or premum on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 15 included in finance

income m the peofit or loss. The losses ansing from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

il Debt instrumeni at FAVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ 15 classified as at the FVTOUT of both of the following criteria are met’
The ohjective of the business model is achweved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asscts, and
The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPRI
Debt inswuments included within the FVTOC! category are measured mitially as well as at each reporting date at falr value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
mcame.
However, the company recognizes Interest income, impairment losses and reversals and forein exchange gain or loss in the profiton loss

ili Deht instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL i5 a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, wlich does not meet the critena for categorzation as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL 15 classified as at FVTPL.
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Eguity investments
All equity investments moscope of Ind A% 109 are measwed at fan value Equine mstrumens which are held for trading are classified as ar FYTPL For all other equaty instruments, e

Company may make an urevocable election t present i other eomprehensive income subsequent changes in the fan value The Company makes such election on an mstrument-by-mstrment
basis. The classification 15 made on inmial recognition and is imevacable

If the company decides to elassify an equity mstrument as at FVTOCT, tien all fan value changes on the mstrument, excludmg dividends, are recognized 1n the OCL There 15 no recyeling of
the amounts fiom O] to PEL. even on sabe of mvestment. However, the Company may tansfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity

Equsty mstruments mcluded within the FVTPL category. are measured at fan valoe with all ehanges recognized in the P&L

De-recognition
A financial asset {or, whese apphicable, a part of a financil asset or part of a Comparny of similar financial assets) s primarily derecognised (1¢. removed from the Companies balance sheet)

when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

“The company has transferred s nghts 1o recewve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation te pay the received cash flows in full withous matenal delay o a third party under a

*passsthrough” arangement; and either
{a) the company has tansierred substanuially all the risks and rewards of the asset, o
{b) the company hias neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asser, but has wansfened control of the asset.

On de=recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt imstruments measured a1 FYOCT) and equity mstruments (measured at FVPTL) are recopnized m the Statement
of Profivand Loss Gains and losses i respect of debt mstruments measured at FVOCT and that are accumulated in are reclassify to profit or lnss on de-recogmition Gains or losses on equity
instruments measured at FVOCT that are recognized and accumulated in Other Comprehensive Income are not reclassified w profit or loss on derecogmition.

Impairment of Minancial assets

The company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measwrement and recognition of impairment [oss on the following financial assets and ereditnisk exposure.

3} Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g , loans, debt securities, deposits, wade receivables and bank balance

b}  Fimancial assets measwed at fanr valoe through other comprehensive income

The Company fallows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes m credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment {oas allowance based on Iifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, rght fiom its wnitial recogmition

For recognition of mpamrment loss on other financial assets and nsk exposure, the Company determines that whether there bas been a significant increase in the credit risk since imitial
recognition. [f credit sk has not mercased sigmficantly, 1 2-month ECL 15 used to provide for impairment loss. However, if' eredit risk has mereased sigmificantly, Ifetsme ECL 15 used 1t na
subsequent perind, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there 15 no longer a sigmilicant mcrease in eredit sk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recogrising
impaiment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liahilities are clussified, at inittal recognition, as financial labilites at fa value throngh profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and bormowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs
The Company’s financial liahilities include trade and other payables. loans and barrowings including bank overdrafis.

Subisequent measurement

The measurement of financial labilities depends on their elassification. as described below
Financial linbilities at FVTPL

Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities desienated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit o loss.

Financial liahilities designated upon initial recognition at fau value through profit or loss are dessgnated at the nihial date of recognition, and enly if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satsfied For
liahilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ lasses atributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, These gams! loss are nou subsequently
wansferred 1o profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative wan or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liablity are recognised n the statement of

profitor loss.

Financial labilities st amortized cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amartized such as loans and borowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of ransaction cost inewrred. After inmal recognion, financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective imerest rate {EIR) method. Gains and lasses are recogmsed i prafit or loss when the habilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost 15 ealculated by taking into account any discount of premnium on acquisition and fees ot costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 15 included a3 finance

coats in the statement of profie and loss
De-recognition
A financial liability is derecogmised when the oblgauon under the lability 15 discharged or cancelled or expired When an existing financial ability 1s replaced by another from the same

lender on ‘substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substanually modified, sueh an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the orgmal liabality
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised n the statement of profit or Inss
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o Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Inmial recogriion and subsequent measurement
The Company uses dervative financial instruments, such a5 nterest rate sWaps o hedge ns foreign currency 1isks, interest rate nisks Such denwauve financal instruments are initialky

recounised at fuir value on the date on which a derivative contract 15 entered mto and are subsequently resmeasured at faw value Dertvatives are carried as finaneial assets when the far value
is positive and a5 financial labilities when the fair valug is negative

p Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recogmsed 1o the extent that it 15 probable that the econamic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be relisbly measured, regardless of when the payment 1z bemg
made Revenme 15 measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled i contract with customer The consideration is determined based on the price specified in
the contract, net of volume discounts and rebates. Revenue excludes any taxes ar duties eolleeted on behali of the Government which are levied on sales such as Goeds and Services tax

The Company cams revenue from time and vovage charter

Time Charter / Pool Chaner hire earmings are accrued on tme proportion basis. Revenue from voyage charters is recognised us meome, by reference 1o the vovage progress on foad-to-
discharge basis, which has bieen assessed by management to be an appropriaie measure of progress towards complete satstaction of the performance obligations ever time under Ind AS 113

Pool revenue is recognised a5 the performance obligation is satisfied over time in aceordance with the pooling agreement
Contract assets relate 1o the unfinished vovages to represent the Company’s right to consideration for services provided to date. Contract asser is reclussified to wade receivables at the pont at

which it 15 invoiced to the customer
Contact labiliies are towards charter have received in advance
Subsidy from government towards a vovaye contracts are recognised as other operating income

Juduement is mvolved in estimating days to reach the load portand discharge port destmations impacung the ealeulation of income to be acerued for mcomplete vovage
Demurrage revenue is recognised as and when the performance obligations under the contract 15 satisfied

Interest income

Eor all debt insuments measured eiher at amortised cost, interest income 15 recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR 15 the rate that exactly diseoums the estimated future cash
payments or reccipts over the expected life of the financial instrument o a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross camying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of &
finaneial liability. When caleslating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by dering all the co ual terms of the financial mstrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and simila options) but docs not consider the expected eredit losses. Interest income is included n finance mcome in the stavement of profit and loss

Insurance claim
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admimed / expected 10 be admitted and 1o the extent that the amount recoverable can be mensired reliohly and it is reasonably certain
10 expect the ulumate collection

q Investment in subsidiary
Non-Current Investments in equity shares in subsidiaries are carried at cost less aceumulated impaimment losses, f any. Where an indication of impairment cxists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down (o its ecoverable amount On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are
recognised m the Statement of Profit and Loss

r Taxes on Income
Current income-tax is measured at the amount cxpected to be pard to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in Indix and 1ax lows prevailing in the respective
tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The wx rates and tax laws used w compute the amount are those that are enacied or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Curment income
L pelating to items recognized directly i equity s recognized in equity and nat in the statement of profivand loss

Pursuant o the introduction of section 115V A under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Company has opted for computation of its incorte from shypping actratics under the tonnage tax scheme
Thus, incame from the business of operating ships is asscssed on the basis of the deemed tonnage income of the Company and no deferred tax is applicable w such inceme as there are no
temporary differences

s Employee Benefits

Retirement henefit in the form of provident fond is a defined contribution scheme. Employee benefits in the form of Seamen’s Welfare Contributions are considered as defined contribution
plans and the conuributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the penod when the contributions to the respective finds are due. The Company recognizes contnbution payable
to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan 15 determined using the projected unit credn methed

The Company has defined benefit plans for its emplovees, viz, gratuity hability. The costs of providing benefits under this plan 15 determined on the basis of acwarial valuation at each vear-
end. Remeasurements, comprising of sctuarial gams and lesses for the defined benefit plan are recognized in full in the pened in which they oceur i the statement of other comprehensive
income

Met interest 15 calculated by apphang the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asser. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

11 Service Costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and [osses on curtailments and non-routing settlements, and

1) Net interest expense or income

The accwnulated leaves at the year end 15 not carmed forward and the entire leave halance gets lapsed. Hence, no provision foe leave encashment is provided in the books.




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Nutes to standalone Financial statements for the yeur ended March 31, 2024

3A hev seurees of esti u q /

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amaunt of assets and labilites that ave non readily apparent from other sowrces The estimates and sssociated assumptions are based on historical experence and other faetors that are
considered to be relevant Actial results may differ from these estimates

The estmates and underdying assumptiens are reviewed on an ongome basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the peniod in which the estmate 15 revised i the revision
affects only that penod, or in the period of the rev ision and future peniod, if the revisien affects current and future penad

1) Useful lives and residual value ol property, plant and equipment

On initial recogrition, the eost of property and equipment aequired i allocaied o each component of the asset and depreciated separately

Manterance costs are recognized as expenses for the vear, with the exeeption of mandatory dry-docks required to mamntain vessel navigation certificates, which constiiute an identifiable
companent ugion the acquisition of a vessel and which are thereafter capitalized when the following drv-docks occur Dirv-docks are depreciated over the remaning uselul life of the refated
vessel or Lo the date of the next dry-dock, whichever is sooner

Useful hves are estmated based on past experience: Management decides from time to time to revise the estimates for individual assets or Companys of ussets with similar charactensues due
to factors such as quality of mainienance and repair, technical development and environmental reguiremems. Refer to note 2{d) for the useful Lives ypically used for new assets

The Company estimates residual value to reflect a moving average price of 10 years scrap rate Reésidual values are difficult 0 estimate given the long lives of vessels, the uncertamty as to
fistare economie conditions and the future price of steel, which is considered as the main determinant of the residual price. Management continually reassesses the residual value of the assets
based on changes in the economic environment and revises the values to refleet the smpact of any significant changes

i) Contngencies

Trt the normal course of business, contmgent liabihities may anse from litgation and other claims agamst the Company. Potential labilities that are possible but net probable of crystalising or
ate very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilines. Such liabilines are disclosed in thee notes but are not recognised. The cases which have been determined as remote by
the Company are not disclosed. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclased in the Consolidated financial statements unless when an mflow of economic benefits 15 probable

) Fanr value measuremenis

When the fair values of financial assets and fnancial Liabilines recorded o the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices m active markets, thew far value 15 measured usng
valuation techmiques including the DCF model. The nputs to these models are taken from ohservable markets where possible, but where this 15 not feasible, a degree of judgement is requined
i1 establishing fair values. Judgements imclude considerations of inputs such as liguidity nsk, credit visk and velatilny, Chunges w assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fau
value of financial instuments (refer note 38),

1) Defined benetit plans (gratumy benetits)

The cast of the defined henefit gratwity plan and the present value of the gratnty obligauen are determuined using acwanal valuations. An aetuanal valuation mvolves makny varmos
assumptions that may differ from actual developments i the fiture: These melude the determination of the discount rate, fiuture salary imereases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
mvolved i the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation 1s bighly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumplions are reviewed at cach reporting date

v) Impawrment of non-financial assets

Imparment exists when the earrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds 1ts recoverable amount, which s the higher of its fair valie less costs of disposal and its value in use The
fan value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from hinding revenue agreements, conducted at arm™s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for dispesing of the asset. The value in use caleulstion 15 based on a DCF model The cash flows are derived from the budget and do not inchide restructiuning activities that
the Company s ot vet committed to or significant future mvestments that wall enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount 15 sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF madel as well as the expected faure cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extapolation purposes

3b) Standards issued but not vet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affurs (" MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments 1 the existng standards under Compames (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time 10 time
There are no stamdards that have been issued but nat yet effecuve

i af mad

The Company has adopted, with effeet from 01 April 2023, the following new and revised standards and interpretations Theie adoption has not had any significant impact on the amounts
reported in the financial statements

| Ind AS [ Presentation of financial staternents: The amendment requires diselosure of matenial accounting pelicies rather than sigrificant accounting policies,

2 Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accountng Esumates and Errors: The amendment replaces definition of *change in aceounting estimates’ with the definition of “accounting

eshimaies




ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Nuoies (o standalone Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

40 Property. plant. equipment

Pasticulars Weasels * Furniture's & Mxtures Mutor vehicles Oifice equipment Tugl
Rs. in ey Rs. in crs R, in crs Rs. in i3 Ra. in ors Hs. in crs

Decumed € ast
At April 1, 2022 1,175.53 012 5.28 113 Lu3 2,183.20
Additiong 400 34 - 107 013 015 405 54
Dispssiils {TlL.ed)y - - = = (7L 6y
At March 31, 2023 150580 D;EI 893 1.26 118 2.517.42
Additons |07 93 - - (18 0.20 808.32
Disposals (3nl 17} = (0.13) = - [ELT ]
At March 31, 2024 1952.56 012 8.1 144 138 2 94 43
Depreciation and Impairment
ArApril 1,2022 434,49 015 i .51 L5 439.32
Depreciation charge for the persod 31542 0oz (8% 018 031 31682
Disposals {4437y x = - - (44.37)
At March 31, 2023 TOE 53 17 4.15 0949 0.91 Ti1.77
Depreciation charge for the penod 408 62 01 1.50 013 .20 41040
Dispasals (11341} - (041} . = (113352
At March 31, 2024 100074 0.18 5.54 1.12 L1 1,008.71
Net book value
At March 31, 2023 1,500,206 0is .80 0,27 027 L8056
At March 31, 2024 no4 3z 032 .27 1.955.71

*Note: The vessels are hypothecated to the bank for availing loan for purchase of vessel and the current assets of the Company

4B ~ Asan As al
Partikary 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balunce at the beginning of year 058 1.08%
Additions dunny the year 195 0.5%
Assets Capitalised durning the vear (0,58} {1.0%)
Balance at the end of the year 1.95 058

Ageing of Capital-Worksin Progress {CWIP)
At Mareh 31, 2024

Less than 1 year 1=2 vears 2-3 years Muore than 3 years Total
Rs. in ers e, in ors Rs. in crs Rs. in crs Hs. in crs
- Projects in progress 1.95 - - & | 95
- Projects tempararily suspended - - - & =
1.95 - = = 1.95
At Murch 31, 2023
Less than | yeur 1-2 years 2-3 years Muore thun 3 years Tutal
My, in crs Rs. i crs Hs. in crs R in s K. i ers
- Projects in progress 0.58 = - = 158
= Projects temporanly suspended - - - - _
155 : : : oss

There are no everdiue projeets, hence the diselosure permming to overdue project lms been dispensed with.

AC  Intangible Assets

As ul
Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hs. in crs Rs. i ers

Deemed cost - Computer software
Opening balance 1.41 119
Additions a1 032
Despasals = =

160 1.41
Amortisation snd fmpairment
Opening halance 048 035
Depreciation charge for the perod nis ik
hsposals - =

iL62 048

— -
098 .93




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to standalone Financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

5 Onher Financial Assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in ery
Non Cwrrent
Financial assets (a1 amortised cost)
Loan to subsidiary 93.52 T5.78

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered goad

Others 002 0.02
Related parties 6.46 12,88
Interest acerued but not due on Fixed Deposits 296 1.65
Bank deposits with remaining mamurity more than 12 months 35.23 26.10
138.19 116.43

Current

Security deposits
Unsecured. considered good

Others = 1
Related parties T.62 -
Employee advances 0,21 3l
Interest accrued but not due on Fixed Deposits 574 1.39
Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 maonths 164 6% 41.30
Other receivables
Others 28.20 13,15
Related parties - 0.05
10946 5620
——
347.65 171.63

6 Tax assets (net)

Asat Adat
March 31, 2024 Murch M, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. incrs
Advance Ineame Tax (net of provigion for laxation ) 0.64 10.07

(o4 107




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to standalone Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

7 Inventories

Asat As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2023
Rs, in crs Rs. in crg

Bunker® 4.33 169
Lube Oil* 16.39 15.25

20.72 25.94
*The above closing stock represents inventory maintained on the vessels of the Company

& Investments
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 1023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs

Investment i Liquid Mutwal Funds
(Faur value throngh profit & loss)- Quoted
Axis Liguid Fund - Regular Growth - 751
Axis Ultea Short Term Fund Direet Growth - 5.03
Bharat Bond FOF- Apnl 2023 Direct Growth Plan - 236
Canara Robeco Liguid Fund Regular Growth - 508
HOFC Ligued Fund-Growth - 5.05
Aditya Birla Sunlife Low Duration Fund Regular Growth 5835 =
Aditya Birla Sun Lite Money Manager Fund Regular G 48,15 =
SEI Magnum Lltra Short Duration Fund Regular Growt 4381 -
ICICT Prudential Money Market Fund - Direet Growth 3794 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life - Saving Fund Regular Growth 30,60 =
DEP Saving Fund Regular Plan Growth 0.7 -
ICICT Prudential Savings Fund - Growth 2046 -
Kotak Savings Fund - Direct Plan Growih 2044 =
Tata Maney Market Fund Regular Plan - Growth 2038 o
HSBC Lltra Short Duration Fund - Reguilar Growth 20.08 -
Bandhan Ultra Shon Term Direct-G 1523 -
Hdfc Money Markel Fund - Regular Plan — Growth 15.06 %
DSP Saving Fend Darect Growth Plan 10,530 -
HDFC Ligud Direct -G 1021 -
Invesco India Mency Market Fund - Regular Growth 10.1% =
Hafe Ultea Short Term Fund - Regular Growth 1004 -
HDFC Money Market Fund - Dirget Growth Plan 840 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life - Saving Fund Direct Growth £.40 -
Bandhan Ultra Short Term Fund Regolar Growth 1TDFC 5 b =
HDFC Floating Rate Debt Direct -G 5.02 -

416.58 15.04
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Notes to standalome Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Trade Receivables

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. incrs Hs, iners
Trade Receivables
Unseeured, considened good 9781 8574
Trade Receivahles, which has significant increase i credit risk 4 8% 345
Tmparment allowance based on expected credit Ioss |4 5%) (3.45)
v7.81 B5.74
Ageing of Accounts Receivahles
March 31, 2024
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-12 years 2-3years M:::?:n Tutal
Rs. in ers Rs. iners Rs, in ers Rs, in crs Rs. incrs Rs. in crs Rs. incry
Undisputed Trade recewvables considered goad 92.66 5,15 - - 97 %1
Undisputed Trade receivables considered Doubiful - - - - 488 - 4 8%
Disputed Trade receivahles considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables considered doubifiil - - - F - - -
- 91,66 515 - 4.88 - 102.69
March 31, 2023
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1=12 vears 23 yenrs Mt Tutal
3 years
Rs. in ery Rs. incrs Rs. in crs Rs. incrs Rs. imcrs Rs. im crs Rs. incrs
Undisputed Trade receivables considered good - ™3l 1.04 534 - - (R
Undisputed Trade recervables considered Duouhtful - - - - 345 - 345
Disputed Trade receivables considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables considered doubtful - - - - - - -
- 79.31 1.64 5.39 3.45 - R,14
Credil tetims
Trade receivables - are due immediate after the raising of the imvoice to the customers
Credit risk manngement fegarding trade receivables has been deseribed in note 41
Trude receivables does not include any recenvables from direciors and officers of the company
Set out below the movement i the allowance for expected credit losses of trade recervables
Asat Asat
Muarch 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Asat Apnl 1 343 032
Reversal during the year (3.45) (0.32)
Provision made during the year 4 R% 345
At the end of year 458 3.45
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Nutes to standalone Financial statements for the yenr ended March 31, 2024

Contract assels

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs, in ers
Al the beginmng of the year 130 279
Creation during the year 440 1.30
Deduction dunmg the year {1.30) [2.79)
Al the end of vear 4.4 1.30
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 1023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Balance with banks
Om corrent accomn s 102 56 172,89
Depnsits with onginal mamety of less than three months 54.40 421
Cash o hand 129 [
158.25 177.86
Other Bank Balances
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2003
Rs. in ers Hs. incrs
Depostis with orgenal maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months
206,52 184 96
Deposits with remaining matority less than 12 months |6 69 41.30
Dieposits with remaining maturity maore than 12 months 3523 26,10
%644 152,36
Amount Disclosed under Other Financial Assets {Refer Note §) (199.92) (67.40)
196,52 184.96

Recongiliation between the opening and ¢losing balances Tor labilities arising from fAnancing activities
Long - term horrowings

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Farticalors
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs

Openimg 1.061.73 1,141.03
Cash flowiner) 185.20 (46.47)
MNon= Cash Changes

Foreign exchange movement 3.50 (32.83)
Closing 1,250.43 106173
Classified as current maturity 34528 276.15
Non - current lability 903,15 783 58
Tatal 1,250.43 1,061.73

There is no non-cash transaction m investing achivities




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED

Notes to standnlone Financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

Other Assers
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hs. in ers Rs. in crs
Non Current
Balance with statutory authorities {refer note 32) .16 1.16
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good 241 2322
21.57 14,38
Current
Secured, considered pood
Unsecured, congidered good
Advance to Suppliers 303 176
Balance with statutory authonties 1192 24 80
Prepaid Expenses 3.99 355
Orther advances .00 0,040
19,84 31.11
Investment in subsidiary
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Non-Current Investments
Investment in Equity Instrumenis
Tn subsidiaries (at amortised cost)
Seven Istands Maritime Training Foundation
150,000 March 31, 2023 1.50.000) Equity Shares aof Rs. 100- each
fze 1 29 84

19,84




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to standalone Financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

14 Equity Share Capital

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Mo. of shares Hs. in crs MNao. of shares Rs, imoers

AUTHORIZED SHARES
730,000,000 {March 31, 2023 ; 7,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each. 75,000,000 75.00 75,000 000 75.00

75,000,000 TE.00 TE,1,000 T5.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID-UP SHARES
5.72.27.550 (March 31, 2023 : 5,72, 27 550) Equily Shares of Rs,10v- each, Fully
Paid up 57,227,550 5723 57,221,550 57.23
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up sharve capital 57,227,550 57.13 57,227,550 57.23

a)  The Company has only one class of Equily shares having a face value of Rs 10 each, Each holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vote per
share, In the event of hiquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to recerve remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts in proportion to their sharcholdings.

h)  Details of shareholding more than 3% equity shares in the Company:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Srmo. Name of the sharcholder No. of Shares %o holding % Change during the No. of Shares Yo holding % Change during
_Near ithe Year
I Mr TW.Pinto 29,190,750 S1.01% - 20,190,750 ST -
2 Mis FIH Maunitios Investments Limited 27,777,650 48 349, - 27.777.650 48 54%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders’ members and other declarations received from shareholders reparding beneficial interest, the above sharehalding represent
both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

¢} Details of the shares held by the Promoters

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Srno. Name of the sharcholder No. of Shares % holding % Change during the No. of Shares % holding % Change during
Muar the Year
1 Mr. T.W. Pinto 29,190,750 51.00% - 29,190,750 S101% -
) Proposed Final Dividend As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Prapesed final dividends on Equity shares:

Praposed final dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2024 INR 72 per share

{31 March 2023: INR 18 per share) 412.04 103.01

412.04 103,01

Proposed final dividend on equity shares are subjel to approval at the Annual Genral meeting and are not recognised as a hability as at March 31, 2024
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15 Oiher Equity

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs, in crs Hs. in crs
General reserve 21378 152.13
Tonnage tax reserve under section | L5VT of the Income Tax Act, 1961 149.63 albs
Securities premium 24319 24319
Surplus in the statement of profit amd loss 1.2649.94 786.25
Other comprehensive income (0.0} (44)
1.576.46 1,242.78

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Security Preminm

Securities premium 18 nged to record the premium recesved on issue of shares, 1t s nlilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

General Reserve
Ciemeral reserve 15 created after the utilisation of tonnage tax reserve for appropriate purposes and are available for distribution to Shareholders

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Surplus in the stalement of profit and loss represents surplus‘accomulaled earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to sharcholders.

Tonnage tax reserve under section HISVT of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Tonnage Tax Reserve created as per the provisions of the Section 115VT of the Income-tax Act, 1961, wherehy a minimum of 20% of hook profits from the tonmage tax activities are to he
utilised for acquiring mew vessels within 8 vears
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16 Borrowing

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Non Current
Long-term horrowing
Secured term loan
- Indian rupee term loans from banks 1,064 BE TI7.68
= Foreign currency loan from banks 183,57 344,05
Less :Current maturities of long-term borrowings disclosed as short-term
borrowings (345.28) (276.15)
05,15 T85.58
Current
Short-term horrowings
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 34528 276.15
Bank overdraft - .05
34528 276,20
1,250.43 LO61.TS

a)  Secured Term Loan is repavable in 22 to 23 quarterly mstalments after three to six months of moralonum penod from the date of disbursement.

by Foreign currency term loan carries interest rate of LIBOR plus 250 1o 350 hasis point and Tndian rupee term loan from bank carries interest @ 725 %pa 109 03% pa
¢} All the term loans are secured by way of hypothecation of the Vessels and the current assets of the Company.

i) Term loan of Rs. 350.3% Crs as on 31 March 2024 from Banks is secured by personal guarantee of Capt. Thomas W. Pinto, Ms. Leena Pinto

¢} Bank overdraft interest rate ranges from 8.75% was 13.95%, the borrowing is against hen of Fixed deposits

f)  The term loan has been utifised for the purpose for which they were obtaimed.
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g} Term of repayment and interest are as follows

Deseription Effective Interest rate Balance instalments as on Year of Maturity FY  Amount outstanding ~ Amount
31.03.2024 Ending 31.03.2024 outstanding
JL03 2023
Rs.incrs Rs. in crs
Foreign eurreney term loan - M T Conrage LIBOR + 250 hasis points 3 2024 886 17.53
Term Loan - M. T, Kestrel 9.05% 4 2025 835 16,69
Term Loan « M.T. Lovalty 9.00% 2 024 400 1198
Term Loan - M.T. Gallant 3.95% - - - 19,59
Term Loan - M.T. Snccess £95% f 2026 14,98 2494
Term Loan - M.T. Coronet £.65%, fi 2025 [0.46 1741
Term Loan - M.T. Blossom B50% 7 1026 11.57 1817
Term Loan = M.T. Dhynasty 8500 7 2026 12.45 1954
Fareign currency term loan - M.T. Feather LIBOR + 175 basis poinis 7 2026 1360 1245
Foreign :1]tr:ﬁc&' term loan = M. T, Patriot LIBOR + 275 hasis points 6 2026 1700 25,72
Foreign currency term loan - M. T. Sparkle LIBOR + 250 basis points 1] 2026 12401 19.71
Foreign currency teim loan - MUT. Lourdes LIBOR + 270 basis points ° 2026 13166 1922
Term Loan - M.T. Concord 163% 11 2026 6364 8678
Term Loan - MT. Classic 1.62% = & = 8527
Term Loan - M.T. Babylon 230% 12 2026 34.90 43.89
Term Loan = M. T, Century 1008, 12 2026 67.74 83 27
Term Loan - LPG/e Pine Gas 3.58% 22 2029 18245 211543
Term Loan - M.T. Harvest 340% 14 027 B 03 48 85
Foreign Currency Term Loan - LPGe Rose Gas JA0%, 14 2027 8545 108.26
Term Loan Fairway 5.00%a 6 2028 34.80 4375
Term Loan Marvels 5.00% 16 2028 44.95 56,52
Term Loan Regency 6. 10% 18 2028 44 84 477
Term Loan MT Bourbon 8.25% 2] 2029 641 -
Term Loan MT Pioneer 825% 2] 2029 Ri.06 -
Term Loan MT Willows 8.50% 22 2028 8475 -
Term Loan MT Majpesty 8. 7% 22 2029 154 .48 -
Term Loan MT Capital 8 6% 22 2030 14990 -
1,250,43 1,061.73
Less ‘Current maturities of long-term horrowings diselosed as short-term borrowings 14528 276.15
M5.15 TH5.58
|
)k
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17 Other Financial Liahilities

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs, in ¢ry Rs, incrs
Current
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives not designated as hedges 38.62 7348
Interest acered but not bue on becured loan 270 114
Interest accred on MSME 0.89 089
Salary payahle 16,15 12.05
Capital creditors 19.78 2485
G814 114.41
17.1  Lease liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs, in cry Rs. in crs
Non-Lurrent
Lease abality (Note 30) 180 488
1L.50 4.58
‘urreni
Lease lighility (Mote 300 ERE] kE.L
ERE 38
I8 Provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. incrs Rs. in ers
Current
Gratmity Provision 2.01 163
Seamens Gratuity 033 027

1M 190
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19 Trade payables

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. incrs Rs. in ers
Trade pavables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.72 2.4
- Total eutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enlerprises 7366 5271
B5.38 5512
Ageing of Acconnts Payable
March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbhilled dues Nat yet due Less than | year 1-2years 2-3years  More than 3 years Total
Rs. in crs Rs. in ers Rs. in crs Rs. in ers Rs. in crs Rs, in crs Rs. iners
i MEME 381 352 416 0,09 o1 013 ¥
i Others 45.86 806 15.62 1.85 .85 142 T3 66
i Disputed dues - MSME - - - - +
v Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
49.67 11.58 19.78 1.94 .86 158 8538
March 31, 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled dues Not vet due Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3years  More than 3 venrs Tatal
Rs. in ey Rs. in crs Rs. in crs Rs. iners Rs. in crs Rs. in crs Hs. incrs
i MSME 0,14 1.69 .44 0.01 .00 013 241
il (hhers 2408 LoSrd | 16.43 1.42 163 044 3271
il Disputed dues - MSME - . - - - -
v Disputed dues - Others - - - . - -
2422 11.40 16.87 1.43 0,63 0.57 5§5.12
Credit ierms - Pavables are normally settled within 90 days
20 Other current liabilities
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. incrs Rs. in ers
Current
Statutory dues 1146 803
11.46 503
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Notes to standalone Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 Mairch 31, 2023
Rs. iners Rs. iners
Time Charter - Charter hire 1,278 8% 893 55
Vovage Charter - Freight and demurrage 15981 256.93
1,438.69 1.152.48
i 1,058 76 872 25
Outside Indra 379.93 280:23
1,438.6Y 1,152.48

Caontraet balances

For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers Rs. in crs
Trade receivable 9781 %574
Contract assets 440 1 30
Contract liabilities 1.79 17.85

Amount of revenue recogmsed from amounts included in the contract liahilities at the beginning of the year Rs 17 85 crores (previous year Rs 0,27 crores] and
performance obligations satisfied in previous years Rs 17.85 crores (previous year Rs. 0.27 crores).
Out of the total contract hiabilities outstanding as on 31 March 2024, Rs 1.79 crores will be recognised by 31 March 2025

Other aperating income

Subsidy Income

Other income

For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in ers Rs. im crs

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. incrs Rs. incrs

Income from investments 2411 9 83
Insurance claim 145 .69
Interest on Lease deposit 1.21 .10
Exchange differences (net) L.71 -
Interest on fixed deposit 23.54 10.11
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value 17.58 +
Profit on Sale of Asset 274 .59 4912
Interest on income tax refund 0.67 I 16
Interest on loan to subsidiary 7.36 305
Miscellancous Income 171 067

354.93 7593

Purchase of fuel oil and other inventories

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Purchase of bunkers 2907 6081
Purchase of lube oil 23 85 22.54
Purchase of other inventories 521 543
58.13 88.78
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24  Operating expenses

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Rs. in crs Rs. im ¢ers
Crew Charges 193.67 149 68
Port Expenses 2316 20.59
Stores & spares consumed 6708 50 48
Insurance Charges (net) 2307 984
Repairs & Maintanance 34.09 2267
Survey & Certification 11.93 983
Agency Fees 204 1.72
Freight Hire Charges 1084 0.15
Brokerage 826 4.00
Other operating expenses 22.08 20.53
396.22 289.51
25  (Increase)/ decrease in inventories
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Inventories at the end of the year
Bunkers 433 10.69
Lube o1l 16.39 1525
20.72 25.94
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Bunkers 1069 13,39
[Lube ol 1525 13.51
Others - 138
25.94 28.28
5.22 234
26 Employee benefit expenses
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Salaries and bonus 3380 24 49
Directors remuneration w's 197 6.00 6.00
Contribution to provident fund 028 023
Gratuity expense (note 33) 077 .58
Staft welfare expenses 240 1.76
Total 45.25 33.06
27 Depreciation and amortization expense
For the vear ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Depreeiation of property, plant and equipment 41046 31682
Amortization of intangible assets 014 013
Depreciation of Right of use of assels 484 4 .84
415.44 321,79
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28  Finance costs
For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2013
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Interest on term loan 97 3% 45 30
Interest on Lease 061 0.95
Bank charges 321 30
Interest on MSME 053 072
Interest on bank averdraft facility .00 (.00
96.73 o017
29  Other expenses
For the year ended
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Rent on car 062 -
Rates and taxes i 56 11,83
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value - 4132
Legal and professional fees 522 542
Business promaotion expenses 1.94 [.O8
Office utility expenses 3.87 4.55
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Note 45) 294 1.63
Travelling and conveyance 433 514
Communication expenses 0.30 030
Payment to auditor (Note 29(z)) 047 133
Impairment allowance on receivable 0.04 345
Bad debts 483 -
Repairs & Maintanance - plant & machinery 0.23 031
Directors’ sitting fees 0.04 no3
Exchange differences (net) - 16.10
Miscellaneous expenses 2.50 1.63
30.91 94.32
29(a) Payment to auditor
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers Rs. in ery
Payvment to auditor as:-
- Audit fees (CY fees includes Rs. 003 ers relating to previous year) 0.43 0.33
- for taxation matters - -
- for out of pocket expenses 0.04
- for uther services - =
Total 0.47 0.33
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The Company has entered into non cancellable commercial leases for office premises and warehouses These lenses have an average hife of between two and four years with ne tenewal option meluded i the contracts There ae o restrichions
placed uspon the Company by entetimg inta these leases. Rent and Seeurity Deposit 15 pard by the Company 1o the lesser for the right to use the office premises leosed along with facilities and other amenities. Also the Company hag paid rent and
securily deposit for godowns The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title 1o the leased assets. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets

Set out below are the carryimig amounts of nght-of-use assets recogmised and the movemnents durng the year

As at April 1, 2022
Addition

Depreciation expense
As at March 31, 2023
Addition
Depreciation sxpense
As al March 31, 2024

Set out helow are the carrying amounts of lease liahilities and the movements

during ihe period:

Opening
Additions
Aceroed Interest
Payments
Cloging balance

Current

Mon-crrent

Amount recognised in profit or loss

Depreciation expense of righl-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease labilities

Interest Income, interest on lease deposit *
Total amount recognised in profit or loss

* massumed interest rate @) 9% p a

Times Square .

Times Square ,

Times Square ,

Times Sguare ,

Times Square

&th Floor Tth Floor Kth Floor 8th Fluor Tih Floor Gaduwn Tatal
Premises 34 Premises 34(1) Premises 3B Premises 4 Premises 4

1.87 .73 2.03 4.98 a0 [1¥ /il 15.32

[L1h (11T (01 A2 11215 (092} [{LRIEY] 14 84y
1.76 1.67 1.61 3.73 1.68 .04 10,48

= = - = = TR [T

(ANE1] {111 42y 1125 (022) {003 (4 83)

0,65 0.56 119 248 0.7 01 575
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

E77 12.28

0,10 %

6l 095

{451} 14 46)

497 RIT

118 189
17 488

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

484 484
1 61 0,95
(1.21) {11
424 4,69
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Earmings per share (EP5)

The following refMects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computatians

Murch 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

s, in ers Re, im cre
Profit/ { loss) after tnx 73614 0272
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Weighted average sumber of equity shares in calcnlating hasic EPS
Weighted average number of shares outstanding as at year end 57,227 550 §7.227.550
Earnings per share
Basic and Dilwed EPS 12867 5280

Commitments and Contingencies

Contingeni linbilities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs -] -0
Claims agamst the Company not acknowledued as debis inclusive of the penally 1538 1338
and interest {note aj
Guarantees (note b) 145 094
Total 17.83 16.32

The claims against the comprises

Service Tax demand despured by the Company - Rs. 15 38 crs as on March 31, 2024 { March 31, 2023 Rs. 15 38 crs), this amount iz inclusive of imerest and penalty upto the date of the notice. The Company 1z of the opmion that the our acion will succeed and accordinuly
no provision for liability has been recognized in the financal statements

Guaraniees given by the Company comprise:

There are guarantees of Rs 2 42 crs outstanding ag on March 31, 2024 { March 31, 2023 Rs 094 crs) which are griven ta Mombar port trust, ONGC and seamen empleyee office

The Company has filed a commercial admisalty sunt before the High Couet of Guyarat on January 15. 2021, againat Bharat Petroleum Corporation Lirmted (“BPCL™) and all persons whe could in future make a elum, in relation to M. T. Genessa (the “Vessel™ owned by the
Company On January 17, 2018, the Vessel was undertaking o coustal voyage from Mumbai to Kandla, when there oecurred a fire on board the Vessel, leading to loss and damage to property on board or in connection with the operation of the Vessel The Company filed the
sut inexercise of its statutory Aghts to linnt the hability for purported claims (ineluding ¢laims by way of recourse or for indemnity) by BPCL to o sum of Rs. 49 38 ¢rs, under the terms of the Merchant Shipping Act. 1958 read with the Merchant Shipping (L immaniun of

Liaility for Marmme Claims) Rules, 2015 A notice has been mssued ta BPCL by Guarat High Court. the matter 1s angoing with the nest heaning scheduled for August 14, 2024, but the matter could not be heard due to paucity of time. the next date has ot yet been provided
The Company hive been served with pleadings on December 21, 2021 1n Comimercial Admnalty Suit filed by Deendayal Port Trust (DPT) aganst the Company and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited ("BPCL® ) for clammimg salvage reward, 1o make and declare o salvage
reward of R 135 craees alang with 15% iterest pa from date of filing of suit till payment and Such other and funther reliefs as the nature and circumstances of the present case may require. Company lability 15 imuted to 8% 1e Companies habiliy s hmned upto Rs 10 80
ors

SIS filed an mtenm appheation for filmyg counter clam against the clamm by DPT. The same was allowed vide order dated 29 JTune 2022 thereafter SIS has filed Counter clam to DFT's claiim oncdth Jaly 2022 nest date has not beei given yet

Company filed an [merim Application (L) No. 204362022 seeking direetions agamst the Registry of the Bombay High Court to take on record the Wratten Statement & Counterclam: Set off affirmied on 27 June 20022

The matter 15 ongoing, with the next heanmg date yet 1o be scheduled
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33 Gratwity

Thie Company fins a defined benelit grawy phes fon s emplovess Every eniptloyee wha his conipleted five vers of Service of move pets A gratuty on 1esignation or death or
retirement at |5 duys of list dravwn salary foe cach completed vear of service. The gratty pian of the Company i funded through group gratasy insurance schee of Life Insurance

Carporation of Indis

Each vear, tie Compamy seveis the level of funding i the gratuity plian Suel o raview metudes te psses-liability nutclyng strategy and investment risk nunagenent polcy. The

Company decides its contrsbubion based on the resulis of tus amual review The Comgany aus to keep annual contributions relamvely stable at a level such thatmo plan deficns

(based on vaduaten perfermed) will anse

The fallvany wbles sunmarnie the components of net benefit expense recagnized in the Statement of profit andd loss and the funded status and amoums recogmized i the Balance

sheet for the respecuve plans

Met emplayee beneflit expense recognired in employee cost

Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. im crs
Current sanvice cost .65 .51
Net interest cnst 0.12 .07
et henefit expense 0.77 5%
Qiher Comprehensive lncoiic March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
K3, in crs R, i crs.
Actuanal (Ganp'Loss recopmzed for the year 10 3y (0 oa)
Retum on Plan Assets excluding net mterest 000 (0 00)
Re-rersurement gams/{loss) on defined benefit plans ik 3 (LR
Balunce sheet
Benelit asset! (Hability)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
R im cis
Present vilue of defined benefit abligaton 13,30) {2.35}
Fair value of plan assets 077 (1 %]
Plan asset! (lahility) {12.73) {163}
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ors Hs. in crs
Opening defined benefit obligation . 18 17
Current serage cost 065 051
Imerest cost 017 ol
Past serviec cost - -
Benefits paid (0.03) -
Actuarial (gain)lass an obligation .36 {1 ()
Cluging defined benelit sbligation 3.50 1.35
Changes in Tair vulue of plan assets
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hs. in crs Rs. incrs
Operimg fair value of plan assets 072 (I
Adjustment fo opening fam value of plan assets {0.ma) -
Expected retum 0.05 L]
Contrbutons by employer o3 -
Henefits pad {003y B
Actuanal gani{loss) (0.00) 0,00
Closing fair value of plan assets 0.77 072
Sensitivity Analysis
Siggrificant actuaiial assumphons for the determunation of the defined henefit abligation are discount rate and expected salary werease The sensitivity analyses below have been
Mareh 31, 2024 Mu.r:h]l.ig_!}
R, bn crs Ra. in eis
Present value of ebligation
Discount rte (ncrease by 1%) (0.85) (1)
[hgcount rate (decrease by 1%a) (0.56) 014
Salary Escalution (increase by 1%) (0.a3) 109
Salary Escalution (decrease by 1%} (0 80) (.07

The sensitrvity analysis presented above may sot be representative of the aciual change i the defined bersefit obligation as it is unlikely that the chamge in assumpuions would ocor 0

The principal nssum ptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown beluow:

March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
Dizcount rale T.04% . 2H%
Rate of increase in compensation level 10.00%5 10,040
Expected rave of retum on assets 7.34% 7347
Employes tumover 16.00%, li 00%
Experience adfusiment for current and previous years:

March 31, 2024 Mhiireh 31, 2023

Hl._i.l—'l.-'ri Rs_im crs
Defined benefit obligation 350 433
Pliw assets 077 07
Surplus/ {defici) - . 274 {163}
Expenence adjustments on plan Liabilines / : - ;) 036 {0.06)
Expenence adjustments on plin assets o vh : o\ 0.00 {00y
<ig .

Estintate of future salary et sases, considered in actuanal valustion, sakes account

enmployment market

1/ -

% e L Y A\ A\
on, Seronty. urﬂgryfnﬁ n'TITaﬂir rebevant factors, such as supply and demand in
o
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3 Heluted party disclosures

a Names of related partics and related party relationship

Name of the party

DNeseription of relatiomship

M5 Seven bslands Logisues Prnvate Linnted

M5 Sy en Islands Mannme Tranmg Foundanon (SIMTE)
|date of incomporation 13,013 2021 |

Wi Seven lslands Slappang Intcmasonal F2E

{date of incomporation 283 2024}

v Pinte’s Pathologacal Labosaton

Parsarwar & Co,

Seven lslunds Shipping Foundation

Fasrtiax India Chaiitable Foundation

Ky managerial personnel | Diregtors
Cape Thomas W Pinko fugpto 30 14 2024)
Copt. Thomas W Bingo dw e 07 115 2024)
Ms Leena Pimin

Mr Clayton Panto (upto 30 142024

M. Clayton Panto fw.c £ 01 65 2024)

Mr Supt Passatwar

Mr Jay Parckh

M- Warren Fimo

M Uday Gore

M Sumit Maheshwan

Ms Sampeeviata Samdan

M Al Diovle

Ms Aashita Vishakana

=

-

. Related party transaction

The following table provides the total amoust of transuctions that have been entered into with relased pa

Enterprse over which key management personnel and their selatives have stemificant influence

Wholls sned subsidin

Wholly owned sibsideny

Enterprise over which ks management persunncl and then wlatves have sigmticant inlloenee

Enterprsc over which directors and thet selorves hove significant influance

Emerprize over which directors have sygnificant influcnce
Entesprise nver which direstors lave significant influence

Cleprmuim & Managing Dy rector
Direcror

Spouse of Capt. Thomas W Piaio
Chief Excoutine Officer
Managing Dirceror & CED
Dhircetor

Conipany Seenctary

Cheel Finapewl Officer
Independent Dereinor

Nomnines Dircetor

Independant Director
Independent Direetor

Spouse of Mi_ Jay Parckh

ies fur the relevant fimancial year:

Natire of transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
R, in crs Rs.imers
M5 Seven Islands Logistics Private Limited Uffice remt pisd 447 4.50
Deposit given = -
Reitmbursement of expenscs 113 013
Dr Pinto's Pathelogical Laboraon: Medical sxpenses ingurmed - 00s
Parsatuwar & Co Consultancy chages 3T 4110
SIMTF Reimbursement of expenscs - ins
Loan given 240 6R.50
Fairdax India Cluasitable Foundation Donation u's 135 [0 51
M Clavwon Pinio Reimburscment of exponscs 11.11% ()
Capt. Thomas W, Pinte Feimbursement of expenscs 13 1.8%
Me Uday Gore Director Sitting foes o 02
Ms. Sanpeevlata Saumdani Divvetor Siming fees ol 61
Mr Anil Devli Diector Sitting foes m 0,01
c. Dutstanding balances
Alareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
He, im crs R in crs
Mis Seven Islands Logisiees Prvase Limied = secunty deposit 1364 1568
Mis Scven lslands Mantime Training Foundation (SIMTF) 1iLR9 5284
M5 Sy en Tslamds Maritime Traning Foundation [SINMTF} - Beimbusemont of expenses - (IR L)
. Remunerition to key managerial personeel
March 31, 2024 Murch 31,2013
Rs. i crs Ks. in €rs
Capt. Thomas W Finio L 0l
Mr. Clayton Pinto 150 130
Mr Jay Parckh 43 19
Mr. Wamen Prnio 37 038
14 0y

Mz Aashita Vishwakama

e Other fransaclions:
Guaranice given
Thiere are no ganrantees outstanding as at 31 March 2024 and 31 Mareh 2023

i) Guaraniee taken

Tenn loan of Rs. 350 39 Cis ason 31 March 2024 (March 31. 2023 - Rs 36431 Crs.) from Banks 12 securcd by personal guasntee of Cagt. Thonas W Pinto. Mz Leena Pinto.

i) The Company has given 4 Joan 1o fts wholly owned subsidian SIMTE. wheein interest is waived uatil March 31, 2026

I, The transactions with the related partics durmy the vear and previoas vear are at anms length basis

35 Capital and other commitments

2 Estimated smount of contracts remaining to be execoted an capital account and not provided for:

The Campany has an capital conmitent regarding the acquisition of vesscl and the dirv dock of ¥

b Company has given Inan to subsadiary Rs. 11189 crs as of March 31 2024 (R, 82.8% o5 a8 of Masch 31 2023)
¢ Ths Compan has other commitment of Rs. 102 Cas (Mareh 31 2023 © Nil ) relating to subsenbed share capital of Mis Seven Istands Shipping Intematiomal FZE (Whalls owned subsidian Compam wis
incarporated an March 8. 2024 and there ase no trnsactions in the subsidiary since banking operations hin e nnt commenced

-5

anmitments relatieg o lease armngements. please refer note 30

The company from time fo time provides necd based support te subsidian, wwards capital and other requicnicnts

csrels of Bs. 176 3% Cra as on 31 March 2024 ¢ Masch 31 2023 Rs 123 1 Crs)
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Notes to standalone Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Company 15 orgamsed into one business unit based on its services and has ene reportable segment The Chiel Executive Officer, Chuet Financial Officer
and Chiel Operatmg vfficer of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM™) The CODM evaluates the Company s financial performance and
makes the strategic decisions

As per Ind A5 108, the company has 4 single reponable segment therefore company has provided the following disclosures

Revenue from pperations
For the period ended For the period ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Hs. in crs Hs. in ers
India 105876 87225
Outside Indea 37993 280.23
1,438,069 1,152.48

Revenue from operations have been allocated on the basis of location of customers

Non current assefs
All non current assets other than financials istruments of the Company are located m India

Asper Ind AS 108 paragraph 34 requires entities to disclose information about ns major customers ve. those cantributing 10% or more of its total amount of revenue
Revenue from extenal customers individually contributed more than 10% of the total revenue of the entity 15 as follows

For the period ended For the period ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in ers

Revenue from external custoniens 740.22 494 03
Mumber of Customers .00 20

Capital Management

For the purposc of company”s capital management, equity includes equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the company. The Company
manages its capital structore and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. the Company's ohjectives are o safeguard contunuty,
maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios i order 1 support its business and provide adequate retum to sharcholders through contmung growth and maxumise he
sharchalders valee The Company funds its operations through mtemal accruals. The manapement and the Board of Directors monitor the return on capital as well as the level of
dividends to shareholders

The Company manages its capilal structure and makes adjusiments in hight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment 1o shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company manitors capital using a pearing rati,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the geanng ratio below 55% The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
bomrowings, less eash and cash equivalents.

As at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024, the Company has only one class of equity shares and has debt. consequent ty such capital structure, these are no extemally imposed capual
requitements. In order 10 maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the company allocates its capital for distribution of dividend or re-investment into business bascd on 1ts long
term financial plans.

The debt equity for the year is as under.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Tatal Debt (note no. 16) 1,250 43 1.061.78
Less: cash and cash equivalents { note no. 10] (13825) {177 86)
Less: Other Bank Balances { note no. 11) {296.52) {184.96)
Net debt T95.66 6Y8.96
Total Equity (note no, 14 and 15)* 1,784 00 1,238 .36
Capital and net debt Zdi‘_??."."l 1,937.32
Gearing ratio 30.84%, 36,08"%

* Excludes tonnage tax reserve
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED

Notes to standalone Financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Agat As at
March 31, 2024 AMarch 31,2023
Carrying value Fair Value Carrying value Fair Value
Rs. imcrs R, iners Rs. in ers Rs. in crs
Financial Assets:
At amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalenis 158,25 158.25 177 86 177 86
Qther bank balances 395,52 296.52 |84 96 184,50
Trade receivables 97.81 97.81 B3.74 357
(hther Finoneial assels 15412 25412 96 85 96.85
Loan to subsidany 9352 9352 7578 7578
Financig| assets at (e valoe throush profit & loss
Derrvvatives not designated as hedges - - - -
Investments in mural funds 426,58 426.58 25.04 25,04
1.326.80 1,326,580 Ged6n 23 646,23
As al As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Carrving value Fair Value Carrying value Fair Value
Rs. incrs R im crs Rs. iners Rs. in crs
Financial Linhilities:
At amaortised cost
Bormowings 1.250.43 1.25043 1.061.78 106178
Other financial liabilities 3952 39.52 38.93 3893
Trade and other pavables 85137 8537 5312 5512
Emagial lnbilities at fair value through profit and loss
Dermatives not designated s hedpes S8 62 58.62 75 44 75.48
1,433.94 1.433.94 1,231.31 1,231.31

Investments in muteal funds are valued ot the NAV's considered at each reportmg date

Derivatives instraments at far valoe through profit or loss reflect the change In the far value of interest rate swap (e paying fixed inlerest and recerving variable imterest) that 1s not designated in hedge refationship, but 15, nevertheless. intended
ta reduce the level of interest rate risk for expected outflow af interest included in the repayments of borrawings,

The Campany uses derivative instrumenits as part of its management of foreign currency risk and interest rate risk associated on borrowings. The Company uses cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps. At 31 March 2024, the Company had
currency swaps and interest rote swop awreement in place for its local currency borrowing The company has contracted to pay fived amount of foreign currency and receves fixed amount of indian currency. The Company recerves a fived rate of
interest of T % =9 % and pays interest at a vanahle rate equal to 6 Months LIBOR+42 75% 1o overnight SOFR plas 3 10% or a lower contracted fixed rate on the omstanding smount The sad swap 15 treated as o dervative and thus measured al fan
value through profit or loss. further, being derivative, it is being mark 1o markel os at March 31, 2024 the derivatives are classified as level 2 fair values i the fair value herarchy due to inclusion of signaficant observahle npits including
counterparty credit risk while arrmving at the fair value
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MWotes in standalone Financial siatements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Fair value measarements recognised in the Balance Sheet:

The following table provides an analysis of finaneisl instrirments that ore measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value. grouped inta Levels 110 3 based an the degree to which the fair value 15 ohservable

=Level | fwr value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) n actve markets for identieal assets or habilites

=Level 2 fair value measurements arc those derived from inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level | that are ohservable far the asset ar liahlity, ether direetly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (e dermved from pnices)
<Level 3 fwr valug measurements ore those derved from valugtion techniques that melude mputs for the asset or habihity that are not hased on abseivable market datis (umabservable inputs)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Ry, in crs Rs, incrs Rs. incrs Ra.incrs Rs. incrs Rs, in crs

Financial Assets

nagial assets at far value throush profit and luss
Investments in mutual funds unis 426 58 2504
Derivatives not designated as hediges -
Financial Liahilities
Finacial habilities at faw value through profit and loss
Dernvatives not designated as hedues

- = 5862 7548 - -
416,58 15.04 58,62 75.48 - -

All the current financial assets and Labilines have earrying amount which is equivalent to far value.
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39 Details of dues to micro and small enterprizes as defined under the MSNED Act, 2006
far the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Rz, inery R, in ers

The principal amount and the mierest due thereon remaming unpaid to any suppher

a3 ot the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1083 169

Interest due on obove 089 072
11,732 241

The amaunt of iterest pasd by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act

2006 alomg with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appomted day during each accounting year 3 -
The amount af interest due and payable for the period of delay i making payment

(which have been paid but beyond the appomnted day durning the yeorh but without

adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006 % ¥
The amount of interest accrued and remianing unpard ot the end of each accounting

year 089 a7l
The amaunt of further interest remaining due and payable even n the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actunlly pamd to the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section

23 of the MEMED Act 2006 1 -

40 Income tax Expense
A Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit & loss
for the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. im crs Rs, iners

Income Tax
Tonnage tax 163 1.60
Current tax 1019 470
Excess/{short) provision for tax of earber year - {0.78)
Taral Current tax expense 11,82 553
Effective iy rate 1.58% 1.79'%

B Reeonciliation between statutory Income Tax Rate applicable to the company and the effective Income Tax rate is as follows :
for the vear ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs incrs Rs. incrs
Profit hefore taxes 748.16 08 24
Effective tnx rate 1 Indin * - -
Tax effect of adjustment for profit subject to tonnage tox regime [ presumplive taxation 1182 553
Income tax expense recognised i the profit and loss account 11.82 553

* Note: In case of Indian shipping companies, tax expense 15 computed based on the gross tonnage of the vessels for the income subpect to tonnage tax. In case of income not subject to tannage tax, the same 15 caleuluted based on the taxable prafits
calenlated in aceordance with the local tax lows.
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Financial risk Management ohjectives and policies

The Compamy's financial risk management s an integral part af haw to plan and execute its husiness strategies. The Company s financiol fisk management pobey 15 set by the Audit commitiee

The value of o finaneial mstrument may change as a result of changes in the nterest rates. foreign currency exchange rafes and other market changes that affect market nsk sensitive nstruments Market risk i attributable ta all market visk sensiive
financial instruments including deposits and loons and borrowings.

The campany manages market risk through Audit comminee, which evaluates ond exercises independent contral over the entire process of market risk management. The committee recommends risk management ohjectives andd pulicies. which are
approved by Audit commties and Board

Market Risk
Markel risk 15 the risk that the far value of future cash fows of a financial mstrument will fluetuate because of chamges in market prices. Market risk pomprises three types of risk interest rate risk, eurmency risk wnd ather price nisk, such as

commodity nisk Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrewings, deposits amd FYTOCT investments
The sensitivity analysis in the fallowing sectians relate to the position os ot 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss stem 15 the effect of the assumed changes m respective markel risks. This is based on the fimancial asgets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The sensitivity of equity 15 caleulated by considering the effect of any associated cash flow hedges at 31 March 2024 for the effects of the assumed chanpes of the underlying nisk

i) Interest rate risk
Triterest rate risk is the risk that the fair vahee of foure cash Nlows of the financial mstmaments will Tuctuate becavse of chanpes i interest rates

Exposure to Interest rate risk

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. incrs Ra. iners
Total Borrowings 1.250.41 1.061.78
%% of Barrowings out of above hearing variahle rate of Interest 43.22% 21 48%

The Company 15 exposed to interest rate risk as the Company borraw funds at floating interest rates The interest rate risk (s managed by monitoring the Company's level of borrowings perodically and structuning s
harrowings on varying maturibies and interest rate terms

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the expasure to interest rates at the balance sheet date. For floating rate labilities. the analysis is prepared assuming the amaunt of liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year
A 50 hasis point increase ar decrease 13 used when reparting interest rate risk and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates

17 interest rates had been 50 hasis ponts hgherlower and all ather vanahles were held constant, the Company's lass for the year ended March 31, 2024 would incrense/decrense by TNR 027 ers (March 31,2023 INR Q.11
ers) This 15 mainly attributable to the Company's expastre Lo interest rales on its vanable rate borrowings

it) Price risk

The Company 15 engoged in the business of commodity transportation of crude oil. petraleum products, coal. ron-ore ete. which mvekves a high level of dependence on the praduction of ol and gas. Thus. demand in these
sectors will have a direct impact on the husiniess of the Company. A declhine i the demand for ail. coal or ran ete. will adversely afTect the business of the company, Thus, often, the factors affecting the supply and demand
for the vessel are beyond the control of the Company as the nature, timing and degree of changes m the industry conditions cannot be foreseen and are unpredictable




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes o standalone Financial statements Tor the vear ended March 31,2024

iil) Foreign curreney risk

Fareign currency risk mamly arses from transactions undertaken by an operating unil denommated mn correncies other than s functional currency. The Company 's exposure 1o the ngk of changes in forewn exchange rates
relates primanly to the Company’s operating nctivities (when revenue or expense 13 denominated in & foreign currencyl. The Company manages its foreign currency risk by converting the forenn currency exposure mto
INR on the date of entering into the transaction

The carrying amounts af the Company’s linancial assets and financial Rabilities denomimated in fereign curreneies at the reporting date are as follows:

Muarech 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i USD Others Usn Others
Ra. incrs Rs. in crs Rs.incrs R, incrs
Trade Receivables 3093 - 3331 -
Cash and Cash equivalents 095 - 335 -
(Other Finaneal Assets 19,59 - - -
(Wet Exposure for Asseis 5146 - 36,86 -
Financial Liahilities
Horrowings 186,17 34543 -
Trade payable 4399 1881 304
Dervatives not designated s hedges 3862 7548 -
Net Exposure for Liahilities 188.7R - 439.72 3.4
Met expasure (Assets-Liahilities) (23732) - (402.86) (3.04)

The follownyg table detmls the Company s sensitrvity toa % incrense and decrease in the funchional currency agoinst the relevant foreipn curreneies in the Company

5% 15 the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreigh currency fisk and represents management’ s assessment af the reasenably possible change in foreign exchange rates

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign cirrency denaminated monetary stems and adjusts thew translation at the perod end for a 5% change in forein currency mates. A positiee number below mdicates
an increase in profit and ather cquity where the respective functional currency strengthens by $% agaimst the relevant foreign currency. For a 3% weakening of the functional eurmency against the relevant currency, there
would he an equal and opposite smpact on the profit ond other equity, ond the balances below would be negatrve

Effect in INK March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
R in crs s, incrs
USD impact {1187} (20 14)
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to standalone Finameial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Credit risk

Credit nsk anses from the possthility that the counter party may not be able to setile thewr abligations as agreed To manage this, the company peniadically nssesses the financial reliability of customers and other counter parties, taking imo geeount
the financial condition, current econamic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assers. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such mformation

Financial asscts are written off when where there are no reasonable expectntions of recovery. such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the company. Where loans o receivables have been written off, the Campany contmues to
engage in enfercement aclivity to altempt 1o recover the recevable due When such recoverses are made, these are then recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss
The company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates.

Liguidity Risk

Pradent lquidity risk management mplies maintaming sufficient cash and marketable securities and the avanlability of funding through an adeguate amaount of committed eredi facilibes W meet obligatens when due and 1o close aul market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury mamtains flesibility in funding by mamtaming availability under committed eredit lines Management manitars rolling forecasts of the Company™s liguidiey
position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below ) and cash and cash equivalents on the hasis of expected cash flows. The Company sssessed the concentration of risk with respeet to refinancing its debt and concluded il ta be low

The following tables detail the Company's remaming contractual maturity for ibs fimancial labilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the cash flows of financial labilities based on the earhest dite on whigh the Company san be required 1o
PaY:
Muturity Analysis of Finaneinl Linbilities

Contractoal Cash Flows
As at Mareh 31,2024

Mare than §
Tatal Upta 1 year 1-3 vears 3-5 vears
vears
Rs, incrs Rs, in ers R, in crs Rs. incrsy Rs, in ers

Financial Instruments

Barrowings 125041 34528 61312 14588 4614
Trade Payables 8537 #3537 - -
Lense Liability {Nate 30) 408 118 180 -
Other financial habilities 39.52 3952 -

As at March 31, 2023

Contractual Cash Flows

Maore than 5

Taotal Upio 1 year 1=3 years 35 years
years

Financial Instruments
Bormowings 1.061.78 276:15 53535 13643 5385
Trade Payables 5512 55.12 -
Lease Linbality {MNote 30} 877 iRa 4 B8 -
Other financial habilities 38.93 3893 - -
Relationship with Struck off Companies
Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560.

W | -

. | | =
L =



SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED

Notes to standalone Financial statements for the year ended Narch 31, 2024

43 (A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds Lo any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermedianes) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

{1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like 1o or on hehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i1} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{22.93) Due 1o increase in the current assets towards the Investmient and other current assels
(20.%3) Due to inerease in equity on account of increase in profit

R85 Due to merease in the profit as compared o last year

3988 Due to mcrease in revenue can lead to improve net profit margin

36,42 Due to increase in the profit as compared 1o last year

(17.39) Due to inerease in the debtors as well as revenue as compared (o last year

{12.76) Due to increase in turnover and profit as compared to last year
11,27 Incrense due to increase in interest income and sale of investment

44 Ratios
Sr No. Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % change Reason for change
Rs. in crs Rs. incrs
1 Current Ratio = i times 225 292
2 Debt- Equity ratio in times 0.65 082
3 Retwn on Equity (%) 3R.08% 23,29%
4 Net profit margin 41.00% 24.65%
5 Return on Capital employeed (%) 26.53% 16.87%
f Debtors turnover 15.68 18.40
7 Trade payables mrnover 654 680 (1.87)
B Metcapital turnover .89 1.0
9 Return on investment 1.80%: 1.60%
100 Debt service coverage .62 034

Notes:

Derivation of Ratios
Current ratio

Dbt Equity ratio
Return on Equity (%)
Met profif margin

Retum on Capital employeed (%)

Debtors urnover

Trade pavables mirnover

MNet capital umover

Return on investment

Diebt servige coverage

Total Current Assets
Total Current Liabilities

44,86 Due to Increase in the profit as compared to last year

Total debt including current maturiiies
Equity Share capital plus Other Equity

Profit for the period from operations
Equity Share capital plus Other Equity

Net profit ratio
Total Income

Earning before interest and tax
Capital Employveed

Total revenue
Average trade recevable

Total Purchase
Closing trade payable

Total revenue
Average Equity share holding

Net return from investmen|

Total imvestment during the vear

Profit after tax + Finance cost

Total debt + Finance cost



SEVEN ISLANDS SHIFFING LIMITED
Notes to standaione Fivancial statements for the veur ended March 31, 2024

45 Details of Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Srno.  Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hs. in crs Rs. incrs
Aimendnl requirad to be srent by e Compass
I dumng the vear rug I oK
I Amount ol expenscs mcurmcd 195 163
3 Shartfall at the end of the vear 5 n i

N A The Company s CSR mutiatves aswally imolve hckping the needy and genuine people

cithier directly of tiough «arious mmplementing agencees 1o ensure masimum benehit o

thie commumts. However.as mandated by the Ace the company shall give preference o

. the local area and the arcas aromnd it where 0 operses for spending the amount

carmarked (or CSR activitics. Wheever approached. and (ound genuwine wis provided

thiz contnbuiion on the bass of thew requrement. However. dus (o pauaily of teie m

finding genome modes (o channelize CSR imtistsse preferably in |ocal area. the

Company s spend on the CSH acts wics has been less dian the linvits prescrbed under

Companies Act, 2013 before March 21, 2023 However, the unspent amount of Rs

543251/« has beon ransferred o *Clean Ganga Fund” being a specificd [md under
Schiedule ¥IFof the Companies Act. 2003

Thus. the Cormparry has spent. the entire CSR Dbigation amoont. ¢ RS 1O TEEL

for Financial Year 2022-23 in the following manne

Amount in Bs
Amiount spent on other than ongoing projecs || 6228731
Amount grent 1w ds ongoing progects Nl
Unspent amauant transferred 1o a specified fund (Clean Ganga Fundk $.43 28]
Total: | #7.71.982
4 Reason fos Shoeilall

% Mature of CSR. acuvities (v} Promotmy healthcare. snchuding preventive healthcare and sanstabion (i) Presoting henithcare, including presenti e healiheare
(ir) Erndicating Hunger. Poverty & Malnulsitson yii} Prosuoting Educauon
Lk ) Imaprosang Livelibood i} Eradicatmy Hunper

(i | Promoting edugation, including special education and emplovment v Tnproving Livelibood

enhanging vocation skalls expecnally amony childeen. women. clderty. and

Use dfTerently shied and frelibood eabancement projects. () Promotimy education, including special education and emplovment enhancing
vocation skills especially amaony children, women. clderly. and the differently abled and

1% § setting up old age homes. i care cenlres and such other faclitics for lnelihood enhancemient proycos.

SEMEOT € MIEEns

(%1] ensuring environmental sustamabalicy, ecological balance

i Details of Related purty transactions

Seven sslands shipping fourdation il il
Fairfas India Chiaritahle Foundatson (K1) il
7 MNoprovision is made e any contractunl obligaion MN.A WA
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Nutes to standalone Finaneial stutements for the year ended March 31, 202:

The Company has sanctioned working capital limits w exeess of Rs Frve Crs i aggrepate from hank or Fuancaal institilion dunng any point of time i the vear on the basis of secunty
of current assets however the Company has. not avaled the same durmg the year Consenguently the Company has not submitted quarterly relumns/statements with such banks o
fimancial institutions

Events after the reparting perind

The hoard of dircctors have proposed final dividend on $,72,27 350 shares of Rs. 72 per shite amounting to Rs. 41204 crs after the balance sheet date which asc subject to approval by

the sharek:olders at the annual peneral meeting.

The Compamy has tiken backup of all the books of accounts on daily basis on servers physically located m [ndia from | April 2023 1o 31 March 2024, However, m respect of the
system nsed by the Company to conselidate the books in clectronic form, the required infonmation in respect of’ hackup activity from June 28, 2023 1o Augost 19, 2023 was not
available for holding company as the company transitioned from one vendor to another for backup | although the hackup was taken on daily basis on servers physically located n India
for remaimder of the period

Audit trail relevant to accouting software used during the year by the Company were not enabled for dircet changes made at the database level by nsers with privileged access. The
Company continues (0 ensure that, direct system control is restricted to a imited number of system administrator and support team members for privileged-level management and
roubleshoating, Further, in the accounting software, the audit trail log can be deleted at the appheation laver without a deletion loe bemy gencrated The Company has disabled the
feature of deletion with effect from July 4, 2024

The Company has not traded or invested i crypio currency or virtmal currency during the Current or previous year,
No proceeding have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding of bemarm property under benam Transactions {prohibition ) Act,
The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government or Gavemment Authority.

There 1s o meome surrendered or dischosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax pssessment under Income Tax Act, 1961 that has

not been recorded in the books of accounts,

Previnns vears figures have been regroupedreclassified wherever necessary,

As per our Report of even date

For SREC & COLLP Fur and on behalf of Board of Directors of Seven Islands Shipp /

Chartered Accountants

CAl Firmggi o number

! . g-l’inw
Diirecti aging Director & CEO

Partndr
Membership Na. 109360 DIN; 01174288 i IN: (7148542
—
Mr. Warren Pinto Mr. lay Parckh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretiry
Membership Mo A47580
Place: Mumiba Place, Mumba

Date: September 11, 2024 Mate: September 11, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Seven Islands Shipping Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accoampanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Seven Islands Shipping
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company"), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March
31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, their consolidated profit and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements,

Other Information

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consclidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. if, based on the wark we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

SRBCECOLLR & Limited Liabiliby Partnerstip with LLP |gentity No. AAB-4318
Regd. OfMice © 22, Comac Street, Block ‘B, 3o Flnar, Kalkaln 700 316
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consclidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
Consclidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consclidated financial perfarmance and consolidated cash flows
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended specified under section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets
of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the Consclidated Ind AS financial statements by the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
Companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consoclidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)0) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related fo events or
-+ yeonditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
1{_*3&5\(::- conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
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report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, ta modify our apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion
on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included
in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the Consclidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of a subsidiary,
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 126.61 crores as at March 31, 2024, and total
revenues of Rs 12.44 crores and net cash outflows of Rs 0.13 crores for the year ended on that date.
These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, whose
financial statements, other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by
the management. Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the
reports of other auditors.

(b) The accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements include unaudited financial statements
and other unaudited financial information in respect of a subsidiary, whose financial statements and
other financial information reflect total assets of Nil as at March 31, 2024, and total revenues of Rs
Nil and net cash flows of Nil for the year ended on that date. These unaudited financial statements and
other unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion, in
so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary,
is based solely on such unaudited financial statement and other unaudited financial infermation. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these
financial statements and other financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of subsidiary company, incorporated in India, as noted in the 'Other Matter’ paragraph we
give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the censideration of report of the other
auditors, the said report on the provisions of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the
QOrder"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of subsection (11) of section (143} of the
Act, are not applicable to the Subsidiary Company.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as
noted in the 'other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained alf the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of
our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except

= As described in Note 49 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in the absence of
required information for the period from June 28, 2023 to August 10, 2023, relating to the
accounting systems used by the Company to maintain books of account in electronic form, we
are unable to comment whether for the said period, the Company maintained backup of such
books of account and other books and papers rmaintained in electronic mode on daily basis on
servers physically located in India.

= For matters stated in paragraph (f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g)

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended specified under section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors who are appeinted under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies,
none of the directors of the Group incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph 2(b} above on reporting under Section 143(3Xb) and paragraph 2 (i) (f} below
on reporting under Rule 11{g).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this
report.

(h} In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid /
provided by the Holding Company to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
=== read with Schedule V to the Act;
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(i)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
Consolidated Ind AS financial position of the Group in its Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements - Refer Note 32 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2024;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the
year ended March 31, 2024.

a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best
of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 43 to the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best
of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 42 to the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™,
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or
any of such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are
companies incorpeorated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our or other auditor’'s notice that has caused us or the other auditors te
believe that the representations under sub-clause (@) and (b) contain any material mis-
statement.

The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year in respect of the same declared
for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
payment of dividend.

As stated in note 48 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of
Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to
the approval of the members of the respective companies at the respective ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent
it applies to declaration of dividend.

-
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f) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software except that:

i. Inrespect of Holding company, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if
any, using privileged/ administrative access rights. Further, we cannot comment on any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered due to absence of deletion log at application
layer as described in note 49 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

ii. Inrespectof subsidiary company incorporated in India, the audit trail feature was not enabled
for the period April 01, 2023 to May 03, 2023 as described in note 49 to the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

péerfiroz Pradhan
Partner
Membership Number: 109360

UDIN: 24109360BKFMEB7866 NCIAN

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Seven |slands Shipping Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors, the said report on the provisions of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of subsection (11) of section (143) of the Act, are not
applicable to the Subsidiary Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

-

pé Firoz Pradhan n
Partner W
Membership Number: 109360 .

UDIN; 24109360BKFMEBT7866

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated IND AS financial
statements of Seven Islands Shipping Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™

In conjunction with our audit of the Consclidated Ind AS financial statements of Seven Islands Shipping
Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024,
we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as "the Group"), which are companies incarporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on,
the internal financial control aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.- Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliahility of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
———accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Ind AS
' ":..finéhgal statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records

D
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that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acguisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the report issued by other auditors
on internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements in case of its
subsidiary, which is incorporated in India, the following material weakness have been identified as at March
31, 2024:

a) The Holding Company did not have an appropriate internal financial control system over financial
statement close process in relation to establishing process for evaluation and determination of
classification of balances, appropriate year end provisioning and appropriate review of financial
statements which could result in incorrect classification and recognition or derecognition of assets and
liabilities.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the holding company’'s annual or interim Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria in respect of the companies included in the Group,
which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAI.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to Consclidated Ind AS financial statements insofar as it relates to
subsidiary, which is incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
company incorporated in India.

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company, which
... comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Consclidated Statement of Profit
/and.Loss , including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements including a summary of material
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accounting policies and other explanatory information. This material weakness was considered in
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2024
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and this report does not affect our repart
dated September 11, 2024 which expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

pe 'r-:'iroz Pradhan
Partner
Membership Number: 109360

UDIN: 24109360BKFMEB7866

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 11, 2024



SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCIT 31, 2024

Asar sl
Prticulars Note No, Mareh 35, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in ers
A ASSETS
1 Moiecurrent asscts
{a} Property, plant and cquipiment 4A 206218 F.B0S B2
{0} Capital work-in-progress iB 10.02 7799
fc) Right of use assel & 1261 1840
(i} bstangihle asscts 4 1.24 0.95
{¢) Financial asscls
(¥} Others foancial assets 5 4562 41.53
(N Tax assets (ne) (] .63 10.08
() Other non-current assets 13 22,51 2045
‘Total non - current asseis 1,154.83 1.984.24
2 Current assets
(@) Inventosies 7 2072 2594
(b} Contract asseis il 440 150
(¢} Financial assets
(1) Investments g 42658 25.04
{i1) Trade receivables 9 99,01 8574
(11} Cash and cash equivalents 3] 159.76 179,65
(iv) Other bank balances 12 296,68 18230
(v} Cithers fingncial gssets 5 209,47 58 83
{d} Other current assol 13 1999 3lL1S
Taotal current assets 1,236.61 589,97
Total assets 339044 2,574.21
i3 EQUITY AXD LIABILITIES
1 Equity
() Equity shane capital 14 57.23 T3
{b) Other Equity 15 1,859.80 1.237.08
Total equity 1L,917.049 1.294.31
2 Nar-current liabifities
() Financial habilitics
{1} Long-term horrowings Lo 513 TH5.58
(i1} Lease linbililies 17,1 860 1258
(111} Other Fnancial labilities 17 0,35 -
{b) Provisions 18 0.08 -
Tuotal Non-current linbilities 9214.27 70816
3 Current liabilities
[a} Contract lialnlay 9355 1785
{b} Financial Liabilities
(i) Short-term borrowings 16 34528 276.20
{in) Lease liabilities 171 309 456
{i1) Trade payables 19
(A} el ouwstanding dues of micro emtrpu‘iscs and small enterprises; and 1178 250
(B} total outstanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and 73.07 5784
simll enterprises
(it} Other financial Hiabilitics 17 101.65 1772
{c) Provisions 1% 234 1.96
(d) Other cunvent liabilities 20 11.52 811
Total corrent Habilities 560,08 481.74
Total equity and liabilities 3,391.44 1.574.21

Swininary of material fecounting policies

il

As per our Report of cven dite.

For SRBC & COLLP

Chartered Accoumtants

FCAD Firm registeation mumber - 324982 E/ES00003

Membership Mo, 100360

Place; Mumbm
Date: September [ 1, 2024

Fur und un behalf of Board of Directors of Seven 15l
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Chief Financial Officer
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & 1.OSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MNARCH 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Note Mo, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers Rs. in crs
INCOME
1 Revenue from operations 21 143099 115248
1 Other operating imeome 2la 158 007
m Other income 22 34768 72.71
v Total Ineome (T+HIT+TL) 1.801.25 1,225.26
v EXPENSES
Purchase of fuel ol and other inventorics 3 3813 88 78
Operating expenses 24 400,03 28950
{Increase)’ decrease in inventones 25 522 134
Employee benelit expenses 26 48,78 33.65
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 42181 32201
Finance costs 8 9733 90.23
(ither expenses 29 3168 9525
Tatal expenses (V) 1.064.00 921.76
Vi Profit before tax (1V-Y) 737.25 303.50
Wil Tax expense;
(1) Tonnage tax 1.63 1.60
12) Current tax 1019 4.70
13) Adjustment of tax of earlicr years - (0.78)
VITi  Profit for the year from operations (VI-VII) 725.43 297.98
X Other comprehensive income
Other Comprehensive Income not 10 be reclassified o profit or loss in
subsequent perieds:
Re-measurement guns/(loss) on defined benefit plans 036 0.06
Income tax refating 10 above - =
Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax 0.36 (.06
X Total Comprehensive [neome for the year 725.79 298.04
X[ Earnings per equity share: 3l
Basic and Diluted 126.76 32.07
Summary of matenal accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes arc an intcgral part of Financial Statements
As per our Report of even date.

ForSRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
JCAI Farm registration number ; 324982E/E300003

‘iroz Pradhan
Fartner
Membership No. 109360

Place: Mumba
Date: September 11, 2024
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anaging Director & CED
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Director L.
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Mr. Warren Pinto
Chief Finaneial OfTicer
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Mr. Jay Parekh
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: September | 1, 2024




SEVEN [SLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{2} Equity Share Capital

[[4)

=

As at
Mlarch 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
N, ol shares Amaount Na, of shares Amoung
_ Rsimers Rs. in crs
Balauce al the beginning of year 57,227 550 57.23 57,227,550 5723
Add: Issue of share capital i i T 5
Balance at the end of the vear 37,227,550 57.23 57,227,550 57.23
Orther Equity
Heservis & Surplus OCl Total
Tunnage tax
reserve under BNl Surplus/ {deficit)  Re-measurement
Geneval reservie section 115VT of in the statement of gainsf{loss) on defined
premium
the Income Tax profit and loss bemefit plans
Act, 19461
Rs. in crs Rs. in ¢rs Rs. it crs Rs, in ¢rs Rs. in crs Rs. in ers
Balance as at March 31, 2022 134.50 17.63 14319 544.22 (IS 934,04
Add/Less: Transfer from/to tonnage 1ax reserve - 61,65 - [61.65) - "
AddLess: Transfer from/to peneral reserve 17,63 (17.63) - - - -
Net Profit after tax for the vear - - = 297 98 0.0 29%.04
Balunee as ut March 31, 2023 152.13 61,65 143,18 THILS {0.44) 1,237.08
Add/Less: Transfer from/io tonnage tax reserve - 149.63 - (149.63) = -
Add/Less: Transfer from/to general veserve 61.65 (61.6%) - - - -
Met Profit after tax for the yea - - - 73543 036 725749
Pavment of Final proposed dividend - - - (103.01}) - {103.00)
Balance us ot March 31, 2024 213.78 149.63 143,19 1,233.34 - 0.08 1,559.86
E— eees

s

Summary of marerial accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an ntegral pan of Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date

ForSRBC& COLLP
Chanered Accountants
ICAT Firm regisygation sumber - 324982E/E300003

LS.

en\Firee Pradhan L ! <M Sujic Persaowar M, fay Parckh
Partiier L angging Director & CEO Direcror Cotpany Secretary
Memberslup No. 109360 DM 07148542 DIB: 01174288 Membership Mo, A47580

JLP,JL- J

Place, Mumbai M. Warren Pinto
Mate: September 11, 2024 Cluef Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: Septernbes 11, 2024




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIFPING LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers s, in crs

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before tax 737.25 303.50
Adjustment to reconcile profit before iax to net cash Mows
Depreciation 420,81 32201
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment {274.549) (49.12)
Exchange difference lossigain)- net (LTH (27.59)
Impairment allewanee on receivable 004 018
Bad debts 4.85 3.27
loss/{ gain) on derivative contracts (17.58) 41.32
Interest expense 9238 8551
Interest on Leass labiliy 1.23 1.01
Intergst (income) {23.58) (10.13)
Insurance claim received (2.45) (0,69
Interest income on Lease deposit (1.27) (L1
Income from mvestment {24113 (9.83)
Operating profit before working capital changes 911,27 658.33
Movements in working capital:
Increase in trade payables 35.64 570
Increase in provisions 0.79 0.62
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities 343 (015}
Increases (decrease) in other financial liabilities {2.89) 1540
{Increase) in trade receivables (18.13) (49.67)
Decrease in inventorics 5.21 235
{Increase) in others financial assets (14.71) (6.389)
Decrease in others current assets 8.16 2528
Cash generated from / {used in) operations 928.76 651.47
Income tax paid {net of refund) 1239 1.36
Net eash flow from/ (used in) operating activities {a) 926,37 652.83
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property, plani, equipment including CWIP and capital (849.98) (485,96)
advances
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant, equipment 52142 76,36
Purchase of current investments (1,338.35) (614,84}
Proceeds from sale of current investments 960,94 699,79
Insurance claim received 245 .69
Investmenis in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (4635.40) {184.02)
Bank deposits matured (having original maturity of more than 3 months) 221,33 123.64
Interest received on bank deposits 14.91 943
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (b) {931.68) (374.91)
CASH FLOAW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from long term borrowings 535.00 163.00
Repayments of long term borrowings {349.80) (211.48)
Payment of final dividend (103.01) -
Interest paid 191.50) [B5.63)
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest) (3.22) (5.61)
Net cash flow from/ (used in} financing activities (c) (14.53) (137.74)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (a+bic) (19.84) 140.18
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 179.60 1942
Cash and cash equivalems at the end of the year 159,76 17960

(19.84) 140.18




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR TUHE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2024

Compenents of cash and cash equivalenis

Cash on hand 1.30 0,76
With banks
O current accounts 104 06 174.69
On deposit accounts 54.40 4.20
Total cash and cash equivalents {(Note 11} 159.76 179.65
Less: Bank overdrafi (Nate 16} - 0.05
159.76 179.60
Summary of material accounting policies 3

Note | © There are no non cash fiems included in investing activities.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Siatements
As per our Repont of even date.

ForSRBC & CO LLP For and on behalfl of Board of Directors of Seveg' Isl Hhipding Li li{!k!f/
Chartered Accountants i

1CAl Firm registration number @ 324982E/E300003 M

Mer. Sujit Parsatwar j ‘ton Pinto
Director f mpg Director & CEO
DIM: 01174288 o N: 07148542

Mr. Jay Parekh

peAFiroz Pradhan
Partner
Membership No. [09360

Mr. Warren Pinto Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Membership No. A47380
Place: Muwnhai Place: Mumbai
Diate: September 11, 2024 Date: September 11, 2024




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial staterments for the year ended March 31, 2024

I Corporate infurmation

Seven Islands Shipping Limited {the Halding Group) was incorporated on May 2, 2002 as a private Group and was subsequently converted into a public lumited Group ou June
0, 2003, 1 is registered under the Diveciorate General of Shipping. Government of India The Group is donmciled i India with its registered office at Times Squarc, Andhen
Kurla Road, Andhen (East) - 400058,

“The Group is in the business of owning and operating of ocean going ships in the liquid tanker sepment both on the Indian coast as well as in ternational waters and manage
and operate educational instutions relating to marine industry

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the Seven Islands Shipping Limited. the Holding Group and its subsidianies

The Consolidated financial siarements of Seven Istands Shipping Limited as at March 31, 2024 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on September
11.2024

b

Basis for preparation

In accordance with the nofification issucd by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Group is required to prepare its Consolidated financial statements under the Tndian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') prescribed under section 133 ot the Companies Act, 2013 read witlh rule 3 of the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time 1o time) and presentation and disclosures requirement of Division [T of revised schedule 11T of the Companics Act, 2013 (Ind AS Compliant Schedule 111) as
apphicable (o financial statement Accordingly, the Group has prepared these Consolidated finzncial statements which comprise the Balance Shects as at March 31 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended March 31 2024, and material accounting policies and other
cxplanatory information {ogether herematter referred to s "Consolidated financial stiements™),

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the derivative financial instuments and certain
financial assets and liabilities (refer Accounting policy for Financial [nstrument) which have been measured at far value or revalued amount required by relevant Ind AS ac the
end of the reporting period {refer note 38). The Consolidated financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees ('INR'), except otherwise mdicated.

The Consolidated financial satements are prepared in INE and all the values are rounded off 1o the nearest crores, except where otherwise stated.

The accountng policies are applied cousistently to all the periods presented in the Ind A8 Consalidated financinl statements.

Busis of consolidation

The consalidared financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and 1ts subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights. ta variable returns from its involverment wath the investes and has the ability to affect those retwrns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investes if and only if the Group has:

= Power over the investee (ie, existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the invesice)

B Exposue. or rights, wo variable returs from its involvement with the investee, and

- The ability to use 115 power over the investee o afToct ils retums

Consolidation procedure;

= Combine like items of assets, liabilies, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of i1s subsidiarics, For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiaries are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

« Offsel (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiarics and the parcnt’s portion of equity of each subsidiaries. Business combinations policy
explaing how 1o account for any related goodwill.

» Elmunate m full group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to wansactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
proup transactions that are recagnised in assets, such as inventory and fived assets, are eliminated w full). Group losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition i

the consolidated financial statements,

3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a Current versus nod-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilitics in the batance sheet based on cumrent/ non-current classification, An asset is treated as current when it is
i} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
i} Held primarily for the purpose of wading
uih Expected to be reabised within twelve months alter the repocting period, or
1| Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from bemg exchanged or used to settle a lability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All onher assets are classified as non-cumreint
A lahiliry 15 current when:
i) It is expected 10 be seuled in normal operating cycle
i) [t is hedd primarily for the purpose of trading
i) [t s due o be seitled within twelve months after the reponing period, or
i) There i3 no unconditional nght to defer the settlement of the biability for at lzast twelve months after the reporing period
The Group classifies all other liabilitics as non-cunent.
The eperating eycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Group has identufied twelve months as its
operating cycle.
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

b Foreign currencies

i Functional and presentation curreney
The Group's Ind As Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupes (INR ), which is also the Group's functional and presentaion cumency

it Transuctions and balances

Transactions w forewgn cwrencies are tanslated inte functional correney wsing the monthly average exchange rates Forcign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such wansactions and from the iranslation of monetary assets and liabilities denominared in foreign currencies ar the vear end exchange rates are recopnised m
Profit or loss Non maonetary items, which are measured i terms of histonical cost denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, remaming unsettled at the year end are translated at closing rates, The difference in wanslation of long e
monctary asseis acquived and liabilities incurred prior to April |, 2017 and gains and losses on forcig currency transactions relating (o acquisition of depreciable capital assets
are added 1o or deducted from 1he cost of the asset and depreciated over the balance life of the asset; and in other cases, accumulated it a Forgipn Currenty Monelany ltem
Translation Difference Account and amorused aver the balance period of such long term assevliability, by recognition as income or expense but not hevond March 31, 2020,
The difference w translation of all other monetary assets and Liabilities and realised gains and losses o other foreign currency ransaetions are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciation
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

"

The cost of Property, Plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any wade discounts and rebates, any impart duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the tax authonties), any directly auribuable expenditure including brokerage, takeing over costs and pre operative expenses on makiig the asset ready for its
intended use and other inaidental expenses.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Growp depreciates them scparately based on their specific useful lives. When major
inspection is performed. its cost s recopnized in the carrying amonnt of the plant and equipment as a replacerient if the recognition criteria are satisfied Assels in the course of
construction ace capitalised in the assets under Capital work in progress.

Cost of asscts not ready for sntended use as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-progress. Advances given towards acquisition of fived assets ontstanding at
each balance sheet date arc disclosed as Other Non=Current Assets,

Dy docking is considered as a separatc component & when a major inspection/ overbaul is performed, its cost s recognized in the canying amount of the related property plant
and equipements as a replacement cost if the recognition criteria ave satisfied. The dry doeking component include major repairs conducted up to six manths prior 10 and cne
year after the dry docking Therefore, the costs of such major repairs aslo recognized in the carrying amount of the related FPE. The cost of such major mspection! overbiaul is

depreciated separately over the period of thiry months. Upon next major nspection/ overhanl, the costs of new major inspection/ overhaul are added to the asset’s cost and any
amount remaining fiom the previous mspection averhaul 1s derecognized. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of prafit ar Joss as incurved.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each fnancial year end and adjusted prospeetively, if appropriate.
Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written Down value { WDV method,

Depreciation t= provided based on useful life of the asseis as prescribed in Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013 exeept in respect of Vessels, where usetul life is considered
a3 under based on techmecal evaluation

One of the subsidiaries, "Seven Islands Maritime Traning Foundation” has changed its depreciation method from Written Down Value (WDV) 1o Sumght Ling Method { SLM).
This adjustment has resulted in a reduction of depreciation expense by Rs. 0.03 crores for the period ending March 31, 2024, thereby nereasing profit by the same amownt,

The Group has assessed the following useful life to depreciate and amontize on its property, plant and equipment and intangible assels respectively.

Particulars Useful Lives of the Assets estimated by the management (vears)
Ol Tankers vesscls Diate af buili - 23 (Date of acquisition - 10 to 20}
Gias vessels Date of built - 25 (Date of acquisition - 10 to 20)
Furniture and Fixture 10

Yehicles 8and 10

Computer f

Office Equipment 5

Plant and Machinery 15

Building 30

Land development 30

Electrical Installations and Equipments 10

* Estimated usefisl life of the vessels is considercd from the year of buoild and the second hand vessels acquired by management are deprecinted on the estimation of balance
usefil life as at the date of acquisition.

Residual value in case of vessels is estmated at ten years moving averape of serap rates.

Based on wiemal technical assessment and past experience, the management believes that the useful lives as given above hest represent the period over which the management
cxpects the use of the agsets, Hence, the useful lives of only ships is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Pant C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013

An e of property, plant and equipment and any significan part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gam or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the asser is derecognised
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Intaneible assets

The amartization periad and the amortization method are reviewed at [cast at cach financial vear ead. If the expected useful lite of the asset is significantly different from
previows estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly 11 there has been a significant change i the expected pattern of econamic benefits from the asset, the
amurtization method 15 changed 1 reflect the changed patemn.

The Company has assessed the usctul Lives to amortised the Intagible Assets s 10 vears

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulaied amorusation and accunulared impaivment losses, ifany. An intangible asset is derecopnised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses on derecogmition measured at difference between net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount
of the asset. are recogmised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Impairment of non financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be imparred. It any indication exists, or when annual impaimment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimaies the asses recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its
valug in use. The recoverable amount is dewermined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
ar groups of asscls. Where the canying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable smount, the asset (s constdered impaired and 15 writtien down 10 {15 recoverable
amount. In assessing value i use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessmenis of
the time value of money and the risks specific (o the assct In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If ne such transactions

can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is nsed,

The Group bases its impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations which are prepared separately for each of the Group's cash-generating units to which
the individual assets are allocated

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairmeant on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

After impaument, depreciation 1s provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining usefinl life.

An assessment 1s made at each reporung dare as w whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased 11
such mdication exists, the Croup estimaies the asset's o cash=generaling unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the assel's recoverable amount sinee the last impainment loss was recognized. The reversal is lunited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount. nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Inventuries

Inventories are cartied at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is ascertained on first-in=first out basis, The cost includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to thewr present location and condition. Net realizable value (5 the estmated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less cstimated cost necessary
t ke the sale.

Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presenation i statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents inchades cash in hand and at bank in ewsrent and foreign currency accounts, deposit held at
call with financial mstitution. other short term, highly liquid invesiments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amonms of cash
and which are subject 1o an (nsignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank Overdrafis are netted of from cash and cash equivalents.

Cush flew statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non- cash nawre and any deferrals or accinals of
past ar fintare cash receipts or pavments. The cash flows from aperating, investing and financiny activities of the Group are segrepated based on the available information.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attaibutable to the acquisition, censtruction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 10 get ready for its imtended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All ather borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur, Bormowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in cannection with the borrawing of funds. Bomowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing

COsEs.
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j Lease
The Group assesses dl contract mception whether & contract (5. o8 contiing, # lease, That s, 1f the contract comveys the right to control the use of an (dentified asset for a penod
of time in exchange {or consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applics a single recopmbion and messucement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liahilities to make kease payments and right-of=nse assets representing the right o use the underbymg assels

Ripht-of use assets

The Group recognises righi-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie.. the date the underlying asset is available for use). Righl-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabiliies. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amown of lease
liabilities recogmised, uitial direct costs incuned, deferred lease components of security deposits and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Unless the Growp is reasonably eertain 1o oblam ownership of the leascd asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised nghi-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful lite and the lease term, Ripht-of-use assets are subject to impaimment.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Group recognises lease liahilines measored ar the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term The lease
payments mclude fixed payments (including i=substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease paymenis that depend on an index or a rate, and
amownts expeeted to be paid under resudual value guaranizes,

I calewlatmg the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the woremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit i the lease is wot
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease Liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition. the carrying amount of lease labilities i5 remensured if there 1s & modification, a change in the lease terny, a change in the in-substance fixed leasc payments or a change
in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset

The determination of whether an amangement is {or contains) a lease 15 based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arangemant is, or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement 15 dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right e use the asser or assets. even if that right is not
explicitly speeificd in an amangement.

Lease teim

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable tenm of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any peniods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it 15 reasonably certam not to be exercised

=

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recopnized when the Group has a present obligation {lcgal or constructive| as a result of a past evet, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation. 1f the eftect of the time value of money 15 material,
provisions are discounted using equivalent period government securities imterest rate. Unwinding of the disconnt is recognised in the Statement of Profir and Loss as a finance
cost, Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted 1o reflect the cumrent best estimate,

If the effect of the tme value of money 15 matenial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriase, the risks specific to the liability. When
discormting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 1§ recogmnised as a finance cost,

Contingent liabilitics are disclosed when there 15 a possible obligation ansing from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-
accurence of ote or more meerain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or 2 present abligation that arises from past events where 1t is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or & reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. lnformation on contimpent liability is disclosed m the Notes to the lud
As Consoldated fnancial statements. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is vintually certain, then the related asset 1§ ne longer &
contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

Earnings per share

Basic camings per share are caleulaied by dividing the net profic or loss for the penod atnibutable w equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average numiber of equity sharcs cutstanding dunng the period is adjusted for events such as ESOPs and bonus issue thar have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a comespanding change in resources,

For the purpose of caloalating diluted eamings per share, the et profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weiphted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilwtive potential equity sharcs

Potenual equity shares are deemed (0 be dilwirve only i their conversion o equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential
dilutive cquity sharcs are decmed to be converted as at the begiming of the peried, unless they have been issued at a later dace The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted
for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i, average market valoe of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each petiod presented. The number of equity sharcs and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shaves, as
APPropriate.

m Fair value measurement
The Gronp measures finaricial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be recerved to sell an asset or paid 1o rransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measyrentent date, The fair
value measwrement is based on the presumplion that the transaction to sell the asser or transfer the liability rakes place either

In the pringipal macket for the asset or lability, o
In the absence ol a principal marker, in the most advamageous market that can be aceessed by the Group for the asset or liahility.

The fair value of an asset or a hability 1s measured wsing the assumpuons that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measored or disclosed in the Ind As Consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as

follows, hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement a5 a whale:

Level 1 Quated {wiadjusted ) market prices in active markets for (dentical asseis or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lawest level input that is significant to the fair value measorement is dircetly or indirectly obseivable

Level 3 Valuation techmogues for which the lowest level mput that 15 significant 1o the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that arve recognised i the [nd As Consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether (ransfers have oceumed between

levels m the ligrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant w the fair value measurement a5 @ whole) at the end of each reporting
Tod.
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n Financial instruments
A fancial instiument s any contract that pives rise wo a fnancial assel of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrament of another entity

I Financial assets

Initial recognition and measwement

All fingneral assets are recognised witally at Gair value plos, in the case of financial assets not recorded st fair valve through profit or loss, transaciion costs that are atwibutable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of fmancial assets that require delivery of assets within & ume frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades ) are recogmised on the trade date, Lo, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asser

Subseqent measurement
For purposes of subsequent imsaswement, Nnancial assets are classified in four categories:

i Debt mstruments at amortised cost

it Debt imstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT)
il Debt mstruments, derivatives and equity instroments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
iv Equity instruments measured at (air value through other comprehensive mcome (FVTOCT)

i Debt fnstruments at amortised cost
A “debt mstrument’ 15 measured at the amortised cost iCbath the following conditions are met-
A) The asset (s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash Nows, and
B Contractual 1erms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category ts the most relevant to the Group. After imitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. Amortised cost 1s caleulated by taking o account any discount or premium on acquisiion and fess or costs that are an integral pant of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is includad in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impaimment are recognised 10 the profit or loss,
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it Dbt instrument at FVTOCT

A debt instrument’ is classitied a5 at the FVTOC! if both of the following critena are met:

The phjeetive of the business model is achieved beth by collecuny contractual cash lows and selling the financial assets, and

The asset's contraciual cash flows represent SPPL
Dbt wnstruments mcluded within the FVTOCT category are measured initinlly as well a5 at each reporting date at fair value Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income.

However. the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and fareign exchatige gain or loss in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the eritéria for cateporization as at amottized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as a1
FVTPL.

Dbt snstyuments inchaded within the FVTPL category are measured at Tair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss However currently the Group
does not have any financial instroments m this category.

iv Equity investments
All gquity invesiments i scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other cquity
mstriments, the Group may make an urevecable elecuon to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an
mstrumeitl-by-instroment basis. The classification 1s made on injlial recogmition and 1s irevocable

It the Group decides 1o classify an cquity instrument as at FVTOCT, then all fair value changes on the instument, excluding dividends, are recapnized in the OCL There is no
recyeling of the amounts from OCT 1o PEL, even on sale of mvestment. However, the group may wansfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicatle, 4 pait of a financial asset or part of a group of similar {inancial assets) is primarily derecognised (1e. removed from the Companics

halance sheet) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the assct have cxpired, or

“-The Group has transferred s rights (o0 receive cash {lows from the asset or has assumed an obligation wo pay the received cash flows in full withont material delay to a third
party under a *pass-throwsh” amangement, and either

{a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(B the Group has neither transfened nor retained substantially oll the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assct.

On de-recognition, any gains or lasses on all debt instruments (other than debr instruments measured at FVOCT) and equity instruments {measured at FVPTL) are recognized in
e Statement of Profit and Less. Gains and losses i respect of debt instruments measured at FVOCT and that are accumnulated in are reclassify to profit or loss on de-
reeojmition. Gains or losses on equity mstruments measured at FVOCH that are recognized and accumulated in Other Comprehensive Income are not reclassified to profir or loss
on devecogmition

Imypairment of financial assets
The Group applics cxpected eredit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and recagnition of impainment loss on the (ollowing financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a)  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measurcd at amortised cost e g, loaus, debl seourities, deposits, trade recervables and bank balance,
b} Financial assets measured at far value through other comprehensive income,
The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment logs allowance on tade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes i eredit risk, Rather, it recognises impaiment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recagnition of impaimment loss on other financial assets and nisk exposure, the group detenmines that whether theve has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recoguition, 1 eredit sk has notmereased significamtly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime
ECL 1s used. If, in a subszquent period, credit quality of the instrument impraves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
enlity reverts (o recognising impairment loss allowance based on 1 2-month ECL,
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2 Financial Hahilitics

Initial recognition wmd measurement

Financial labiditics are classified, at initial recopnition, as financial Habilites at far value through profit or loss, loans and berrowings, payables, or 2s appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised iitially at fair value and, in the case of loans and horrowings and payables. net of directly attnibutahlc transaction costs.
The Group's financial labilites mclude tade and other payables, loans and borrowings wcluding bank overdrafis

Subsequent measurement

The measwrement of financial Habilitics depends an their classification, as described helow:

Finaneial liabilitics ut FVTPL

Financial labiliies a1 fair valoe through profit or loss mclude financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss

Finangial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at faiv value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition. and only if the critena in Ind-AS 109
are satisfied For labiines designated as FVTPL, fair value gains! losses angibutable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in Other Comprehensive Tncome. These pains!

loss are not subsequently wansfomed 1o profit or loss However, the Group may vansfer the comulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recogunised in the statement of profil or loss.

Financial linbilities at amortized cost

Finaneial liabilities classified and measwed at amortized such as lomns and borrowings are initially recopnized at fair value, net of wansaction cost incured  Afier ir
recoguition, financial liabilitics are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Elfective imerest rate (E1R | method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilitics arc derecagnised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amaortised cost is ealeulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an intepral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finanee costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Die-recognition

A financial liability is dececognised when the obligaton under the lability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different termis, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition
of the original liability and the recagnition of a new lability. The difference in the respective canying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Tautial recogmtion and subscquent measurement

The Gronp uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps to hedpe its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks. Such derivative financial mstruments ae
imtially recopnised at fair value on the date an which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Dervatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilites when the fair valug is negative

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recopnised 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment 1s bemg made, Revenue 15 measured based on the consideration 1o which the Group expects to be entitled in contract with customer. The consideration is determined
based on the price specified in the contract, net of volume discounts and rebates, Revenue excludes any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government which are levied
on sales such as Goods and Services tax

The Group eams revenue from time and voyage charter,

Time/pool Charter hire eamings are accrued on time praportion basis Revenue from voyage charters is recognised as income, by refereiice (o the voyage progress on load-lo-
discharye basis, which has been assessed by management 1o be an appropriate measure of progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance abligations over time under
Ind A5 113,

Pool revenue is recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied over tme in accordance with the pooling agreement

Contract assels relate to the unfinished voyages to represent the Company’s right o consideration for services provided to date Contract asset is reclassified 1o wade receivables
at the paint at which it is invaiced to the customer

Contract liabilitics arc towards charter e received in advance

Subsidy from goverument (owards a voyage contracts are recognised as other operatng income

Revenue from Directorate General of Shipping offered courses al our Institute has been included m operatung revenne, and are accounted on acerual basis.

Judgement is involved in estimating days 10 reach the foad port and discharge port destinations impacting the calculaton of income (o be acerued for incomplete voyage.
Demurrage revenue is recognised as and when the performance obligations under the contract is satisficd.

Interest income

Far all debt instruments measured either a0 amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest vate (EIR). EIR is the rate that cxactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to
the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective imterest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Tnterest income is included in finance income
in the statement af profit and loss,

Inmsurance claim

Insurance claims are accounted for en the basis of claims admitied / expecied o be admited and 1o the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is
reasonably conain to cxpect the ultimate collection
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g Taxes on Income
Current income-tax is measured at the amount expeeted to be paid to the tax authoritics w accordance with the lncome-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and @y laws prevailig in
the respective tax jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amonnt are those thal are enacted or substanuvely enacted, at the
reporting date, Current income tax relatiog o iiems recognized directly in equity 15 recognized in equity and not is the statement of profit and loss
Uletermed ax 15 provided usmy the habibty method on temporary difterences between the tax bases ol assets and habilities and e Carryimy amolnis [or ancal reportimg
purposes at the reporting dae.
Deferred tax liabilitres ave vecapnised for all taxable remporary differences when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable tal
the temporary differences will not reverse m the foreseeable future,
Deferred tax assets are recopnised for all deductible temporary differences, the cany forward of unused tax credits and any nnused tax losses. Deferved tax assels are recognised
10 the extent that 1t is probable that taxable profit will be available agamst which the deductible temporary differences. and the camry forward of unused tax credits and unused wy
losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no langer probable that sutficient taxable profit will be available
1o allow all or part of the deferred tax assct to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed ar each reparting date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 10 be recovered.

Fursuant to the mtroduction of section |15V A under the Incame-tax Act, 1961, the parent has opted for computation of its income from shipping activities under the tonna e tay
scheme Thus income froun the business of aneratine shins is assessed on the basis af the decmed tonnase income of the Gronn

" Employee Benelits

Retirement benefit m the form of provident fund is & defined contribution scheme Employee benelits in the form of Seamen’s Welfare Contibutions are considered as defined
contnbutian plans and the coniributions are charged o the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due. The Group
tecognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditwre, when an employee renders the related serviee

The cost of providing henetits under the defined bencfit plan 15 detenmined using the projected unit credit method,

The Group has defined benefit plavs for its employees, viz., gratuity liability. The costs of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of actarial valuaton at
each year-end. Remeasurements, comprising of actarial pains and lasscs for the defined benefit plan are recognized m full in the period in which they oceur in the statement of
other comprehiensive income

Net interest 15 ealeulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit lizbility or asset. The Group recapmises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:

1) Service costs comprising current service costs. past=service costs, gains and losses on curtnilments and non-rouring sertlements; and

ii) Net interest expense or income

The accumulated leaves at the year end is not caried forward and the entire Jeave balance gets lapsed. Hence, no provision for leave encashment is provided in the books.




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consalidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

3A Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the course of applying the policies antlined in all notes under section 2 above, the directors of the Grovp are tequired 10 make judgements, cstimates and assumpuons about
the carrying amount of assets and labilities that are not readily apparent from ather sonrces The estimates and associated sssumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estitmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to aceounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the esiimare is revised ifthe
revision atfects only that periad, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision aftects current and fsture period

1) Usefial lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

On initial recognition, the cost of praperty and equpment acquired 15 allocated to cach component of the asset and depreciated separately.

Maintenance costs are recognized as expenses for the vear, with the exception of mandatory dry-docks required to maintain vessel mavigation certificates. which constitute an
identifiable companent upon the acquisition of a vessel and which are thereafier capitalized when the following dry-docks occur. Diy-docks are depreciated over the remainmg
useful life of the related vessel ar 1o the date of the next dry-dock, whichever s sooner.

Useful lives arc estimated based on past expenience, Masagement decides from tme to ume o revise the estimates for mdividual assets or Groups of assets with similar
characteristics due to factors such as quality of mauttenance and repair, technical development and environmental requirements. Refer o note 2(d) for the useful lives rypicalky
used for new assets,

The Group estimates residual value 10 reflect a moving average price of [0 years scrap rate Residual valnes are difficult to estimate piven the long lives of vessels, the
uncertamty as (o e economic conditions and the future price of steel, which is considered a5 the main determinant of the residual price. Management continually reassesscs
the residial value of the assets hased on chanves in the econpmic environment and revises the values o reflect the imnaser of anv sionificant chanpes

i) Contingencies

In the nomal course of business, contingent habilitics may anse from ligation and other claims against the Group. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of
crystalising or ave very difficult to quantify reliably arc teated as contingent habilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised. The cases which have
been determined as remate by the Group are not disclosed. Contingent asscts are neither recogised nor disclosed i the Consolidated financial statements unless when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable

iii) Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial asscis and financial labilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their {air value is
mezsured using valuation téchniques including the DCF model. The inputs (o these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements melude considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments (refer note 38).

1] Defined benefit plans {grawity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gramity plan and the present value of the gramity obligation are determined using actwarial valuations. An actwanal valuation imvelves making
various assumpiions thatmay differ from aciual developments in the fowre. These include the determination of the discount rate, fumre salary increases and mortality rates, Due
1o the complexitics invalved in the valuation and its long-term nature, & defined benefit obligaton is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewad a1 each reporting date.

vl impatrment of on-financial asscts

Impanment exists when the canying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fait value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation 15 based on available daa from binding revenue agreements, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or
abservable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset, The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash lows are derived from the budget and
do nat include restructuring activities that the Graup is not vet committed to o significant fisture myvestments that will cabance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested.
The recaverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate nsed for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

3b) Standards issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affaivs ("MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time 1o time. There are no standards that have been issned but not yet effective,

3e) Applicstion v and amended stand:
The Group has adopued, with effeet from 01 April 2023, the following new and revised standards and interpretations. Their adoption has not had any significant impact on the
amotnts reported m the financial siaiements,

I Ind AS 1 Presentation of financial statements: The amendment requires disclosure of matenal accounting policies rather than significant accouning policies,

2 Tnd AS & Accounting Policies, Change in Aecounting Estimates and Errors: The amendment replaces definition of *change in accounting estimates’ with the definition of
'u'lf."‘;)ﬁllnllll.lill,,I ESTImates.

Y
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Other Financial Assets

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. incrs
Non Current
Security deposils
Unsecured. considered gond - -
Others .38 1:37
Related partics 7.05 1341
Interest accred but not duc on Fixed Deposits 296 163
Bank deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 Manths 35,23 26,10
43,61 41.53
Current
sitg
Unsecured, considered good
Others 00z 0.03
Related parties 7.62 -
Employee advances iy} 031
Interest acerned but not due on Fixed Deposits 27 4.06
Deposits with Remaining matrity [ess than 12 months 16469 4130
Other receivables
Others 28.19 13.15
Eelated parties - -
209.47 58,85
25509 100,38
Tax assets (net)
Asat As at
Maweh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers Rs. in crs
Advance Tncome Tax (net of provision for taxation) 065 L 08
635 1008




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

7 Inventories

As al Asat
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. incrs Rs. in crg

Bunker® 433 10.69
Lube Oil* 16,39 15.25

20,72 15.94
*The above closing stock represents inventory mamiained en the vessels of the Company

& Investments
Asat As ot
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs, in crs Rs, inecrs

Tevestinent in Liguid Mutual Funds
{Fair vale through profit & loss)- Coted
Axis Liguid Fund = Regular Growth - 7.53
Axis Ultra Short Term Fund Direct Growth . 3.05
Bharat Bond FOF- April 2023 Direct Growth Plan - 236
Canara Robeco Liguid Fund Regular Growth - 5.08
HOFC Ligmid Fund-Growth - 505
AdityaBirlaSunlife LowDuration Fund Regular Growil &3 RS -
Adityn Birla Sun Lafe Moncy Marager Fund Regular G 48 15 -
SBI Magisum Ulira Short Duration Fund Regalar Growt 4381 -
ICICI Pradential Money Market Fund - Direct Growth 3794 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life - Smving Fund Regular Growth 3060 i
DET Saviig Fund Regular Plan Growth 207 -
ICICT Prudential Savings Fund - Growth 20 46 -
Kotak Savings Fund - Direct Plan Growth 2044 -
Tata Moncy Market Fund Regular Plan - Growth 2038 -
HEBC Ultra Short Duration Fund - Regolar Growih 0% -
Bandhan Ultra Short Term Direct-G 1523 -
Hific Money Market Fand - Regular Plan — Growth 15,06 -
DSP Saving Fund Dircct Growth Plan 10.50 -
HOFC Ligquid Direct -5 10.21 *
Invesco India Money Market Fund - Regolar Growth in.19 -
Hdfc Ultra Short Tenm Fund - Regular Growth 10,04 -
HDFC Meney Market Fund - Direct Growth Plan 840 -
Adityn Birla Sun Life - Saving Fand Direct Growth 8.40 -
Bandhan Ultra Short Term Fund Regular Growth IDFC 5.06 -
HOFC Floating Rate Debt Direct -G .02 -




SEVEN ISLANDS SIIPPING LIMITED

Notes to consnlidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

Trade Receivables

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2013
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Tyade Receivables
Unsceured, considered good 9001 £3 74
Trade Receivables, which has significant increase in credit risk 4 K% 345
Impairment allowance based on expected credit logs (4.58) (3.45)
99.01 H5.74
Ageing of Aceounts Reecivahles
March 31, 2024
Maor
Mot due Less than 6 months 6 manths - 1 year 1- 2 vears -3 years JU;:_:?:H Tatal
Rs. iners Rs_in crs Rs, in crs Rs, Incrs Rs. incrs Rs. in crs Rs. in ers
Undisputed Trade reccivables considered goad 93.78 3.23 - 2901
Undisputed Trade reccivables considered Doubiful - - - - 488 - 488
Disputed Trade receivables considered good - . = . - = -
Dispuied Trade receivables considered doubtful = " » " - - .
- 93.78 5.13 - 158 - 103,89
March 31, 2023
M tha .
Nat due Less than 6 menths 6 months - 1 year 1-2years 143 years ;;-iurs " Tutal
Rs, in ers Rs. in crs Rs. incry Rs. in crs Rs. in crs Rs. incrs R, iners
Undisputed Trade receivables considered good - .31 104 ERL - - E3 74
Undisputed Trade receivables considered Doubtful - - - - 3.4% - 345
Disputed Trade receivables considered good - - L = - - -
Desputed Trade recervables considered doubtful & ™ - % 5 e .
- 70,31 1.04 5.39 3.45 - BU, 1%
.-



SEVEN ISLANDS SIHIPPING LIMITED

Nates to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Credit ierms

Trade receivables © are doe immediate after the raising of the invoice to the customers

Credit risk management regarding trade receivablies has been described in note 41,

Trade receivables docs not include any receivables from directors and afficers of the company

Set out below the movement in the allawance for expected credit losses of trade receivables

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. incrs Rs. in crs
Asat April | 345 .32
Reversal during the year (3.45) (032)
Provigion made during the year 4 RR 345
At the end of year 4,88 3.45
Contract assets
As al As at
March 31, 2024 Maurch 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. incrs
Al the beginning of the year 1.30 279
Creation during the year 440 1.3
Deduction during the year {1.530) {2.7%)
Atthe end of year 4.40 1.30




SEVEN ISLANDS SHITPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2013
Rs. iners Rs, in crs
Balance wilh banks
On current aceounts 104 06 174.69
Deposits with ariginal matority of less fhan three months 54.40 420
Cashoon hand 1.30 0.76
159,76 179.65
Other Bank Balances
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Depasits with original matirty more than 3 months bt less than 12 months
200,68 182.30
Deposits with Remaining matwrity less than 12 months 164 69 41.30
Deposits with remaining maturity more than twelve months 35.23 26,110
496,60 149,70
Amount Disclosed under Other Financial Assets (Refer Nate 5) (199.92) {G7.40)
296,68 182.30

Reconeiliation between the opening and elosing balances for liahilities arising from financing activitics

Long - term borrowings

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars -
Hs. iners Rs. incrs

Opening 1,061.73 1, 141,03
Cash flowinet) 18320 i46.48)
Moii- Cash Changes

Foreign exchange movement 3.50 (32.82)
Cloging 1,250.43 1.061.73
Classified as coment matucity 345.28 276,15
Mon - current hahiliny 905,15 785.58
Tatal 1,250.43 1.061.73

There 15 no non-cash ransaction in investing activities,

o)



SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements Tor the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

Other Adscts
As at Az at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
R, imers s, in crs
MNon Current
Balance with statutary authorities 116 116
Capital advances
Unsecured. considered goad 2133 28.27
21.51 19.43
Current
Secured, considered pood
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to Suppliers 4.00 276
Balanee with statutory anthoritics .92 24 R0
Prepand Expenses 407 3,59
Other advances 0.06 0,00
19,99 3115




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

14 Equity Share Capital
Asat As at
Mareh 31, 2024 MAlarch 31, 2023
No. of shares Rs. in crs No. of shares Rs. in ers
AUTHORIZED SHARES
7,50,00,000 (March 31, 2023 : 7.50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 75,000,000 75.00 75,000,000 75.00
75,000,000 75.00 75,000,000 T5.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID-UP SHARES
5,72,27,550 (March 31, 2023 : 5,72,27 5350 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each, Fully
Paid up 57227550 57.23 37.227.550 3723
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 57,227,550 57.13 57,217,550 5113
a)  The Group has anly ane class of Equity shares having a face valie of Rs 10 each. Each holder of equily shares is enlitled 10 one vote per share
In the event of liquidation, the cquity sharchalders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Group after distribution of all preferential
amonnts in proportion to their sharcholdings.
by  Details of shareholding mare than 5% cquity shares in the Company:
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Srno. Name of the sharcholder No. of Shares %o holding % Change during the N, of Shares % holding % Change during
Year the Year
1 Mr. T.W. Pinlo 29,190,750 S1.01% : 29,190,750 51.01% =
2 Mfs FIH Mauritius Tnvestments Limited 27,777,650 48.54% - 27,777,650 48 54%
As per records of the Grroup, including its register of shareholders’ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharchalding represent
hoth legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,
e} Details of the shares held by the Prometers
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Srmo.  Name of the sharcholder Mo, of Shares % holding % Change during the No. of Shares % holding % Change during
Year the Year
I Mr. TW. Pinto 29,190,750 51.00% = 29,190,750 S1L01%
) Proposed Final Dividend Asat Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Propuesed final dividends on Equity shares:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2024; INR 72 per share
31 March 2023 TNR 18 per share) 41204 103.01
412.04 103.01

Proposed final dividend on cquity shares ate subjet to approval al the Annual Genral meeting and are nol recognised as a liability as at March 31, 2024,

M
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LINMITED
Notes to consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

Other Equity

Asal Agat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Hs. in crs
General reserve 21378 15213
Tonnage tax reserve under section [13VT of the Income Tax Act, 196] 14963 6163
Securities premium 243.19 24519
Surplus in the statement of profit and |oss 1,253.34 720,54
Cher comprehensive income (0.08) (044}
1,859.86 1,237.08

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Security Preminm
Secnritics premium is used to record the premium recerved on issne of shares. 1t is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013

Gemeral Reserve
General reserve is created after the wiilisstion of tonnage tax reserve for appropriate purposes and are available for distribution to Shareholders

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Surplus in the statement of profil and loss represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the proup and are available for distribution to shareholders.

Tonnage tax reserve under section 1HISVT of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Tonnage Tax Reserve created as per the provisions of the Section 115VT of the Income-tax Act, 1961, whereby a minimum of 20% of hook profits from the tonnage tax aclivitics are to be
uttlised Tor acquiring new vessels within 8 vears.

A



SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes io consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

16 Borrowing

Asg at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers Rs.in crs

Non Current
Long-term bor: v
Secured term loan
= Indian rupee term loans from banks 1,064 86 717.68
- Foreign currency loan from banks | 85.57 344 05.
Less - Current maturitics of long-term borrowings disclosed as short-term
hiarrowings (345.28) (276.15)

EIENES TB5.58
Current
Short-term borrawings
Current maturitics of long-term borrosings 34528 276.15
Bank overdraft - .05

J45.2% 276.20

1,350.43 1,061.78

a)  Secured Term Loan is repayable in 22 to 23 quarterly instalments after three to six months of moratorium period from the date of disbursement.

b)  Fareign currency term loan carries inferest rate of LIBOR plus 250 to 350 basis point and Indian rupee term loan from bank carries inferest {@ 725 % p.a 0 9.05% pa
<) All the term loans are secured by way of hypothecation of the Vessels and the current assets of the Group.

d)  Term loan of Rs 35039 Crs as on 31 March 2024 from Banks is secured by personal guaraniee of Capt. Thomas W Pinte, Mg Leena Pinto.

e} Bank overdrafl interest rate ranges from 8.75% was 13 95%, the borrowing is against lien of Fixed deposils

f)  Theterm Joan has been ulilised For the purpese for which they were obtained.




£}

SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Term of repayment and interest are as {ollows

Description Effective Interest rate Balance instalments as on Year of Maturity FY  Amount outstanding Amount
31.03.2024 Ending 31032024 outstanding
31.03.2023
Rs. in ers -
Foreign curreney term loan - M.T. Courage LIBOR + 250 basis poinis 3 2024 8.806 17.53
Term Loan - M.T. Kestrel 9.05% 4 2025 8.35 16,69
Term Loan - M T Loyahy 9.00% 2 2024 400 |1.98
Term Loan - M. T. Gallam 8.95% - - - 19.59
Term Loan - M.T. Success 895% 6 2026 1498 2494
Term Loan - M.T. Coronet 8.65% 6 025 10.46 1741
Term Loan - M.T. Blossom 8.50% = 2026 11.57 18.17
Term Loan - M.T. Dynasty 8.50% iy 2026 12.45 19.54
Fareign currency term loan - M.T. Feather LIBOR + 275 basis points 7 026 13.69 2245
Farcign currency term loan - M.T. Patriot LIBOR + 275 basis points G 2026 17.00 25,72
Foreign currency term loan - M.T. Sparkle LIBOR + 250 basis points ] 2026 1201 19.71
Foreign curcency term loan - M. T, Lourdes LIBOR + 270 hasis points g 2026 13.66 1922
Term Loan - M.T. Concord 3.63% 11 2026 63,64 86,78
Term Loan = M.T, Classic 3.62% - - . 8527
Term Lean - M.T. Babylon 2.30% 12 2126 34.90 45,89
Term Loan - M T. Century 3.00% 12 2026 67.74 §3.37
Term Loan - LPG/e Pine Gas 3.58% 2% 2029 18245 31543
Term Loan - M.T. Harvest 3.40% |4 2027 3803 48 85
Foreign Currency Term Loan - LPG/c Rase Gas 3.40% 4 2027 8545 108.26
Term Loan Fairway 5.00% 16 2028 3480 43.75
Term Loan Marvels 5.00% 16 2028 4495 56.52
Term Loan Regency 6.10% 18 2028 44,84 54.77
Term Loan MT Bourbon 8.25% 2] 2029 56.4( -
Term Loan MT Pioneer 8.25% 2] 2029 81,06 -
Term Loan MT Willows B.30% 22 2028 8475 -
Tenm Loan MT Majesty 8.70% 22 2029 154,48 -
Term Loan MT Capital 8.60% 22 2030 149,90 -
1,250.43 1.061.73
Less - Current maturities of long-term horrawings disclosed as short-term borrowings 34528 376.15
905,15 785.58

Q_%'G BN
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Narch 31, 2024

17 Other Financial Liabilities

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs.in crs Rs.in crs
Non-Current
Retention money payable 0.35 -
035 =
Current
Retention money payable 226 1.65
i ial liabilities at fair value throng|
Derivatives not designated as hedpes 58.62 7548
Interest aceried but not bue on becured lnan 2.70 1.14
Interest acerned on MSME 0.8% 0.89
Salary payable 16.44 1221
Other payable 006 -
Capital creditors 20,68 2635
101,65 117.72
IT.1  Lease liabilitics
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
N irrent
Lease lability ( Note 30) 8.69 12.58
8.64 12.58
urre
Lease liability (Mote 30) 3.99 4.56
3.99 4.56
18 TProvisions
As at As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. incrs
Nom current
Gratuity Provision 008 -
0.08 -
Current
Gratuity Provision 2.01 1.69
Seamens Gratuity .33 027
134 1.96
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Trade payables

SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. incrs Rs. incrs
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterpnses and small enterprises 11,78 250
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprizes and small
enlcrprises 73.97 52.84
85,78 55,34
Ageing of Acconnts Payable
Narch 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Unbilled ducs Mot yet due Less than 1 year 1 -2 years 2-3vears  Morethan 3 vears Tatal
Rs. in ers Rs. in crs Rs. in crs Rs. in crs Rs. in crs Rs. in ers Rs. incrs
MSME 381 3.52 4322 009 0.0l 013 11.78
Others 4619 204 1562 1835 085 142 7397
Disputed does - MSME =
Disputed dues - Others - = - » = - -
50.00 11.56 10.84 1.94 086 L35 85,75
March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following perinds from due date of payment
Unbilled dues Not yet due Less than 1 vear 1 =2 years 1-3years Alore than 3 years Tutal
Rs, incrs Rs. in crs Rs. in ers Rs. in ers Rs. in ers Rs. in ers Rs. in crs
MSME 0.14 1.69 0.53 .ol 000 0.13 250
Others 2108 9.71 16.56 1.42 063 .44 5284
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - =
24.22 11,40 17.09 1.43 063 057 55.34
Credit terms * Payables are normally settled within 90 days
Other current liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs, in crs Rs. in crs
Current
Statutory dues 1152 811
11.52 8.11




21

22

SEVEN [SLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Charter hire income
Time Charter - Charter hire 1,278 .88 §95.55
Voyage Charter - Freight and demurrage 159 81 25693
Course Fees 12.30 -
1,450.99 1,152.48
India 1.071.06 87225
Outside India 37993 28023
1,450.99 1,152.48
Contract balances
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs, incrs
Trade recervable 99.01 8574
Contract assets 440 130
Contract liabilitics 9.55 17.85

Amount of revenue recognised from amounts included in the contract [iabilities at the beginning of the year Rs 17.85 crores (previous vear Rs 0.27 crores) and

performance obligations satisfied in previous years Rs 17 85 erores (previous year Rs. 027 crores)

Out of the total contract liabilities outstanding as on 31 March 2024, Rs 9.55 crores will be recognised by 31 March 2025,

Other operating income

For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in crs Rs. im ers
Subsidy Income 244 -
Application fees 014 007
2,58 0.07
Other income
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. iners Rs. in crs
Income from investments 2411 983
Insurance claim 243 069
Interest on Lease deposit 1.25 1.11
Exchange differences (net) 1.71 -
Interest on fixed deposit 23.59 1013
Fair value gain on financial mstruments at fair value 17.58 =
Profit on Sale of Assel 274 59 4912
[nterest on income tax refund 0.69 116
Miscellaneous Income 1.71 0.67
347.68 72.71
Purchase of fuel oil and other inventories
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers Hs. in crs
Murchase of bunkers 29.07 6051
Purchase of lube oil 2385 22.54
Purchase of other inventories 521 543
58.13 88.78




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

24  Operating expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

Rs, in crs Rs. in crs
Crew Charges 19347 14968
Port Expenses 23.16 2059
Stores & spares consumed 67.08 S0.48
Insurance Charges (net) 2307 984
Repairs & Maintanance 3409 22 67
Survey & Certification 11.93 9.85
Agency Fees 204 1.72
Freight Hire Charges 10.84 015
Brokerage 826 4.00
Other operaling expenses 2589 2053
400.03 289.50
25 (Inerease)/ decrease in inventories
Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs, in crs
Inventories at the end of the year
Bunkers 433 10.69
Lube oil 16.39 15.25
20.72 25.94
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Bunkers 10.69 13.39
Lube ol 1525 13.5]
Others 1.38
25.94 28.28
5.22 2.34
26 Employee benefit expenses
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hs. in ers Rs. incrs
Salaries and bonus 3884 2502
Directors remuneration wis 197 6.00 6.00
Contribution to provident fund 0.36 024
Gratuity expense (note 33) 0.78 063
Staff welfare expenses 2.80 1.76
Total 48.78 33.65
27  Depreciation and amortization expense
For the vear ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs
Diepreciation of property, plant and equipment 414.83 31690
Amortization of inlangible assets 015 0.13
Depreciation of Right of use of assets 5.83 4.98
420.81 322.01
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28 Finance costs
For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. iners Rs. in ers
Interest on term loan 9738 83 30
Interest on Lease .23 Im
Bank charges 3.21 300
Interest on MSME 0.53 0.72
Tnterest on bank overdrafl facility 0.00 {1010
97.35 90.23

29 Other expenses
For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs, iners Rs. in ers

Rent on car D62 ks
Rates and taxes £y 11 84
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value - 41.32
Legal and professional fecs 542 6.07
Business promotion expenses 1.9% 110
Office utility expenses 316 4.60
Caorporate social responsibility expenditure (Note 435) 2194 1.63
Travelling and conveyance 4,81 514
Communication cxpenses 041 0.30
Payment to auditor (Mote 29(a)) ! 047 0.33
Impairment allowance on receivable 004 345
Bad debts 4.85 -
Repairs & Maintanance - plam & machinery .49 0.51
Directors' sitting fees 0.04 003
Exchange differences (net) - 16 10
Miscellaneous expenses 289 2.83

33.68 95.25

29(a} Payment to auditor
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs

Payment to audior as -

- Audit fees (CY fees includes Rs. 0.03 crs relating to previous vear) 043 133
- for taxation matters " -

- for out of pocket expenses 0.04

- for other services . "

Taotal 047 .33
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30 Leases - Ind AS 116

The Group has entered into non cancellable commercial leases for office premises and warehouses. These leases have an average life of between two and four years with no renewal option included in the contracts, There are
no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering into these leases. Rent and Security Deposit is paid by the Group 1o the lesser for the nght to use 1he office premises leased along with facilities and other amemties. Also the
Grong has paid rent and security deposit for podowns. The Group's obligations under its leases are scoured by the lessor's title (o the lensed assets. Generally, the Group is resiricted from assigning and subleasing the leased

assets,

Set out below are the camying amaunts of right-of-use assets recagnised and the movements during the year:

Times Square ,

Times Square,

Times Square , Times Square ,

Times Square ,

Sth Floor Tth Flowr Sth Floor 8th Floor Tth Floor Leasehold Land Office Premises Godown Total
Premises 3A Premises 3A(1) Premises 30 Premiscs 4 Premises 4
As at April 1, 2022 1.87 2.78 203 4.98 2.60 741 - 0noT 22.73
Addition - = - - . - 1,53 |.53
Depreciation expense (111 (L {0.42) {1.25) {0.92) (0.82) {014y TERTES {3.80)
As at March 31, 2023 L.76 L.a7 LGl 173 1.6% 6.59 1.39 (4 1846
Addition - - - - = - & 10 0o
Depreciation expense [ANED] {1 (0.42) (1.25) (0.92) (0.82) (.30) {0.03) {3.93)
As at March 31, 2024 .65 .56 .12 2.48 .76 5.77 108 0l 12.61

Set out below are the earrying amonnts of lease liabilities and (he movements
during the perind:

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opening 17.15 19.60
Addilions 0.10 1.53
Acerued Interest 1.23 1.64
Payments (5,80} (5.62)
Closing balance 12.68 17.15
Curent 309 4.56
Non-gurrent 8.69 12.59
Amount recogniscd in profit or loss
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assers 2.83 498
Interest expense on lease liabilibes 123 164 _—
Interest Income, tnterest on lease deposit = (1.23) (111
Total amouni recognised in profit or loss 581 5.51

* asssumed interest rate (7 9% p.a.




3

31

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the prafii and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31,2024

March 31, 2023

Profit! { loss) after tax

Rs. in ers

Rs. in crs

72543

March 31, 2024

29798

Mareh 31,2023

Weighted avernge number of equity shares in caleulating basic EPS
Weighted average number of sharez outstanding as at year end 57.227.550 57,227.550

Earnings per share
Basic and Diluted EPS 126.76 32.07

Commitments and Contingencies
Contingent liahilitics

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Ks. in crs Rs.incrs
Claims against the Group not acknowledyed as debis inclusive of the penalty and 15.38 15.38
imterest (nofe a)
Guenantees (note h) 245 .94
Total 17.83 16.32

The elaims ngainst the comprise:

Service Tax demand disputed by the Gronp - Rs. 15.38 crs as on March 31, 2024 ( March 31, 2023 Rs 1538 crs), this armtount i¢ inclnsive of inlerest and penalty upto the date of the notice, The Group is of the opinion that that the action
will sceeed and accordingly no provision for liability has been recognized in the finaneial statements

Guarantees given by the Group comprise:

There are guarantees of Rs. 2.45 ers ontstanding as on March 31, 2024 { March 31,2023 Rs. 0.94 crs) which are given to Mumbai part trust, ONGC and seamen employee office.

The Company has filed a commercial admiralty snit before the High Coust of Gujasat an January 15, 2021, against Bharat Petralenm Corporation Limited (“BPCL") and all persons who could in future make a claim, inrelation 1o M, T
Genessa (the *Vessel™), owned by ihe Company. On January 17, 2018, the Vesscl was undertaking a coastal voyage from Mumbai to Kandla, when there occurred a fire on board the Vessel, leading ta loss and damage to property on board
of in cotinection with the aperation of the Vessel. The Company filed the suit in exercise of its statutory rights to limit the linbility for purported elaims (including claims by way of recourse or for indemnity) by BRCL to a sum of Re. 49,58
crs, under the terms of the Merchant Shipping Act, 1958 read with the Merchant Shipping {Limitation of Liability for Maritime Claims) Rules, 2015, A notice has been issned 1o BPCL by Gurjarat High Court, the matter 15 ongomng with the
next hearing scheduled for August 14, 2024, but the matter could not be heard due to paveity of time, the next date has not yel been provided =

The Company have been served with pleadings on December 21, 2021 in Commercial Admiralty Suit filed by Deendnyal Past Trust (DPT] against the Company and Bliarat Petroleum Corporation Limited ("BPCL") for claiming salvape
reward, 1o make and declare a salvage reward o Rs. 135 crores along with 5% miterest p.n. from date of filing of suit 111l payment and Such other and lurther reliels as the nanme and circumstances of the present case muy require,
Company liability 15 limited 1o 8% 1.e. Companies liability is limited upto Rs. 10,80 crs.

SIS filed an interm apphcation for filing counter claim against the claim by DPT. The same was allowed vide order dated 29 June 2022 thercafier $15 has filed Counter claim fo DPT's claim on 4th July 2022, next date has not been given
wet,

Company filed an Intenm Application (L) Ne, 20436/2022 secking directions against the Registry of the Bombay High Court to take on record the Wiilten Statement & Counterclaimd Set off affirmed on 27 June 2022

The matler is ongoing, with the nex| hearing dute yet 1o be schednled.
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33 Geatniny

The Group bas 1 defined benefit granwty plan for ms employess Every emploves who bas completed five vears of serice or more gets a graumiy on resignsion ¢ deatl ar ratiremant
i 15 days of lass diswn salary for each completed vear of seevice The ssawry plan of the Group s funded tirough proup eratuity insurance seheme of Life Insurance Comotation of
India

Enclr year, the Group reviews the level of funding in the gratuity pln Such o review includes fhe asset-liability matching stratcigy and nvestment risk manngenent policy: The Group
droides ns contribution based gn the resuhs of this annual review The Group aims 1o keep annual conribunons relanively siable ot a level swch i na plan deficus (based on
valtiation petformed ) will anse

The following vablzs scummanze the components of net benefit expense recounized mohe Staenant of profit and loss and tee funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance

chiael for the respective plans.

Net employee bonefit expense recogoized in employee cust

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ra. i 13 Rs. in o5
Current sehvice cost 0,6 0.56
Netinterast cost 01z o7
Nei benefit expense 075 063
Other Comprelensive Income March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Hs. iners Hs, in s
Agtuanal (Gain)/Loss recosnized for the year 10.36) (0.08)
Rewsm on Plan Assets excluding net interest 0.00 (0040}
Re-measurement gains/{loss) on defined banefic plans (0. 263 {iL.04)
Balance sheet
Benefit azset! (liability)
Mareh 31, 2024 Nareh 31, 2023
Rs, in gy Rs. in crs
Prasent value of defined benefi obligation 03 560 =5 (240}
Fair value of plan asses 077 0.71
Plum asset! (liahility) (1.7 (1.68)
Chunges in the present value of the defined benefit ohligation are as folluws:
hﬂ 31, 2024 NLarch 31, 2023
Rs, iners R, in s
Opening defined benefic obligation 240 1.79
Current senvice cost 066 056
Imterest cost 0.7 .1l
Past senace cost - -
Henefits paid {03) -
Actuaral {umn)loss on obligaton 036 {0.06)
Closing defince benefit obligation 386 P
Changes in Tair value of plan assets
Marreh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hs. i crs Hs. in s
Oprenimy fir vdluz of plan asses . 068
Adjustrnent o epening Fair value of plam atsets {000y -
Expected retem 085 a0
Contributions by employer 0.03 -
Banefits paid {043) -
Actuacial gainfloss) {0.00) 0.00
Closing Tair value of plan assets 77 4,71
Sensivhvity Analysis
Significant aziuarnial assumptions for te determination of the defined benefin obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analyses bebow lave been
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
Rs. im crs Hs. in ers
Present value of ohligation
Discount rate (increass by 1%) {0.21) TLRNN]
Discount rate (decrease by 1%) {0.62) 014
Salary Escalation (increase by %) {0.69) .09
Salary Escalaiion {decrease by 1%5) (0.80) Wwah

The semsinvity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual chiunge in the defined benefit oblivation as itis wilikely that e chanye in assumpiions would eccur in

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Group's plans ave shown belows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Digcount rate T04% 6. 28%
Rate of increase in compensation fevel 10 00% 10.00%
Expected rate of retum on assets T 3a% 734%
Emplovee tamover i 00% LG005
Expevience ndjustment forr corrent and previous yeans:

Mgdlll..wn March 31, 20213

Hs, in crs Rs. o ers

Diefined benefin obligation 136 140
Plan assets 037 072
Susplus/ {deficit) {2.79) {1.68)
Esxperience adjustments on plan habilies i34 006y
Experience adjustments on plan asseis [RH] {0.00)

Heployment sarket

fatimate aof futere salay mereases, consdersd i actiuanal valwawon, takes acooum of inflaton, senionity, ineremens and odier wlevan fretos, such as supply and denvand in
il "
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34 Related party diselasures
w. Nammes of velated paeties angd relpted parety relatisnship

MName of the party Description of relationship

Mz Saven [slands Logistes Private Linuted Enterprise aver which key managesmeni personnel and their relagives have siomficant influence
D Pinia's Pathological Laboragony: Enteiprize aver which key management pessonnel and their rel agives have significant influcnce
Parsarwar & Co Enterpuse over which diveciors and then relateves bave signiticant influence

Seven Islands Shipping Foundarion Enterprize over wii che direetoes have stgnd ficant influenee

Fairfax India Charitable Foun dation Enterprise oves which directoes have g g ficant influence

Lavails g culware and properties prvate limied Entermise over which direclors have significant influence

Key mumamerial personnel / Divectors

Capt Thonas W, Pado fupio 30 04.2024) Charman & Managing Director
Capr. Thonmas W, Pado (woe 0103 3024) Dnreeion
Ms Leera Pinto Spouse of Capt, Thomas W Pino
Mr. Clayton Pinto (upte 30.04 2024) Chicf Executive Officer
Mr. Clayton Pinto {(w.ef. 01.05 2024} Manauing Director & CEQ
e Sujit Parsatwar Dhrevios
Mr. Jay Parckh Campany Secretany
Mr. Warren Pinta Chief Financial Oflicer
Mr Uday Gore Independent Director
Mr St Aaheslowan Momines Director
s, Sanjeaviata Samdani Independent Diector
M An| Devli Independent Director
Ms. Anshita Vishwakarmia Spouse of M. Jay Parekh
b. Related party teanssction
The follawing table provides the total amount of tsnsactions that have been entered info with related parties for the relevant finanelal years
Mature of transaction March 31, 2024 Alarch 31, 2023
s, i ors Rs. in cis
M/s Seven |slands Logstics Privaie Linnted Office rent paid 447 450
Diepastt griven - -
Reimbursement of expenses il 013
e, Pines's Pathological Laboratory Medical expenses incumed 0,00 0.06
Parsatwar & Co, Consultancy charges 370 4,00
Fasrfax India Charitble Foundatnon Dionation ws |35 050 03|
Mr. Clayten Pintg Reimbupsement of expenses 0 og 04
Capt Thomas W, Finto Reimborsement of expenses LR .88
Sezuaity Digpost - a04
Lgase reny 0.17 008
Ms. Leena Pinta Secunty Dieposit - 0.04
Lense rent 017 008
Lavnils Agriculture and Properties Povate Linnted Leise rent 1.0 0.9%
M Uday Gore Duvector Sitfing fees 002 002
Mz Sanjeeviata Samdan Dhirector Sitting fees o.al 40l
Mr. Amil Dievli Director Sitting fees .01 a0l
€. Durstanding balunces
March 31, 2024 Niareh 31,2023
Ks, in crs Ks, in ors
rabl gl I r
Mis Seven Fslands Logstcs Private Linieed - securitye deposi 15 o8 L5458
Lavails Agricaltore and Properties Private Limited - security deposit Lon (K]
Capt. Thomas Wilfked Pinno - security deposit 004 I
Dir. Leena Metylda Pinin = security deposit .04 0
D, Pine's Pathological Laboraery - a4l
d. Hemuneration te Hey minageril personnel
March 31,2024 March 31, 2013
Rs. in ers Rs. iners
Capt. Thomas W. Pints ] G0
Mr. Clayton Pinte 150 1.50
M Juy Parekh 043 ol
Mr. Warren Pintg 057 .38
Ms. Aashita Vishwakama 04 008
e, Other transactions; 3

i} Cuarantee given
There are m0 giarantees outstandong a5 af 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
i) Guaranive taken
Taorm loan of Rs. 350,39 Cis & on 31 Masch 2024 (March 31, 2023 © Rs. 564 31 Cra ) from Banks 15 secuved by personal pasanies of Capr, Thomas W, Pinto, Ms Lesna Pinto

1, The transacugns with the relaiad parties dunng the vear and provious year are at arms length basis.

35 Capital and other commitments

w Estimured wmount of contraets remaining 19 be executed on capital uccount and not provided for: = = )\E_/’ j
The Group lias an cagatal commatoent regardin the acquistiion of vessel, dry dock of vessels and Construction of Inspiwie of Rs 18283 Crs as on 31 March 2024 ¢ March 31, 2023 R 130,78 Cs)
itz s Telating to lease arrongements, please refar nate 30
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Segment reporting

The Group is swruciured into several business units for management purposes, specializing in the shipping and martime education sectars, It has identificd a single reportable segment,
considerng the quantitaiive threshold. The Chiel Execative Otficer. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating officer of the Group has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM™) The CODM cvaluates the Group's tinancal performance and makes the swatepic decisions

Asper Ind AS 108, the Group has a single reportable segment therefore Group has provided the following disclosures:

Revenue from operations
For the peviod ended For the period ended

Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in ers Rs. in ers
Inda 1,071.06 87225
COutside India 37953 28023
1,450.9% 1,152 48

Revenne from operations have been alloealed on the basis of location of customers

Non current ussets
All non current asscts other than financials instruments of the Group are located in Tndia

As per Ind AS 108 paragraph 34 1equires entities 1o disclosc information about its major customers 1. those contributing 10% or more of 1s tota) amount of revenue
Revenue from external customers fudividually contributed more than 10% of the total revenue of the enlity is as follows

For the period ended For the period ended
Maich 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in vrs

Revenue from external customers T40.22 494 03
Number of Customers 3.00 2.00

Capital Management

For the purpose of Group’s capital management, equity includes equity share capital and all other equity reserves atuibutable to the equiry shareholders of the Group. The Grroup manages
its capital strueture and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements, The Group's objectives are 1o safeguard eontingity, maintain a strong
credit rating and healthy capital vatios in order o support its business and pravide adequate retam to sharcholders through continuing growth and maximise he sharcholders value, The
Group funds its opersuons through imemal accmals. The management and the Board of Directors monitor the retum on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders,

The Group manages its capital suucture and makes adjustments in light of changes in econemic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maimain o adjust the
capital stucture, the Group may adjest the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitars capital using a seanng ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group's policy is to keep the pearing ratio helow $5%. The Group inclndes within net debt, interest heaning loans and borrowings, less
cash and cash cquivalents.

As at Mareh 31, 2023 and Mareh 31, 2024, the Group has only one class of equity shares and has debt, consequent to such capital structure, there are no externally imposed capital
requiremnents. ln order to maintaim or achieve an optimal capital siructure, the Group allocates its capital for distribution of dividend or re-investment into business based on its long term
financial plans.

The debt equity for the vear 15 as under

March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs. in crs

Total Debt (note no. 16) 1,250.43 1.061.78
Less: cash and cash equivalens ( note no. [0) (159.76) (179.65)
Less: Other Bank Balances { note no. 11) (296.68) {182 30
Net debt TY3.99 649,53
Total Equity (note no. 14 and 13)* 1,767 45 1,232.66
Capital and net debt 2,561.45 1,932.49
Gearing ratio 31.00% 36.21%

Ry

# Excludes tonnage 1ax reserve
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38  Fair value measurements
Financial mstruments by calegory

As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carrving value Fair Value Carrying value Tair Value
Rs. incrs Rs. in ery Rs. iners Rs. incrs
Financial Assets:
At amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 159 76 15476 17965 1 79.65
Orther bank bolances 206 68 204,68 233 6 233 60
Trade receivables 99.01 o901 8574 8574
Other Financial assets 25509 25505 59.08 58.08
Financial asscts af fair value throuwh profit & losg
Dernvatives not desynated a5 hedges - - - -
Invesiments i mutusl funds 426 58 42659 2504 25.04
1,2137.12 1,237.12 730 57311
Aszal As at
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Carrying value Fair Value Carrying value Fair Value
Rs. in crs Ry, incrs Rs. in ery Rs. in crs
Financial Liahilities:
At mmortised cost
Borrowings 1.250 43 1.250.43 [051.78 105178
Other fingneial liabilities 431.03 4303 42,23 4213
Trade and other paynhles BS,75 83.78 550 5534
Finagi bilities at fatr value 1 fit apd loss
Deerivatives not designated as hedges 58.62 3862 75 4% 7548
1,437,583 1437.83 1,234.83 1,234.83

Ivesiments in mutual funds are vaheed at the NAV's considered at each reporting dane
Detrvatives instruments at fir value through profit or lass reflect the change In the fair value of interest rate swap (i e paying fixed interest and receiving vorinble interest) that is not designated in hedye relatianship, but is, nevertheless, infended
to reduce the level ol interest rate risk for expected outflow of interest included in the repayments of botiowings.

The Group nses derivative instruments as part of its management of faresgn currency risk and interest rate risk asgocmted an borrowings. The Group uses eross curtency swaps and interest rate swaps. At 31 March 2004, the Group had currency
swaps and inferest rate swap agreement in place for its local currency borrowing, The Group has contracted to poy fixed amaunt of foreien currency and receves fixed amount of indian currency. The Group receives a fixed rae of interest of 7 % -
9 % and pays interest at a variable rate equal to 6 Manths LIBOR+2 75% to overnight SOFR plus 3.10% ar a lower contracted fixed rate on the outstanding smount, The said swap is treated as a dernative and thus measured ot foir value through
profit ar loss, further, being dermvative, it is being mark 1o market as at March 31. 2024, the derivatives are clossified ns level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due Lo inclusion af signaficant ehservable inputs including counterparty credit risk
while armiving at the fair value




SEVEN ISLANDS STITPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Fair value measurements recognised in the Balance Sheet:

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measired subsequent to mitial recounition at fair vahue, grouped into Levels | 1o 3 based an the degree to which the fair value is ohservable

-Level | fair value measurements are thase derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

-Level 2 fair value measurements are those detived from mputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are ohservable for the dsset or linkility, either dircetly (i e as prices) or indicectly (e derived from prices)
-Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data {unobservable inputs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Maurch 31,2024 March 31, 2023 Maveh 31,2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rz, in crs Rs. iners s, incrs Rs, incrsy Ks. in ers Rs.in ery

Financial Assets
Finzcial asseis at fwr vale throwgh profit and loss
Tnvestments in nutual funds units 426 58 2504 - -
Derivatives not designated as hedpes r "
Financinl Linhilities

inacial lighilities at fait value through profit and loss

Derivatives nof designated as hedpes - - 5862 7548

41658 15.04 58.62 T5.48% - 2

All the current financial ossets and labilities have carrying amount which is equivalent to foir value.
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Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
for the vear ended
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2013

Rs. incrs Rs. in crs
The principal amount and the interest due therean remaining unpaid to any supplier
as at the end of cach accounting year
Frincipal amount dve to micro and small enterprises 10.89 1.74
Interest due on ahove 0.89 072
11.78 2,50

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tesms of seetion 16 of the MSMED Act

2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day during each accounting year = =
The amount of mterest duwe and payable for the period of delay in making payment

{which have been pasd but beyend the appoitted day during the yeary but without

aedding the imterest specified under the MESMED Act 2006, = =
The ameunt of inferest acerued and remaining unpoid ot the end of sach aceounting

year 0.89 06,72
Thie amount of further mterest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding

yenrs, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid ta the small

entetprise for the purpose of disallowance ag a deductible expenditure under section

13 of the MSMED Act 2008 - <

Income tax Expense
A Tax expense recognised in the stntement of profit & loss
far the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023

Rs. incrs Rs. incry
Income Tax
Tonnoge lox 1.63 160
Current tax 10.19 4,70
Excess/(shon) provision for tax of earlior yeor - (0.78)
Total Current tax expense 11.82 5.53
Effective tax rate 1.60% 1.82%

B Reeonciliation hetween statutory Income Tax Rate applicabic to the Group and the effective Income Tax rate is as follows
for the vear ended

March 31,2024 Muareh 31,2023
R, in crs Rs.in crs
Proiit before takes 737.25 30350
Effective tax rate in India * " 2
Tax effect of adjustment far profit subject to tonnage tax regame f presomptive taxation 11.82 553
Income tax expense recognised m the profit and less account 11.82 553

" Naole: In case of Indian shipping compames, tax expense is computed based on the gross tonnage of the vessels for the income subject to tonnage tax. In cage of incame not subject to tonnage 1%, the same is calcukated Bosed on the txable profits
ealculmted in secordance with the local tax laws

As of March 31, 2024, ane of the subsidiaries "Seven Iskunds Martme Training Foundation®. has not recognized deferred tax assers related 1o timing differences for earry forward tox losses and provisions for gramity, based on o prisdem appioach
There 1s no reasonable cenainty, supported by convincing evidence, that adequate future taxable income will be available ta reabize these deferred tax assets. IF the Group were able to recogrizse all unrecognised deferred tax assets, the profit
would ncrease by INR 3,19 crores
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Finaneial risk Management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial risk management 13 an integral part of how to plan and execute its busmess strategies. The Group's fimancial risk management policy 15 set by the Audit committee

The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of charpes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange Tates and other market changes that affect market risk sensiteve nstruments Market risk 15 suributable to all market fsk sensiteve
Financial mstruments including deposis and loans and borrowings.

The Group manages markel nsk throwgh Audu commitiee. which evaluates and exercises independent eontrol aver the entire process af market risk management. The commitlee recommends nisk management objectives ond polieres, which are
approved by Audit committee and Board.

Market Risk

Market rik is the risk that the fair value af future eash flows of o financial instrament will Nuctuate becouse of changes in market prices. Market 015k compreses three types of risk: interest rate risk. currency risk and other price sk, such as
commodity sk Financial instiuments affected by marker risk include loans and borrawings. deposits and FYTOCT investments

The sensitivity analysis i the following seetions relote to the position as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The following assumptions have been made i caleulating the sengitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respeetive market risks, This is based on the financinl assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2033

The senaitrvity of equity 15 caleulated by considering the effect of any associated cash flow hedges at 31 Mareh 2024 for the effects of the assumed changes af the wnderhymy risk

i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate visk 15 the sk that the fair value of fatore cash flows of the fimancial imstruments will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates.

Exposure to Intercst rate risk

As at Asat
Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in crs Hs. in crs
Total Borrowings 125041 1.061 78
%0 of Borrowings out of above beaning variable rate of Interest 43,229, 2] .48%

The Group is exposed to interest mle risk as the Group harrow funds at floating interest eates. The interest rate risk 13 managed by monitaring the Group’s level af borrowings pertodically and structuring its borrowings on
varying matucifics ond interest rate terme

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to inferest rates at the balance sheet dove. For Noating rate liabilities. the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability sutstanding at the
halance sheet date was outstanding for the whaole year

A 50 basis paint merease or decrease 1§ used when reporting interest rate risk and represents manngement's assessment of the reasonably possible change n mterest rates

I imerest rates had been 30 bosis points higherlower and all ather variahles were held constont. Hie Group's loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 would increase/decrease by [NR 027 crg {(March 31, 2023: INR 011
¢ra). This is mainly atiributable ta the Group’s exposure ta inferest rates on its varisble rate borrowings.

ji) Price rigk

The: Group 15 engaged in the bustness of commodity transportation of crude ail. petroleum products, coal, iron-ore ete. which involves o high level of dependence on the production of ail and gas Thus. demand in these
sectars will have a direct smpact on the busimess of the Group. A decline in the demand for ail, coal or iron ¢te. will adversely affect the business af the Group. Thus, often. the factars affecting the supply and demand for the
vessel are beyond the cantral of the Group as the nature. timing and degree of changes m the industry conditions cannot be foreseen and are unprediciable




SEVEN ISLANDS SPPING LIMITED
Nuotes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

iii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign curreney risk mainly arises from transactions undertaken by an operating snst denominated in correncies other than s functional currency. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rales
relates primarily to the Group's operating activibies (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) The Group manages its foreign currency risk by converting the foreign currency expasure mto INR an
the date of entering into the transaction.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial labilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are as Tallows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars -
usn Others rso Dithers
s, incrs Rs. iners Rs. iners Rs. in crs
Trade Recervables 3052 - EXR | -
Cash and Cash equivalents . 093 - 335 -
Other Financial Assets 1959 . - -
Net Exposure for Assets 51.46 - 3686 -
Fimancial Lizbilities
Borrowings 18617 34543 -
Trade payable 43 99 18.81 304
Derivatives nol designated as hedges 58,62 75,48 -
Net Exposure for Liahilities 25878 - 439,72 3,04
Net exposurg | Assets-Liabilities) (237.32) - {dN2.86) (3.04)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to o 3% increase and decrease in the functional currency agninst the relevant fareign currencies in the Group

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting fercign curreney risk and represents manogement’s assessment of the rensanably passible change i foreignexchange rates

The sensitrvity onalysis inclades only cutstanding foreign cuttency denominated monetary ems and adjusts their transiation al the petiad end Far a 5% change in foreign currency rates, A pesitive number below indicates
an mncrense m profit and ather equity where the respective functionnl currency strengthens by 5% against the relevant foren currency: For a 5% weakening of the functional currency azainst the relevant currency. there
wanld be an equal and epposite impaet on the prafit and ather equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Effect in INR March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in crs Rs.iners
USD impact {11.87) (20.14)
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Credit risk

Crredit risk ariscs from the possibility (hat the counter party may not be able to seiile their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Group peripdically assesses the financial reliability of eustomers and other counter parties, 12
financial condition, current econoinic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of linancial assets. Individual risk limits are st and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information.

SEVEN ISLANDS SIHPPING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated fnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

ng inta sceount the

Finangial assets are written off when where there are no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debior failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group. Wiiere loans or receivables have been writien off. the Croup continues lo engage in
cnforcement activity fo atiempt 1o recover the receivalide due. When such recoveries are made, these are then recognized as incoine in the statement of prafit and loss,
The Group measures the expecied credit loss of irade receivables based on historical trend, indusley practices and (he business environment in which the cutity aperates

Liguidity Risk

Prudent liguidity risk management iinplies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of fmding throngh an adequare amount of committed credit facilities 1o meet obligations when due and (o close out marker positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group treasury maintains fexibility in fundi ng by maintaining availabiliy under committed credit lines. Management monitors ralling forecasts of the Group s liquidity position [co mprising 1he
undrawn borrowing facilities helow} and cash and eash equivalents en the basis of expeeted cash flows. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respest to refinancing ils debt and eoncluded it to be low

The follewing tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its Gnancial liabilities, The tables have been drawn up based on the cash flows of financial labilitics based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required 1o pn:

Maturity Analysis of Financial Linbilitics

As ot March 31, 2024

Contractual Cash Flows

Maore than 5

Total Up to 1 year 1-3 years 3-S5 years
years
Rs, in ¢rs Rs. in crs Hs. in crs Hs. incrs Rs. in crs
Financial Instruments
Borrowings 1,25041 34528 013,12 24588 066
Trade Pavables 8575 8575 - - =
Lease Liability (Note 301 12.68 318 1.80 - "
her financial liabilities 43.03 43,03 - -
Contractunl Cash Flows
Asat March 31, 2023
Total Up o 1 year 1-3 years 3-S5 vears Bnie hans
VEArs
Finaneial Instruments
Bomowings 1.061.78 276,15 535,35 19643 53,85
Trade Payables 55.34 3534 - - -
Lesse Liability (Note 30} 17.14 4.56 6,65 235 168
Oher financial lisbilitics 41.34 41,34 - = -

Relationship with Struck off Companies

Group dues sot have any rransactions with eompanics struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act. 2013 or section 560,




SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPPING LIMITED
Notes tn conselidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

43 (A} The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested fonds to any other person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign enfities {Inlermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediany shall:

{1} directly or indirectly lend or invest in olher persons or entities identiffed in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Group (Ultmate Beneficiaries) or

(1) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an hehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(B} The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entitics (Funding Partv} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Gronp shall
{1y directly or induectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannci whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

(1) provide any guarantce, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics

44 IRatios
Sr No. Particulars Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % change Reason for change
Rs. in crs Rs, incrs

1 Current Ratio - in times 2 2.87 (23.08) Due 1o increase in the corrent assets towards the Investment and otheér current asscls
2 Debt- Equity 1alio in times 0.65 0.82 {20049} Due to increase in cquity on account of nerease in profit
5 Return on Equity (%) 37 84% 23.02% 39.16 Duc to increase in the profitas compared to last year
4 Wet profit mangin 40.27% 24.32% 3962 Due to the increase in revenue during the eurrent year
5 Return on Capital employeed (%) 26 35% 16.71% 36.57 Due to increase in the profit as compared to last year
3 Debtors turnover 1571 18.40 [17.15) Due fo increase in the deblors as well as revenue as compared to fast veu
7 Trade payables turnover 6.57 677 (3.07)
8 Met capital tumover 0,90 1.00 {10.66) Due to increase in turnover and profit as compared to last year
9 Return on imvestment 1.80% 1 60t 11.27 Increase dug to increase in interest income and sale of investment
HI Debt service coverage 0.61 034 44 81 Due 1o Tnerease in the profit as compared to last year

Nates:

Derivation of Ratios

Current ratio Total Curreni Assels

Tatal Current Liabilities

Dbt Equity ralip Total debt including enrrent maturities
Equity Share capital plus Other Equity

Return on Equily (%) Profit for the period from eperations
Equity Share capital plus Other Equity

Net profit margin Met profit ratio

Total Tncome

Return on Capital employeed (%) Earning before interest and tax
Capital Employeed

Debtors tamover Revenue from operations
Average trade receivable

Total Purchase
Trade payables rmover Average trade payable

Total revenue
Met eapital trnover Averape Equity share holding

Nel return from invesiment
Refurn on investment Total investment during the vear

Profit aller tax = Finance cost
Clebt service coverage Total debt + Finance cost =l
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45 Details of Carporate sncial respunsibility evpenditure

Srnn. Parnticolars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i ncis R in crs
Arsount reguiced 1 be spena Ty e Growr
] during the vear PR (B}
2 Ameund of expenses meumed 205 | k3
3 Shondall of e end o the yes . i

MA The Growp's TSR inliatives wsaalhy imolve helping the nesdy and pemine peogle
cither dircetly or shrough aious implementing agencics 1o ensure masimum benefil o
the community. However, as mamdaced by the Act the Graop shall gre preforence to
the loesl aeea aml the meas around i where | operntes for spending Ui omouml
camarked for CSB acinues. Whoever apgroached. and Tound wenaine was provided
the contribugion an the basis of their requisenicnt. Hewever, dus 1o pauaity of ting in
finding genuing modes 1o chanmehize CSR inmatve preforably 0 local ares. the
Growp's spend om the TSR acuvities has been less tan che Doues peeseri bed under
Companies Act. 2013 before Maseh 312023 However, the unspent amount of Rs
343251 has been wranslereid 10 “Clean Ganga Fund” being a specificd fuad under
Schadule V11 of the Companies Act. 2003,

Thass. Wse Grgup has spent the cntire 5B Obhgation amounl 1o Rs. 6771982
for Fmanceal Vear 2022-23 in the follow ing manner:

Amound in Rs.
Amaant spent on otier (han ongaing projects 16228351
Amaunt spent towards ongoing progests: Ml
Unspent amonn ansieood v a speeified fund (Clean Ganga Fund): $.43.25)
Toaal: | 5771982
4 Reason foe Shorilall

3 Mawre of CSR sedvines 18} Promoeung bealbicare. incleding preveative healheare @nd sandtation (1) Promoting keoltheare, incloding preventive Tealthears
1ii) Eradicating Hunger. Poverty & Malnutrition {ii} Promoving Education
i) Improning Liveliliood {iae) Eradicaiing Hunger

{iv) Promotins cdueation. includmyg special cducation and employment— (iv) Improviog Livelilood

cnhancing vocation skills especially among childien, women. elderly, and

the dilTerently shled and livelibonsd cphancement projects. ) Promnting cducation. incluling special cducation amd conployment enliangeny
soeation shills especially amony cleldren. women, elderly. ond the differently abled and

A b setling wpr okl age homes. day cose eentres and such other facilives for livelihood cabianesment projects

SENiOr Ciizens

(v1] enguring environmental sussunabilio. . ecological balanee

& Dednils of Related party transactions

Seven wlands shipping foundation il Nil
Fairfox [edia Charitable Foundaon 30 (&1}
T Mo provision is made foram contractual obligotion M, MA
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SEVEN ISLANDS SHIPFING LIMITED
Notes to consolidated lnancial statements Tor the vear ended Mareh 31, 2024

The Group has sinchoned working capial liniisin exeass of Be Five Crs in aggicgate from bank or Finaneiadmshimtion durimg any poimntof e i the year on the basis of s2emit of curment assets howewver the

Girpup has ned avadled the sanie during the year Consenquently the Growp has not subnutied quarcrly setmmsfsaiements with such banks or finaneal imsoutinng

Subsidiaries

Detals of the CGroup's subsidsanes at the end of reporing pencd are a3 follow

Naine of the Sibsidiary Pluce of Proportion ol gwnership interest and
Incerpration and voting power held by the Graup Principal
uperition 3st March 2024 [31st March 2023 Aty
Seven Islands Martine Training Foundation India 104075, B0 | Mantine
Towning Institee
Seven Islands International FZE* LAE 1007 -|Owning &
operating o
[Vizaepls

*Company was incorperated on March 28, 2024 and th

Statetory Group Infermatian

ere are N transactions in the subsidiary si

niee banking operations liave not oo

enced

Seven Ishands Shippina Lid. Seven Dslands Maritiine Teaining | Seven Islands Intertational FLE Tatal
Balance as ot 31 | Balance as af 31 | Balance as at 31 | Balance ns oi 31| Bulance as at 31| Balance a5 ai 31| Balance as a0 30 | Balance as a 31
Mlarch, 2024 March, 2023 Alqich, 2024 DMurch, 2823 March, 2024 Muarch, 2023 Maurch, 2024 Mlarch, 2023

MNel Assels, Lo, total assets minos total liabilitics

Az 2l 11 5 In0E7) 100 25 087 10257 = - 173 100,00

INE Crs 1.933.60 1,297 51 10 60 13.20] - - 1917.09 12494.31
Share in profit snd loss

As % of consclidated of profit and los 1 49 95,73 {0.4%) 0.37 - = 10000 100.40]

[MR Crs 28.97 29716 {3.54) 0Al = = 725,43 297.93
Share in other Comprehensive income

As % of consolidated other comprehansive 100410 100,00 - = - - 10000 100.00

ATHECHELE

INR Crs .36 0.06 = = = - 036 .06
Shure in total Comprehensive income

As % of total comurebienzive incom. 100,49 g 73 1049y 027 - - L0000 1, ()

IR Crg 72933 29732 11.54% 03l = = 735,741 298 .04

Evens afier the veporiing pecipd

The hoard of doectors have propesed final dewdend on 5,772,279 550 shares of Rs. 72 per share amountng o Bs 41204 crp aftes the batance ghean date which are subject 1o approval by die shareholders at the

amnyal general mecting

The Ciroup has sken backuy of &l the books of accouns on daily basss on servers physicallvlocared in Indiafrom 1 Apnl 2023 10 37 March 2024, However, in respect of the system naed by 1he Helding company

o congalidate the hooks in electronic form. the required mformation in respect of backup sctivity frem Tune 28, 2023 16 Aweost 10, 2023 was not avalable for company s the company wansitioned from one

vendor 1 another forbackap & subsidiary back up from 15 April 2023 1o 3rd May 2023 was not available, although the beekup was taken on daily bisis on servers phiysically located i India for remainder of the

period.

Audit trail relevant i accounting softwarg used during the year by the Holding eomipany were ol enabled for direct changes made at the database level by nsers with privileged access. The Holding company

continues (o ensure s, direct system controd is restricted to a linited nomber of system administrates and support fzam members for privileged-level management and troubleshooting Further, in the sceounting

software. the audit il log can be deleted at the application layer without a deletion oy being pensrared. The Holding conmpany liaz dizabled the feature of deletion with effect from July 4, 2024,

in case of ane of the subsidiaries * Seven Islands Mantime Traiming Foundaton ", which uses accounting software for mamtsining books of account, which has a feature of recording audu trail fedic log) faciliny.

However, the audit trail feature was not enabled for the period 01 April 2023 to 03 May 2023

The Graujp has not waded or invested in crypte ciimency or virtual comency during the corment or previous year

No proceeding have been mitated on or are pending against the Group for holding of benany property under benamm
Transactions (prehibition) Act, 1988 (43 of 1988) and Rules mads thereunder;

The Group has aor declsned wiliul defaslier by any bank or financial institution er Goveonment or Govemiment

Autharity.




53 There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income durng the current or previous year in the lax assessmeni
under Income Tax Act. 1961 that has not been recorded in the books of accounts

54 Previous years figunres have heen regroupediiechssified wherever necessary,

As per our Report of even date.
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